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City of Davenport
L

294 West Fourth Street » Davenport, lowa 52801
Telephone: 563-326-7711 TDD: 563-326-6145
wiww. cliyofdovenporfiowa.com

December 12, 2011

Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council
and Citizens
Davenport, Iowa

State law requires that cities publish a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and that their financial condition
and their transactions be examined annually by the Auditor of State or by a certified public accountant. Pursuant to
that requirement, we hereby issue the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Davenport for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011,

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City, Consequently,
management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in
this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the City has established
a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government's assets from loss, theft,
or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City's financial statements in
conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City's
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The City's financial statements have been audited by McGladrey & Pullen, LLP, a firm of licensed certified
public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 are free of material misstatement. The independent
andit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was
a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City's financial statements for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011 are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the
first component of the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was part of a broader, federally mandated
“Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit
engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements,
but also on the audited government's interpal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special
emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. The results of
the City's Single Audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 provided no instances of material weaknesses in the
internal control over compliance or significant violations of applicable laws, regulations, contracts and grants, These
reports are available in the City's separately issued Single Audit Report.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative introduction,
overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of a Management's Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction
with it. The City's MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Working Together To Serve You



Profile of the City

The City of Davenport, the principal city of eastern Iowa and the county seat of Scott County, is located on
the Towa bank of the Mississippi River approximately midway between the cities of Des Moines and Chicago. The
City is the third largest city in lowa. Davenport, named after Colonel George Davenport, was originally settled in
1808, making it one of the oldest cities in the upper Midwest. Incorporated in 1836, Davenport continues as one of
the four remaining special charter cities in Iowa. Davenport is the major city of the Quad-City Metropolitan Area,
which includes three counties located in two states. The area includes Scott County, Iowa and Rock Island and
Henry Counties in Illinois. The major communities, apart from Davenport, include the cities of Bettendorf, Iowa and
Rock Island, Moline and East Moline in Illinois. The Davenport-Rock Island-Moline Metropolitan Statistical Area
{MSA) had an official 2010 population of 379,690, Davenpor! had an official 2010 population of 99,685,

The City operates under the Mayor-Council form of government. The mayor and ten council members are
elected on 2 non-partisan basis every two years. Eight council members are elected by ward. The mayor and two
remaining council members are elected at-large. A professional City Administrator is appointed by the Council.

The City provides a full range of services including police and fire protection; solid waste collection;
construction and maintenance of streets, sewers and bridges; sewage collection and treatment; culture and
recreation; mass transportation; planning and zoning; and general administrative services.

For financial reporting purposes, all funds, agencies, boards, commissions, trusts and authorities involved
in the provision of these services are included if the City is financially accountable. The GASBE has set forth criteria
to be considered in determining financial accountability. The City of Davenport does not include any component
units within its reporting entity. See Note 1A in the notes to the financial statements for more specific information
on reporting entity,

The City maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget approved by the City Council in March each year for the fiscal year beginning the following
July 1. The State of Jowa requires the passage of an annual budget of total City operating expenditures by major
program categories after public hearing. Activities of the General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital Projects,
Enterprise and Internal Service Funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. Project-length financial plans
are also adopted for the Capital Projects Fund. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which
expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is at the total program level. As a result of this program
structure used for the legally-adopted budget, legal compliance (total budget-to-actual appropriations) is
demonstrated in one schedule which combines all funds and is in the required supplementary information section of
this report (GASB Statement 41). The City also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of
accomplishing budgetary control. Encumbered amounts lapse at year end. However, encumbrances generally are
reappropriated as part of the following year's budget.

Factors Affecting Financinl Condition

The information presented in the financial statements may be better understood when it is considered from
the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City operates.

Local Economy. Historically, the economic strength of the Quad-Cities has been dependent upon the
manufacturing of farm and construction equipment. During the early 1980s, with multiple plant closings and layoffs,
unemployment reached a high in Davenport of 12 percent. After reaching this peak in 1983, unemployment rates
have declined. This reduction in unemployment is attributed, in part, to the growth in the area of professional and
nonprofessional services, The Davenport-Rock Island-Moline MSA 2011 unemployment rate (through nine months)
of 7.1 % was lower than the nation (9.1%). The total number of jobs in the MSA has grown the past two years, and
of the 205,600 persons in the labor force in 2011, 190,900 were employed, which is indicative of the economic
diversification that has occurred. Major employment in the area includes the health care, retail, meat packing and
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food processing, aluminum, and industrial and agriculural equipment sectors in addition to government, education
and utilities. Employment levels at the City's largest employers remained remarkably stable during the economic
downturn nationally following 9/11 and several are implementing plans to add jobs and make capital investment,
including Deere & Company, Kraft/Oscar Mayer, Sears Manufacturing and M. A. Ford Manufacturing.

Tax base composition is diverse, consisting of 50 percent residential, 44 percent commercial, 2 percent
utility and 4 percent industrial properties. The tax base is not concentrated; the Jargest taxpayer accounts for 3.8
percent of total value and the remaining nine leading taxpayers account for just 6.5 percent of taxable value. More
detailed information on permits and principal taxpayers can be found in the statistical section of this report.

The River Renaissance on the Mississippi project was kicked off in August 2001, when the State of Towa
approved a $20 million grant to the City as part of the $113 million. Completed in October 2008, River Renaissance
is a collection of major improvements and renovations downtown and on the riverfront, including: the Figge Art
Museum, the New Ventures Center, the River Music Experience, the River Music Skybridge, the Adler Theawe
Stage Expansion and Downtown Parking. Scott County, lowa assisted with a $5 million grant subsequent o a
special referendum at which 73 percent of voters favored the bond issue. This has spurred additional investments to
Downtown Davenport including One Renaissance Plaza, a $14 million, 90,000-square-foot, Class A office facility in
the downtown and approximately 250 loft apartments constructed in the old warehouse district. The $40 million
renovation of the Hotel Blackhawk is complete and re-opened in December 2010, This facility is attached to the
City's RiverCenter Convention Hall and provides 130 new hotel rooms and 30 luxury market-rate apartments and
adds 130 jobs in downtown Davenport The same company, Restoration St. Louis, also restored the Forrest Block
building, an 1885 Ttalianate style building, with 22 market-rate luxury apartments. The company has recently
acquired the historic Renwick building and is beginning its development into 18 luxury apartments and 12,000 feet
of street level retail. In addition, two major corporations, AT&T (previously Cingular) and eServ, a Perot Systems
Company have new facilities in Davenport. AT&T is now occupying a 75,000 square foot facility, bringing 510 jobs
with a total payroll of $11 million. eServe has completed constructing a new building valued ar $5.95 million
providing 60 new positions for a total of 235 jobs. Approximately 33 engineering jobs have been created with an
average annual wage of $61,000 per year.

Budget Challenges. Recent years' budget processes have faced the many challenges presented by the
current local, state and natipnal economies, including: state-shared revenue reductions; loss of investment income
due to lower returns in the current markets; state-mandated increases in public safety pension costs; increasing costs
of health care; and increasing costs of liability and property insurance.

The General Fund includes most of the City's services including police, fire, parks and recreation, llhml':\"
community and economic development, civil rights and administration.

The City's General Fund receives approximaiely 75 percent of its revenue from property taxes. The State of
Towa allows a maximum levy rate of $8.10 per thousand dellars of assessed value and $0.27 in an emergency levy.
The City has been at the maximum levy rates since 1984 and 1986, respectively. Also, growth limitations are
imposed on the City's property tax base by the State, including the residential property rollback. The 1995 phase out
of property taxes on machinery and equipment reduced the City's property tax base by $82 million from FY 2000
through FY 2004. The State has also exempted gas and electric utilities from property tax, and while a replacement
tax was revenue neutral for three years, the actual experience has fallen short by 350,000 per year. The taxable
property tax base has grown moderately, an average of 3.7 percent annually over the last ten fiscal years ending in
FY 2011, despite the above State limitations. Personne! costs represent 80 percent of the fund's expenditures. Wages
have grown at an average annual rate of 4.5 percent over the last several years. Employee benefits include funding
for health claims which have increased an average of 6.3 percent per year over the last 10 years ending in FY 2011.
In addition, contributions to the state-wide fire and police pension system are scheduled to increase from the FY
2010 contribution rate of 17 percent to 19.9 percent for FY 2011 and 24,76 percent for FY 2012 due to recent losses
in the pension fund brought on by the natipnal economic downturn. As a result of this structural imbalance and the
challenges discussed above, employee reductions, cost sharing and non-property tax revenue increases {including a
garbage collection fee imposed in FY 2003 and clean water utility fee in FY 2006) have been necessary in order to
balance the fund.



Future budgets will challenge the City to continue current services within the current revenue and
expenditure structure. It is important to note that the State does provide unlimited property tax levies for employee
benefits (trust and agency levy), debt service (debt service levy), and insurance/claims (tort lability Jevy), whereas
the general and emergency levies are limited as discussed above. The City also has the ability to collect a unlity
franchise fee on natural gas. This is one option that could help diversify revenues.’

Long-Term Financial Planning, Maintenance and expansion of the City's infrastructure (such as streets,
curbs, sidewalks, sewers, bridges, and traffic signals) remain a major priority of the City. The City annually adopts a
six-year Capital Improvement Program that provides a framework for the development and maintenance of
infrastructure to meet current and future needs.

The major source of funds for the program is general obligation bonds, which are primarily financed from
an unlimited debt service property tax levy and local sales tax receipts. The City attempts to leverage its program
commitment with available grants from the federal and state governments and private secior partnerships. The
program required a debt service property tax levy increase from the FY 2006 rate of $.99/51,000 assessed value and
includes programmed usage of the General Debt Service Fund Balance increase which is due to local option sales
tax receipts exceeding budgeted property tax relief. The long term financial model as presented in the FY 2007
budget message projected an increase to $1.76/31,000 assessed value in FY 2007, which the City Council approved
in the adopted budget. The rate has remained the same since but is projected 1o increase by FY2014 if new projecs
added since FY2010 remain or if other new revenue is not identified to fund them, such as grans.

Highlights of the Capital Improvement Program which is scheduled to begin in fiscal year 2012 include:

Street resurfacing, full depth patching and reconstroction $4.7 million

Rail for Eastern Jowa industrial center $1.5 million (project total 37.0 million)

Transload facility $6.7 million (project total $8.5 million)

New 40 foot buses $1.5 million

Mew terminal building, apron expansion and reconstruction $1.2 million

Continue phase IT and 111 of the Westside diversion tunnel. This project would resolve current and

projected capacity problems and open 27 square miles to development in west/northwest
Davenport. (340.8 million total cost)

& & @ & & @

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporling to the City of Davenport, Iowa for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. This was the 28” consecutive year
that the City has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Centificate of Achievement, a
governmental unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report, whose contents conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report continues
to conform to Centificate of Achievement Program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its
eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the City received the GFOA's Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for the FY2012
budget document. This is the 15" consecutive year that the City has received this award. In order to qualify for the
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the Cliy's budgel document was judged to be proficient in several
categories, including as a policy document, a financial plan, an operations guide, and a communication device,
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The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been accomplished without the services of
the entire staff of the Finance Department and the anditors. We would like to express our appreciation to all those
who assisted and contributed to its preparation accordingly. We especially wish to thank Assistant Finance Director
Linda Foliand and the Accounting Division staff for all of their extra time and effort in the preparation of this report.
We would also like to thank the Mayor and members of the Finance Committee and City Council for their direction
and support in planning and overseeing the financial operations of the City.

Respectfully submitted,

Alan Guard
Finance Director
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McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

McGladrey

independent Auditor's Report

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Davenport, lowa
Davenport, lowa

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Davenport, lowa,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City
of Davenport, lowa's management. Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of intemnal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements refemred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Davenport, lowa, as of June 30, 2011, and
the respective changes in financial position and the cash flows, where applicable thereof for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As explained in Note 13 to the basic financial statements, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 54,
Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, which changed its method of
accounting for governmental funds’ fund balance classifications.

As described in Note 15, the City restated the beginning fund balance and net assets to correct the
recording of a loan expenditure and related deferred revenue.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 12,
2011, on our consideration of the City of Davenport, lowa's internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements,
and other matiers. The purpose of that report is 1o describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion an
the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.

1
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The management's discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 13, schedule of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances budget and actual and schedule of funding progress for other
postemployment benefit plan on pages 66 through 69 are not a required part of the basic financial
statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Davenport, lowa's basic financial statements. The combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements and other schedules, listed in the table of contents as supplementary
information, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The accompanying introductory and statistical sections, as listed in the table of contents, are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. This
information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

/%My S Ao, 2

Davenport, lowa
December 12, 2011



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Davenport, we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this narrative overview
and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. We encourage readers w
consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our
letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages iii through vii of this report.  All amounts, unless otherwise
indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars.

Financial Highlights

Owerall, the City continues to maintain a strong financial position, in spite of economic pressures and State of lowa
mandates and cutbacks in shared revenues.

* The assets of the City of Davenport exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2011 by $262,274 (net assets).
Current liabilities exceeded current assets by $8,875.

e The government’s total net assets increased by $7,388 during fiscal year (FY) 201 1.

e At June 30, 2011, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $3,392, or 8 percent of total General
Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 13 percent of total expenditures.

The above financial highlights are explained in more detail in the Government-wide Financial Analysis and
Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds sections of this document.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve 4s an introduction to the City of Davenport’s basic financial
statements, The City of Davenport’s basic financial statements compnise three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains
other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The two government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City of Davenport’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assels presents information on all of the City of Davenport’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assels may serve as a
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Davenport is improving or deteriorating,

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets changed during FY 2011,
All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will
anly result in cash flows in future fiscal periods {e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Davenport that are principally
supported by property taxes, other local taxes and state and federal grants (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges
{business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Davenport include public safety, public works,
culture and recreation, community and economic development, and general government. The business-type
activities of the City of Davenport include parking, sewer operations, RiverCenter (convention center), public
transit, public housing, golf courses, airport, solid waste collection, clean water utility, and River's Edge (indoor
recreational facility).

The government-wide financial statements include only the City of Davenport uself (known as the primary
government),

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 16 through 19 of this report.



Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Davenport, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements,
including restrictions on the use of certain monies. All of the funds of the City of Davenport can be divided into
three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the povernment-wide
financial statements, governmentzal fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is parrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the City’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide 2 reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Davenport maintains 15 individual governmental funds. In the basic financial statements, information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances(deficits) for the General Fund, General Debt Service Fund, Local Option
Sales Tax Fund, and Capital Projects Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other
eleven povernmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of
these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements ejsewhere in this report
{supplemental information).

The City of Davenport adopts an gnnual appropriated budget, prepared on a modified accrual basis. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided to demonstrate legal compliance in the required supplementary information
section.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 20 through 27 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The City of Davenport maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements,
Internal service funds are an accounting device used t accumulate and allocate cosis internally among the City of
Davenport’s various functions. The City of Davenport uses internai service funds to account for employee health
insurance, risk management, and information management services. Because these services predominantly benefit
governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements.

The City of Davenport maintains ten enterprise funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. In the basic financial statements, the proprietary fund
financial statements provide separate information for the parking system, sewer operations, RiverCenter, and clean
water as these are considered to be major funds of the City of Davenport. Data from the other six enterprise funds
are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor enterprise
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report (supplemental information). The
three internal service funds are combined into a single, agpregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial
statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report (supplemental information).

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 28 through 39 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the City.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of those funds
are not available to support the City of Davenport's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much
like that used for proprietary funds. The City has three agency funds. The basic agency fund fipancial statements
can be found on page 40 of this report,
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Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential 1o a full understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The potes to the financial statements
can be found on pages 39 through 64 of this report.

Supplementary information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor
governmental funds, nonmajor enterprise funds, internal services funds, and agency funds are presented immediately
following the notes to the financial statements. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be
found on pages 71 through 91 of this report,

Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position.

Comparative data from fiscal year 2010 and 2011 are presented below. In Davenport, assets exceeded liabilities by
$262.274 at the close of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011,

City of Davenport’s Net Assets
Governmental Business-lype
Activities activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Current and other
assets i 120593 $115224 % 26426 3 1735 § 147,019 % 132,578
Capital assets 265,064 253,902 141,417 131,415 406,481 385,317
Total assets 385,657 369,126 167,843 148,769 553,500 517,895
Noncurrent
liabilities
outstanding 139,497 130,923 32,860 18,737 172,357 149,660
Other liabilities 110,213 108,348 8,656 7.721 113,869 116,069
Total liabilities 249710 239,271 41,516 26,458 291,226 265,729
Net assets:
Invested in capital
assets, net of
related debt 126,692 125,751 123,757 113,559 250,449 239,310
Restricted 12,739 26,269 3.849 4415 16,588 30,684
Unrestricted({deficit) {3.483) (22,166) {1,280) 4,337 (4,763) (17.829)
Total net assets b 135948 $129.854 §% 126,326  $122311 % 262274 % 252,165

By far the largest portion of the City of Davenport’s net assets (95 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets
that is still owstanding. The City of Davenport uses these capital assels w provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of Davenport’s investment in its
capital assets 15 reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liguidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City of Davenport's net assels (6 percent) represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. Current liabilities exceed current assets in all three categories, both
for the City as a whole, as weli as for its separate governmental and business-type activities, in the amounts of
$5,915, $2,960 and $8,875, respectively.

In the business-type activities, the $9,072 increase in current and other assets is due to the increase in restricted cash
in the sewer fund from the proceeds of the Sewer Revolving Loan for the Westside Diversion Tunnel project. This
also attributes to $8,129 of the increase in noncurrent liabilities outstanding. The remaining increase in noncurrent
liabilities outstanding is due to the increase in general obligation bonds payable due to several bonded projects in the
business-type activities.



Revenues:

Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and

contributions
Capital grants and
contributions

General revenues:
Property taxes

- Other taxes
Other
Total revenues

Expenses:
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic
development
General government
Interest on long-term debt
Parking system
Sewer operations
RiverCenter
Public transit
Public housing
Golf courses
Alrport
Curbside recyeling
Clean water
Rivers Edge
Total expenses

Increase/{decrease)} in net assels

before transfers
Transfers

Increase/(decrease) in net assels
Net assets-beginning,as restated

Net assets-ending

City of Davenport’s Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 201 2010 2011 2010

5 12941 & 15,992 % 26,517 B 23437 % 39458 5 39429
19,070 22,362 1,654 1,752 20,724 24,114
20,033 27,042 10,664 8.980 30,697 36,022
59,359 58,524 3,376 3,323 62.735 61,847
19,647 18,963 - - 19,647 18,963
1,801 1,155 1,021 399 2,822 1,554
132,351 144,038 43,232 37,891 176,083 181,929
42,049 34,618 - 42,049 54618
43,599 45,178 - - 43,599 45,178
13,674 19,396 13,674 19,396
14,881 24,924 - - 14,881 24,924
9914 9385 9.914 9,385
6,489 6,233 - - 6,489 6,233
2 - 2,080 2,293 2,080 2,293
- 15,506 14,614 15,506 14,614
- 2616 2,050 2616 2,030
- 5,367 5.556 5,867 3,556
4 1,046 1,130 1,046 1,130
- 2072 2,305 2,072 2,305
379 355 579 555
- - 5,049 4,835 5.049 4,835
- 2,185 2,232 2,185 2,232
- - 1 088 166 i.088 166
130,606 159.734 38,088 35,716 168,694 195,450
2,245 {15,696) 3,144 2,175 7,389 (13,521}
1,128 (448) {1.128) 443 - .
3.373 {16,144} 4,016 2,623 7,389 {13,521)
132,575 145,998 122,310 119,687 254,885 263,685
3 135548 § 129854 % 126326 3 122310 § 262274 35 252,164

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City's net assets by $2,245, before transfers. This
increase is attributable to the increase in property and other taxes of $1,519 from 2010,

Certain revenues are generated that are specific to governmental program activities, These totaled $52,044. The
graph below shows a comparison between the expenditures by governmental activity type and the revenues
generated that are specific to those activities. Total governmental activities expenses decrease $29,128, Public
safety decreased $12,569, due to the completion of two community projects funded by the Department of Justice. In
FY 10, $10,125 community and economic development expenditures occurred by the bonding for the consolidated
dispatch center which is a reason for the decrease in cxperéditures.
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The graph below shows the percentage of the total governmental revenues allocated by each revenue type.
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Total governmental activities' revenues for FY 2011 were $132,851, a decrease of $11,187 from FY 2010. This is
primarily due to the decrease in capital grants in FY2011 due to the completion of gram funded public works
projects. The largest single revenue source was property laxes of $59,359, which increased by $835 (1.4 percent}
during FY 2011. This increase resulied from an increase in the tax base of 1.4 percem. Capital grants decreased by
$7,009 during FY11, this was due completion of two projects partially funded by Department of Justice granis
$2,801; a decrease in stimulus granis by the Department of Transportation $1,438; and a decrease in donated paving

by subdividers $740.

Charges for services decreased by $3,051 during FY11. This was due to decreased salt sales to other municipalities
of $753 and a decrease in revenue from others for joint funded CIP projects of $1,391.Operating granis decreased in
culture and recreation due to the Friends of the Library contribution of $776 deferred in FY 10 and in the public

safety category due to the decrease of deferred revenue of $965 for the consolidated dispatch project.
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Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City of Davenport's net assets by $5,144. The key
elements of this increase follow:

*  The sewer fund increased the charge per cubic foot of use from $1.86 1o $2.23 and the flat charge of a bill
increased from $5.75 to $8.63. This increased the revenue in the sewer fund over $2,000. The airport
received a federal grant of $820 for taxiway construction and the parking fund received $1,031 of
municipal contribution to build a new parking lot under the Centennial Bridge.

Total business-type activities' revenue for the fiscal year was $43,232,

The graph below shows a comparison between the business-type activity expenditures and program revenues.

Experocs wisd Pragrom Hevenus «
Huslfewi-type Activitles
O Exponse B Roveno
2E(KHILINKY - 1
LCHMLTRA 1 - ——— - —- — — - -
(R GRE L

BLCHE LRI

AANHLIE 4

Parking Rewer Hirvorcunior whlic FPubli il Abport Rotd Waste Clesn sy Rivursudps
sysium v i [Lo LT Periiimy N

The graph below shows the breakdown of revenues by source for the business-type activities.
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Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Davenport uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Davenport’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflow, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of
Davenport’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year 2011, the City of Davenport’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $24,135, an increase of $4,093 in comparison with the prior year. The increase is attributable to a
decrease in the local option sales tax fund of $1.102 (due to completion of projects); and an increase in the Capital
Projects Fund of $6,973 (due to unexpended bond proceeds). Approximately 18 percent of this total amount,
$4,357, constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the City’s discretion. The remainder
of fund balance i5 nonspendable {represents prepaid amounts) $17; restricted by grantors and other legal restrictions
$18,150; committed by the City Council for revolving loans and the levee improvement commission $1.059; and
assigned by the Chief Financial Officer for future projects $552.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Davenport. The General Fund includes many of the
City’s services inciuding police, fire, parks and recreation, library, community and economic development, civil
rights and administration. The General Fund group as reported combines a pumber of individual funds each with a
specific purpose, These include the General Fund, the City’s primary operating fund; the Trust and Agency Fund,
which accounts for employee benefits; Hotel/Motel Tax Fund; the Library Special Levy Fund, used to enhance
library services; Parks Special Needs Funds and the Flood Fund. At the end of the current fiscal year 2011,
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $5,392, while total fund balance was $9,845. As a measure of the
General Fund’s liguidity, it may be vseful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total
fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 8.5 percent of total General Fund expenditures, 15.9 percent
General Fund expenditures excluding the specific purpose funds, while total fund balance represents 15.5 percent of
the total expenditures,

The total fund balance of the City of Davenport’s General Fund decreased by 5577 during the current fiscal year and
the unassigned fund balance increased by 3442, The State of lowa allows a maximum property tax levy rate of
$8.10 per thousand dollars of assessed value and $0.27 in an emergency levy for general activities. The City has
been ar the maximum levy rates since 1984 and 1986, respectively. In addition to these two levies, the State allows
unlimited levies for employee benefits {trust and agency levy) and insurance/claims (tort lability levy), which are
also accounted for in the City’s General Fund. Property tax balances from these two levies are reserved at the end of
each year because their use is restricted.

The General Fund balances discussed asbove are considered adequate by management. The City's policy on fund
balance of the General Fund, excluding the other specific-use funds, is that the unassigned fund balance will be
maintained at 10 to 15 percent of the operating requirements. The current fund balance is within policy guidelines.
Fund balances at June 30 cover the City's cash flow needs prior to the collection of property taxes (in September
and March each year) so that cash flow borrowings are unnecessary. Fund balances also provide flexibility (for
example, should revenue projections fall short) and can be used in cases of emergency (for example, flooding or
storm clean-up).

The General Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of $3.139, all of which is teserved for the retirement of
debt. The State of lowa allows an unlimited property tax levy for debt service. The net increase in fund balance
during the current year in the General Debt Service Fund was a minimal 3174, The city prepares a rolling six-year
capital improvement program. This will allow for a stable levy over the six years of the current program.

The Local Option Sales Tax Fund accounts for the proceeds of a local option sales tax and has a fund balance of
$2.769. The State of lowa provides for a one-cent local option sales tax. Davenport voters approved the 1ax in 1988
and the referendum directs its usage to 60 percent for property tax relief (debt service levy) and 40 percent for
capital improvements. A transfer of 60 percent of tax proceeds is made to the General Debt Service Fund and the
remainder is transferred to the Capital Projects Fund as expenditures occur. The net decrease in fund balance during
the current year was $1,102, due to the completion of capglal projects.



The Capital Projects Fund has a fund balance of $6,470, due to unspent bond proceeds. The net increase in fund
balance during the current year in the Capital Projects Fund was $6,974.

Proprietary funds. The City of Davenport proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail,

Legal Compliance Budgetary Highlights

As explained in the Letter of Transmittal, budgetary legal compliance is demonstrated in one schedule summarizing
all funds in the Required Supplementary Information section of this report on pages 66 and 67.

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget can be summarized as follows:

* The total original revenue budget of $273,868 was increased to $378 444, an increase of $104,576. In the
intergovernmental category, federal, state and local grants were carried forward in the budget amendment
to reflect on-going construction in progress of capital projects in the amount of $56,422. There were
special revenue grant rollovers and new grants amounting to $10,021; $6,005 budgeted for a bond
refunding and $800 for bond related costs and $8,245 budgeted for a loan repayment.

#  The total original expenditure budget of $252,336 was increased to $342,764, an increase of $90,428. In
the community and economic development category, $11,611 was carried forward for on-going grants. In
the capital outlay category, $74,033 was carried forward in the budget amendment to reflect on-going
construction in progress of capital projects. In the debt service category an additional $6,005 was budgeted
to reflect two refunding issues.

Differences between the final amended budget and actual results of operations can be summarized as follows:

* In the intergovernmental revenue category, federal, state, and local grants in the amount of $75,980 were
not accrued or received due to construction projects not completed and special revenue grants not yet spent.

* In the other revenue category, there was $65,670 of transfers not made, due to the not completed status of
some capital projects.

e [In the community and economic development expenditure category, $2,106 was not spent in special
revenue funds and will be carried forward, In the capital outlay category, 117,610 of expenditures were
budgeted and not spent, due to construction projects not completed. In the business type category, $4,833
of the difference is due to bond principal payments being budgeted as an expense, but reported as
adjustments to the liability.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

As discussed above and in the Letter of Transmittal, the General Fund budget and actual revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balance have been incorporated into the statemment of all funds on pages 66 and 67 of this report.
Highlights for the General Fund follow.

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget for the General Fund can be summarized as
follows:

* The total original revenue budget of $61,.443 was increased to $63,290, an increase of $1,847. In the
intergovernmental revenue category, federal grants in the amount of $1,314, state grants in the amount of
$155, and local grants in the amount of $200 received subsequent to original budget adoption are included
as both revenues and expenditures.

+  The total original expenditure budget of $61,636 was increased to $65,035, an increase of $3,669. Police
forfeiture and seizure monies of $305 held as reserved General Fund balance at June 30, 2010 were
included in amendments in order to authorize the expenditure during FY 2011, Public works expenditures
were increased in amendments by 5103 as a result of the carryforward of the monies collected from
developers and reserved for reforestation. Culture and recreation expenditures were amended to include
grants carried forward of $227 and new grants received as noted under the revenue discussion, $222
increased activity in the self-sustaining programs and 3200 for encumbrances carcied forward. $1,297 was

amended for emergency flood protective measurea.
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Differences between the final amended budget and actual results of operations of the General Fund can be
summarized as follows:

»  The net change in the General Fund balance in FY 2011 was §577, a positive variance from the budgeted
change ($2,660) of $2,082.

#  Revenue items that came in under budget included gaming taxes from the casino and interest earnings.

®  The public safety and public works expenditure categories were overbudget, due to higher than expected
emergency flood protective measures. The remaining expenditure categories came in under budget,

e A special library property tax levy ($.27/81,000 assessed value) was approved by voters to support
operations of two new branch libraries. Unexpended taxes of $676 were a part of the favorable variance
and a reservation of General Fund balance at June 30, 2011.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Davenport's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of June 30, 2011, amounts 10 $406,481 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital
assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment and vehicles, sanitary sewers, bridges, traffic signals,
storm sewers, and streets and roads. The total increase in the City of Davenport's investment in capital assets for the
current fiscal year was 5.5 percent. Governmental activities accounted for $11,162 of the increase in capital assets,
and the business type activities accounted for $10,002 of the increase. At June 30, 2011, and June 30, 2010 the
depreciable capital assets of the City were 35 and 50 percent depreciated. This indicates that the City is replacing its
assets as they are depreciating.

Major capital asset activities during fiscal year 2011 include the following:

e  Street and road work completed by the City of 59,386 including $2,61 1 of street resurfacing, $1,966 of full-
depth patching, and $1,222 of 65" and Brady Sireet intersection improvements.
Streat and road work completed and contributed by developers 5402
Construction in progress at the new Fire Training Center $760
Construction in progress at the new indoor police firing range $475

ess- activiti

Sanitary sewers built and contributed by developers 5364

Storm sewers built and contributed by developers $351

Solids dewatering facility at the Wastewater treatment plant 35,496
Construction in progress on the Westside Diversion Tunnel 33,878

Additional information on the City of Davenport’s capital assets can be found in Note 6 in the notes to the financial
statements.
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City of Davenport’s Capital Assets

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total
' 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Land L3 18,725 % 16548 § 1,190 % 11,180 $ 0 29915 & 27,738
Buildings 99,609 100,259 95,865 21,580 195,474 191,839
Improvemenis

other than

buildings 26,689 23,102 11,583 10,444 38,272 33,546
Sanitary sewers - - 66,6350 64,557 66,650 64,557
Eguipment and

vehicles 36,765 36,656 31,043 30,465 67,808 67,121
Bridges 4,976 4474 - - 4,976 4474
Traffic signals 1.774 7,404 - - 7,774 7,404
Storm sewers - - 19,469 18,984 19,469 18,984
Paving 178,910 170,265 222 222 179,132 170,487
Seawalls 623 623 - - 623 623
Tunnels 54 54 - - 34 54
Construction in

Progress 14,253 9,973 18,403 10,503 32,656 20,476
Accumulated

depreciation (123.314) (115,436) {113.008) {106,530 (236,322) (221,986}
Toual $ 265064 § 253902 5 141417 % 131415 406481 § 385317

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Davenport had total bonded debt outstanding of
$177.080. Of this amount, $135,735 comprises debt being serviced from the general debt service fund from
property taxes and 60 percent of the local option sales tax proceeds. The remainder of the City of Davenport’s debt
represents bonds serviced by specified revenue sources, including the tax increment financing districts debt service
fund, the Jevee improvement commission fund, the municipal improvement districts fund, the sewer operations
enterprise fund, the public housing enterprise fund, the golf courses enterprise fund, the parking system enterprise
fund, and the airport enterprise fund. The City has issued general obligation bonds backed by its full faith and
credit, including the unlimited debt service property tax levy, which are planned to be retired from the above
revenue sources rather than revenue bonds because legal debt capacity exists (see below) and the resulting lower
interest costs benefit its citizens and service users. Detailed information on bonded debt abatement by fund is
contained in a summary on page 58 of this report.

City of Davenport's Outstanding Debt
General Obligation Bonds

Governmental activities Business-type activities Toral
General obligation 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Bonds $152.696 $142,874 $24.384  $18,657 177,080 $161,531

The City of Davenport’s total debt increased by 315,549 during the current fiscal year, New debt issuance of
$39,750 during the year slightly exceeded the debt retirement of $25,785. The issuance was to finance the City’s
capital improvement program including streets, buildings, and sanitary sewers (abated by user fees), and tax
increment financing projects (abated by tax increment financing revenue).

The City's scheduled debt repayment is rapid, with 82 percent of outstanding bonded debt scheduled for repayment
in 10 years and 98 percent in 15 years
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State Statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to five percent of its total
assessed valuation. The current debt limitation for the City of Davenport is $297,664, which is significandy in
excess of the City of Davenport’s outstanding general obligation debt, $177,080, and other debt subject to the debt
limitation of 312,868,

The City of Davenport maintains an AA rating from Standard & Poor’s, and an Aa2 rating from Moody’s Investors
Service for general obligation debt {prior to recent adjustment proclamations), Both firms view the outlook for their
most recent ratings as stable.

Additional information on the City of Davenport’s long-term debt can be found in Note 9 in the notes to the
firancial statements,

Economic Factors and Current and Future Budgets

In 1992 the State consolidated local police and fire retirement systems into a state-wide system (MFPRSI). MFPES]
is funded from members’ contributions (9.4) percent of earnable compensation), State of Iowa contribution of
$2,816 per year (approximately |.63 percent of earnable compensation), and cities contribute the amount actuarially
determined necessary to fund the benefits in accordance with accepted actuarial methods but not less than 17 percent
of earnable compensation of the active members. Cities which are at the $8.10 peneral levy maximum fund pension
contributions from the Trust and Agency property tax levy. In 1999 the actuarially-determined City contribution
rate was 11.12 percent. Since the minimum contribution rate established by statute was 17 percent, a margin of 5.88
percent was reported. This was at a time when investment returns were outstanding (and non-recurring). Police

, officers and firefighters requested that the State Legislature increase pension benefits. Cities through the Iowa
League of Cities requested that the State Legislature decrease City contributions and provide a property tax
reduction. The Legislature increased pension benefits in 2000. The actuarially-determined City contribution rate
increased from 17 percent to 20.48 percent, 24.92 percent, and 28.21 percent for fiscal years 2004, 2005, and 2006,
respectively. The increases were primarily the result of the pension benefit increase passed by the 2000 State
Legislature and recent poor investment returns (losses) which are spread over a four-year period. As a result, the
City's police and fire pension contribution has increased $1,700 annually. The City's contribution rate for FY 2007
was 27.75 percent, 25.48 percent for FY 2008, 18.75 percent for FY 2009, 17 percent for FY 2010 and 19.9% for
FY2011. The FY2012 contribution rate is 24.76% and with the poorly performing market will likely continue o
increase and will have a direct impact on future budgets.

Total employee benefit health claims increased 13.5 percent during FY 2007, decreased 18.9 percent for FY 2008;
increased 15 percent for FY 2009, increased 1.7% for FY 2010 and decreased 8.9% for FY2011. The City’s
contribution to the Employee Health Insurance Fund for the majority of its employees (General Fund employees) is
finunced by the unlimited Trust and Agency property tax levy. Approximately 60 percent of the City’s employees
are represented by five different bargaining units {American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees,
Fire, Police, Teamsters and Transit). At issue during recent negotiations has been wages and cost-sharing related 1o
health benefits. During negotiations for FY 2010 through 2012, the City sought and received additional increases in
employee monthly premiums from all employees. Also, these negotiations with all bargaining units resulted in three
year settlements with all groups. General wage increases 3 percent for each year of the agreements.

For the future, plans to enable the City to continue to adopt balanced budgets include: continued use of the
unlimited levies for employee benefits (Trust and Apency) and property and liability insurance and claims {Tort);
consideration of a natural gas franchise utility fee to further diversify revenue; the City has a strong record of
implementing expenditure reductions and introducing efficiencies in order to balance General Fund budgets and
current efforts/projects include a technology assessment, and the consolidated dispatch project with Scott County,
EMS Medic and the City of Bettendorf,

Requests for Information
This {inancial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Davenport's tinances for all those with
an interest in the City's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for

additional financial information should be addressed to: Alan E. Guard, Chief Financial Officer, City of Davenport,
226 West Fourth Street, Davenport, TA 52801.
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CITY OF DAVENPORT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2011
GOVERNMENTAL BUSIMESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
ASSETS
Current assets:
Unrestricted current assets:
Cash and investmeints b - b 670,858 670,858
Delinguent property taxes receivable 1055436 45,028 1,100,464
Suocceeding year properly laxes receivable 60,603,689 3482543 64,086,332
Other taxes receivable 3,191,824 - 3,191,824
Special assessments 1095232 - 1,095,232
Accounts receivable 4,138,217 7,586,065 11,724,282
Accrued interest receivable - 37,576 37576
Internal balances 6,591,047 (6,591 ,047) .
[Due from other governments 4,721 626 432418 5,154,044
Inventory . 27,783 27,783
Prepad items 232,736 5,020 237,756
Loans receivable 10,827 981 - 10,827 981
Total unrestricted curment assels 92457788 5,606,344 08,154,132
Restricted current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 45011 - 45,001
Total current assels 592,502,799 5606344 58,199,143
MNoncurrent assels:
Deferred charge-issuance cost 424 600 177,727 402,327
Investment in joint venture . 473,910 473,810
Loans receivable 11,794,829 - 11,794,829
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 15,870,851 20,077,627 35,948,478
Capital assets;
Lamicl 18,724,432 11,190,268 29,914,700
Buildmgs 99,609,142 93,865,067 195,474,209
Improvements other than buildings 26,689,362 11,583,074 38,272,436
Sanitary sewers 66,640,916 66,649,916
Equipment and vehicles 36,765,380 31,042,540 67,807,920
Bridges 4,975.990 - 4,975,990
Traffic signals 7,774,259 4 7,774,259
Storm sewers - 19,468,594 19,468,504
Streets and roads 178,905,656 222,172 179,131,828
Seawalls 622467 - 622467
Tunnclks 34326 - 34324
Construction in progress 14,253,149 18,403,562 32,656,731
Accumulaied depreciation (123,314,087} {113,007.93%) (236,322,026}
Total capital assets 265,064,076 141,417,274 406,481,350
Total noncurrent a2ssels 293,154,356 162,146,538 455,300,854
Total assels b 385,657,155 3 167,842,882 353,500,037
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LIABILITIES

Liabilities:
Current liabilities;
Checks written in excess of bank balances
Accounts payable
Coniracts payable
Accrued wages payable
Accrued compensated sbsences
Claims and judgments
Due Lo other governments
Accrued interest payable
General obligation honds payable
Uneamed revenue:
Succeeding year property tax
Other
Toial

Current linbilities payable from restricted assets:
Accounts paysble
Deposits payable
Moes payable
Toral corrent liabilities payable from restricied asscts
Total current liabilitics

Moncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensaied absences
Other postentployment benefits
Mote payable
General obligation bonds payable
Special assessment with government commitment
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total linhilities
NET ASSETS (DEFICITS)

Invested in capital assets, net of related debi
Restricted:
Employes benefits
Tort Liability
Local option sales tax
Library
Police seizure
Debt retirement
Community development act
Mumicipal improvement districts
Revolving loans
Section 8
Home investment pastnership projects
Leves improvement commission projects
Ecuipment replacement
Unrestricted (deficit)
Total net assels

The nates 1o the financial stalements are an infegral pan of this stalement,

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
5 2,331,418 $ - $ 2,371,418
5.991,546 633,063 6,624,609
1,517,849 . 1,517,849
2,938,333 652,632 3,590,965
4,321,191 582,616 4,903,307
6,021,282 - 6,021,282
395 . 395
490,701 102,000 592,701
16,184,350 2,295,650 1EAR0,000
60,603,689 3482643 64,086,332
9.766,792 9,012 9,805,804
110,167,546 7781616 117,955,162
45011 4 45,011
K 667,040 667,040
- 202,000 202,000
45011 69,040 014,051
110,212,557 8.656,656 118,869,213
691,792 93,274 785,066
1,500,233 333,955 1,834,188
. 2,798,000 9,758,000
136,200,726 22,634,688 158,844,414
1,095,233 - 1,095,233
133,406,984 32,859,017 172,356,901
249,709,541 41,516,573 191,226,114
126,691 668 123,757,219 250,448,887
1,206,132 . 1,206,132
1,649,892 . 1,649,892
2,769,353 - 2,769,353
676,788 “ 676,788
351,122 - 351,122
3,858,815 . 3,858,815
77,215 - 77215
752,125 . 752,125
563,827 563,827
334933 % 334,933
4,322 - 4322
494,928 - 484,928
- 3,849,157 3,849,157
{3.483,506) (1,280,067 (4.763,573)
5 135,947,614 3 126,326,309 5 262,373,923
15



IT YENPORT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
PROGRAM REVENUES
CHARGES FOR OFERATING CAPITAL
SALES AND GRANTS AND GRANTS AND
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS  CONTRIBUTIONS
Governmental activities;
Public safety 5 42,049,042 % 4272343 § ,212921 % 2,140,750
Public works 43,599,123 2,938,022 9,473,464 16,229,837
Culture and recreation 13,674,184 1,698,503 50,621 1,662,470
Community and economic development 14,880,835 630,293 8,268,917 -
General government 9,914,196 3,401,763 63,625
Interest on long-term debt 6,489,039 - - -
Total governmental activities 130,606,419 12,940,924 19,069,548 20,033,057
Business-type activities:
Parking system 2,080,257 1,399,623 - 1,031,470
Sewer operations 15,506,121 14,177,170 - 5,066,407
Rivercenter 2,616,467 1,327.314 - 273314
Public transit 5,866,989 506,706 1,017,996 3,800
Public housing 1,045,905 415,874 630,567 61,938
Golf courses 2,072,059 1,875,575 - 5.161
Airport 578,765 179,002 5,556 1,491,564
Solid waste 5,049,222 4,552,794 - 682,139
Clean water 2,185,141 1,788,322 - 1,724,268
Riversedge 1,087,614 255,061 - 323,864
Total business-type activities 38,088,540 26,517,441 1,654,119 10,663,923
Total government § 168,694,059  § 39458365 % ’20!?23‘6157 5 Miﬁ%};‘&ﬂ

General Revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purpases
Property taxes, levied for debt service
Property taxes, levied for public transit
Local option sales tax
Hotel/motel tax
Franchise taxes

Investment eamings
Gain on sale of capital assets
Miscellaneous
Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net assets
MNet assets, beginning, as restated
Met assets, ending

The notes 1o the firancial stalements are an integral pan of this statement.
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MNET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

GOVERNMENTAL BUSIMESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
b3 (34,423,028) b b (34,423,028)
(14,957,800) (14,957,800}
(10,262,590} - (10,262,590)
(5,981.625) - (5,981,625)
(6,448,808) (6,448 808)
(6,489,039) (6,489,035}
(78.562,850) (78,562.890)
- 350,836 350,836
- 3,737,456 3,737 456
- (1,015,839} (1,015,839)
(4,338,487 (4,333.,487)
62,472 62,472
(191,323) (191,323)
1,087,357 1,097,357
225,711 225,711
1,327,449 1,327 449
- (508.68%) (508,689)
- 746,943 746,943
(78,562,890) 746,943 (77,815,947}
48,919,572 - 48,919,572
10,439,825 - 10,439,825
3,376,227 3376.227
14,934,103 - 14,934,103
1,834,327 - 1,834,327
2,878,172 - 2,878,172
1,014,156 658,157 1,672,313
728,358 728,558
58,419 362,652 421,071
1.128.264 (1,128,264) -
#1,935,396 3,268,772 85,204,168
3,372,506 4,015,715 7,388,221
132,575,108 122.310.5%4 254,885,702
5 135,947,614 b 126,326,309 ] 262,273,923
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LILY OF DAYVENPORT

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2011
LOCAL
OPTION GENERAL
GENERAL SALES TAX DEET SERVICE
ASSETS FUND FUND FUND
Cash and investments $ - 3 - 3 -
Recejvables:
Property taxes:
Delinquent 851,414 i 118,978
Succeeding year 49,247 063 - 6,911,326
Other taxes 814,377 2,377,447 -
Accounts 950,293 26,943 169,961
Special assessments - 3,486 1,091,746
Loans 8,245,000 2,368,413 -
Interfund receivable 10,756,257 - 9,671,468
Due from other governments 349,530 -
Prepaids 17,069 -
Restricted assets-cash and investments - - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 71,231,003 § 5,276,289 3 17963479
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
{DEFICITS)
LIABILITIES:
Wages payable ¥ 2407233 % 99,751 3 -
Accounts payable 967,364 137,134 36,715
Contracts payable - - -
Payable from restricted assets - - -
Interfund payable 8,245,000 2,267,524 6,759,404
Due to other governments - - -
Deferred/unearned revenue:
Succeeding year property tax 49,247.063 - 6,911,326
Other 519,363 2,527 1,093,087
Matured bonds payable . - 20,000
Matured interest payable - - 3,381
Total Liabilities 61,386,023 2,506,936 14,823,913
FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable 17,069 - -
Restricted 3,883,934 2,769,353 3,139,566
Committed - -
Assigned 551.836 =
Unassigned (Deficit) 5,392,141 B :
Total Fund Balances 9.844.980 2,769,353 3,139,566
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES & 71,231,003 5 552?6.239 $ 17963479

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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~TOTAL

19

CAPITAL NON-MAJOR TOTAL
PROJECTS GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUNDS FUNDS
F 7417204 $ 2,865,198 3 10,282 402
85,044 1,055,436
4,445,300 60,603,689
- - 3,191,824
1,798,126 16,910 2,962,233
- - 1,095,232
- 11,509,397 22622810
4,646,742 - 25,074,467
2,368,592 2,003,504 4,721,626
- . 17,069
5 45,011 45011
$ 16,230,664 5 20,970,364 5 131,671,799
L3 23,829 3 332,929 5 2,863,742
4,216,921 558,941 5,917,075
1,517,849 . 1,517,849
- 45,011 45,011
1,459,440 18,731,368
395 3905
- 4,445,300 60,603,689
4,002,330 12,217,263 17,834,570
- - 20,000
- - 3,381
9,760,929 19,059,279 107,537,080
- - 17,069
6,469,735 1,887,844 18,150,432
e 1,058,755 1,058,755
551,836
. (1,035,514) 4,356,627
6,469,735 1,911,085 24,134,719
§ 16,230,664 g 20,970,364 5 131,671,799
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CITY OF DAVENPORT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

Total governmental fund balances

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net assels are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures are reported
as deferred in governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain services

to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included
in governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

Internal service funds activities allocated to business-type activities

Deterred charges

Long-term liabilities including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Accrued employee benefits

Accrued interest payable

General Obligation bonds payable and special assessments
Other post employment benefits

Net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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§ 24,134,719

261,031,881

8,067,778

2,342,984

247,948

424,600

(4,886,215)
(487,320)
(153,469,309)
(1,459,452)

(160,302,296)

$ 135,947,614



DAVE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

REVENUES:

Taxes

Special assessments
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of monics and property
Fines and forfeits
Loan repayments
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development
General government
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest
Bond issuance costs
Total Expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond issuance

Discount on debt jssued

Premium on debt issued

Sale of capital assets

Transfers in

Transfers out

Refunding bond issuance

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

MNET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) -BEGINNING

AS RESTATED

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

The notes to tha financial statements are an integral part of this statpment.

LOCAL GENERAL
QPTION DEBT CAPITAL
GENERAL SALES TAX SERVICE PROJECTS
FUND FUMD FUND FUND
£52,161.906 § 14,934,103 § 6,705.680 5 %
- 31,994 125,689 -
1,190,329 - - -
1,281,952 - - 10,671,295
4,016,517 130,025 - -
238,906 97187 276,051 84,050
1,967,004 - - -
0 - - 86,240
401,103 - 1,161,569 1,847,338
61,257,717 15,193,300 8,268,989 12,688,524
38,124,033 603,041 -
4,983,371 1,451,122 -

11,068,513 333,776 = 5
1,158,863 281,380 804,101 -
1.928,277 115,436 4,45] .

- - - 35,710,271

- - 15,252,975 g

- = 5,333,079 -

= - 49.370 100,685
63,263,057 2,788,755 21443976 35810956
{2,005,340) 12,404,554 13,174,987y _ 123,122.032)

- - - 25,299,250

- - 1,314,689 -

15,801 58,957 225,000 415,000
2,319,231 - 9,281,370 4,702,364
(906,912} (13,565,673 - (320.5908)

- - 3,687,250 -

- - (3,280.000)

1,428.120 (13,506.716) 10,628,309 30.095,706
(577,220 (1,102,162) (2,546,678) 6,973,674
10,422,200 3871515 5,680,244 {503,939)

5 9,844,980 F 2,769,353 F 3.139.566 $ 6.469.735
_———————nee— —_—— ——————— ST




TOTAL

MNON-MAJOR TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS FUNDS

b 4,929,031 5 78,730,720

- 157,683

48,330 1,238 659

19,378,760 31,332,008

- 4,146,542

317.962 1,014,156

» 1,967,004

753,459 839,699

1,109,400 4519410

26,536,942 123,545 881

408,627 39,137,701

10,638,558 17.073,051

B8L376 11,485,665

11,579,653 13,823,997

129,866 8,178,030

. 35710271

1,818,600 17,071,575

900,770 6,233,849

- 150.055

25,557,450 148,864,194
079,442 (24.918313)

- 25,299,250

62,441 1,377,130

13,800 728,558

720,810 17,023,775
{430,837) (15,224,330}

- 3,687,250
- (3,880,000

366,214 29.011.633

1,345,706 4,093,320

565,379 20,041,399

3 1,911,085 b 24,134,719
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CITY OF DAVENPORT, IOWA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUE,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Amounts reported for govermnmental activities in the statemenl of activities are
different because:

Met change in fund balances: total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statemant of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. The following is the detall of the
amount by which capital cutlay exceseded depreciation in the current period.

Capital Expenditures
Depreciation

The following is the detail of various miscellaneous transactions involving
capital assets which elfect the increase/decrease in assels in the currant period.

Donations
Proceeds from sale of capital assels
Gain on sale of capital asset

Revenues In the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

The issuance of long-term debt (bonds) provides current financial resources to
govemmental funds, while the repayment of the principal on long-lerm debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmenial funds, Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, govarnmental funds
report the effect of issuance costs, discounts, and similar ilems when debt is

first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amaortized in the statlement

of activities. In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding bonds,
whereas in the governmental funds interest expenditures are reporled when due.
The following is the detail of the net eftect of these differences in the treatment of
long-term debt and related itemns.

General obligation bonds issued
Repayment of bond principal
Deferred charges

Interest

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therafore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Internal services funds are used by management ta charge the costs of varous
activities internally to individual funds. The net income of cenain activities of
internal service funds is reported with governmentai activities.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an inlegral par of thiz statement
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4,093,320

13,985,457
{12,448,180)

1,537,268

0,288 466
(728,558)
346,508

8906418

{1.112,244)

(30,223,454)
20,735,465
(29,201)
248

(9.516,942)

(1,004,676)

468,364

3
=

3,372,506




¥ UP LAY

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2011
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -
PARKING SEWER
ASSETS SYSTEM OPERATIONS
Curreni assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 - -
Receivables:
Property taxes:
Delinquent - -
Succeeding year - -
Accounts - 4,409,365
Interest 37,576 -
Due from other governments 245,705
Inventory
Prepaids - -
Total current gssets i7.576 4655070
Moncurrent assets:
Deferred charges - 169,109
Investment in joint venturs - -
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 19,406,678
Capilal assets:
Land 1,647368 779,435
Buildings 26,238,949 35,199,152
Improvements other than buildings 50,384 141,111
Sanitary sewers - 66,649,916
Equipment and vehicles 646,620 17,686,886
Streets and roads - .
Storm sewers - -
Less accumuliated depreciation (8,125.606) (63,935,353}
Construction in progress 1,031,464 13,397,946
Total noncurrent assels 23,489,004 89,454,880
Total assets 23,526,670 94,149,950
LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilithes:
Wages payable 21,486 263,564
Accounts payable 20,956 127,614
Accrued interest payable 20,284 T6.577
Compensaled absences 13,666 326,701
Claims and judgments = -
Interfund loans payable 16,327 4,498,998
Dreferred revenuve:
Succeeding year property lax - -
Other - -
Mote payable - current 202,000
Ceneral obligation bonds - current 598,600 1,511,550
Deposits payable - 634,619
Total current labilities 621,319 7,641,623
Meoncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 2188 52,303
Other postemployment benefits 12,051 140,755
Mote payable - 9,795,000
General obligation bonds -long term 7,070,748 14,194,002
Total noncurrent liabilities 7,084,987 24,185,150
Total liabilities 7,776,306 31,826,773
NET ASSETS
Lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt 15,819,746 60,845,206
Restricted for equipment replacement - 3,840,157
Unrestricted (deficit) (69,381} (2,371,186)
Todal net assels 5 15,750.364 3 62&?.3, 177
26

The notes to the financial stalements are an integral pan of this statement



ENTERFRISE FUNDS

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL
NON-MAJOR TOTAL ACTIVITIES -
CLEAN ENTERPRISE ENTERPRISE INTERNAL SERVICE
RIVERCENTER WATER FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS
5 5 279,037 5 391,821 b3 670,858 5 3,257,031
- " 45,028 45,028 -
. . 3,482,643 3,482,643 -
706,701 557,679 1,912,320 7,586,065 1,175,984
: = - 37.576 -
z ) 186,713 432,418 -
27,783 27,783
5,020 - - 5,020 215,667
739,504 836,716 6,018,525 12,287,391 4,648,682
4 2254 6,364 177727 .
y H 473,910 473,910 -
- 638,528 32,421 20,077,627 -
2,472,550 144,078 4,146,837 11,190,268 -
18,572,967 - 15,853,999 95,865,067 :
59,147 187,500 11,144,923 11,583,074 2,479,564
- 66,649,916 -
461,132 1,311,305 10,936,597 31,042,540 3,769,586
84,121 - 138,051 222,172 .
- 19,468,594 - 19,468,594 i
(9,415,367) (9,119.016) (22.412,507) (113,007,939) (2,166,955)
213,751 1,737,912 2,022,504 18,403,582 -
12,448,301 14,371,164 22,343,099 162,146,538 4,032,195
13,187,805 15,207 830 28,361,624 174,433,929 2,680,877
2,127 39,505 325,950 652,632 74,591
91,821 31,869 360,803 633,063 74,471
1,99] 3,148 102,000 -
1,660 35,442 205,147 582,616 109,274
2 = . 6,021,282
166,908 2,001 1,658,775 6,343,009 -
_ - 3,482,643 3,482,643 -
36,627 . 2385 39,012
202,000
) 40,000 145,500 2,295,650 .
= 32,421 667,040 -
299,233 150,808 6,216,772 14,999,755 6,279,618
266 5.674 32,843 03,274 17,494
1,234 20,426 159,480 333,955 40,781
- - - 9,708,000 .
- 626,938 742,910 22,634,688 .
1,500 653,038 935,242 32,859,917 58,275
300,733 803,846 7,152,014 47,859,672 6,337,893
12,448,301 13,701,972 20,941,994 123,757.219 4,032,195
2 - - 3,849,157 .
438,771 702,062 267,616 (1.032,119) (1,689,211)
3 12,887,072 5 14,404,034 5 21,209,610 $ 126,574,257 5 2.342.984
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CITY OF DAVENPORT

RECONCILIATION OF ENTERPRISE FUNDS NET ASSETS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

Total enterprise funds net assets 3 126,574,257

Amounts reported for enterprise activities in the statement of
net assets are different because:

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs
of certain services to individual funds. Adjustments to reflect the
consolidation of internal service fund activities related to

enterprise funds. 181,806

Adjustments fo reflect the consolidation of prior years internal

service fund activities related to enterprise funds. (429,754}
Met assets of business-type activities $ 126,326,309

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF DAVENPORT

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -
PARKING SEWER
SYSTEM OPERATIONS RIVERCENTER
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services F  1,265.454 514,177,170 5 1,327.314
Fines and forfeits 134,169 - .
Other 15.232 01,319 146,887
Total Operating Revenues 1414855 14,268,989 1,474,201
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Employee expenses 502,313 5,776,299 46,634
Supplies and services 628,555 6,069,301 2,058,532
Depreciation 716,422 3,253,355 507,529
Total Operating Expenses 1.847.260 15,098,955 2,612,695
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) {432,435) (825.966) (1,138,494
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Taxes - -
Operating grants 3 .
Use of monies and property 16,587 111,088 -
Interest expense (239,867 (5148500 -
Gain (loss) on disposition of capital assets - (7,280)
Joint venture adjustment - - -
Total Mon-operating Revenues (Expenses) {223,280} {411,042 -
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND
TRANSFERS {655,715) (1,241,008) {1,138,494)
Capital contributions 1,031,470 5,066,407 273,314
Transfers in - - 630,965
Transfers out = (576,486) -
Change in net assets 375,755 3,248,913 (234,215)
Total net assets - beginning 15,374,609 59.074,264 13,121,287
Total net assets - ending 15,750,364 § 62323177 $ 12,387.072
e ———— e T

The notes 1o the financial statements are 2n integral part of this statement.
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL
NON-MAJOR TOTAL ACTIVITIES-
CLEAN ENTERPRISE EMTERFPRISE INTERNAL
WATER FUNDS FUNDS SERVICE FUNDS
§ |, 788322 5 7,822,906 £ 26381166 b 17,277,455
- = i 3‘1‘: | ﬁg T
- 108,714 362,652 1,142,776
1,788,322 7.931.620 26,877,987 18,420,231
880,279 6,709,632 13,924,157 1,785,714
552,683 7,164,003 16,473,074 16,040,290
759,424 1,746,388 6,983,118 404,755
2,201,385 15,620,023 37,380,349 18,230,759
{413,064) {7,688.403) {10,502,362) 189.472
- 3,376,227 3,376,227 =
- 1,654,119 1,654,119 -
9,032 521,450 638,157 18,982
(20.483) {734,200 2
(3473 (78,356) {89,109
- (14,582} {14,582) -
5,559 5429375 4,800,612 18,982
(407,505) (2,259,028) (5,701,750} 208.454
1,724,268 2,559,645 10,655,104 1,122,716
- 630,965 -
{603,114) {370,810) i1, 750,410} {580,000)
713,649 (270,193) 3,833,909 631,170
13,690,385 21,479,803 122,740,348 1,691 814
T 14,404,034 £ 21.209.610 £ 126,574,257 Z 2,342,984
—_— —_— e =LA i
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CITY OF DAVENPORT, IOWA

RECONCILIATION OF THE CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF
ENTERPRISE FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Net change in net assets in enterprise funds $ 3,833,909

Amounts reported for proprietary activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of various
activities internally to individual funds. Adjustment to reflect the consolidation

of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds, 181,806
Change in net assets of business-type activities g 4,015.715
—_—————

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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F DAVEN

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from users
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid o employees for services
Other operating revenue
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating
Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayments 1o other funds
Advances from other funds
Operating granis
Property tax
Transfers in
Transfers out
Met Cash Provided by (Used for) Non-Capital
Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from general obligation bonds
Proceeds from loan
Refunding discountfissue costs and premiums
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on long-term debt
[nterest paid on long-term debn
Deposits-other municipalities
Refunding bond proceeds
Payment to refunding bond escrow agent
Refunding issuc costs
Met Cash Provided by {Used for) Capital and
Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest and other investment income
Met Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash
Equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-BEGINNING

CASH AND CASH EQUIV ALENTS-ENDING

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -

PARKING SEWER
SYSTEM OPERATIONS
1428732 £ 13547228
(621,372) (6,107 451)
(4%06,058) (3.603,1800
15,232 01,819
326,534 1.928.416
= (2,376,932)
16,327 4,498,998
(576,486)
16,327 1,545,580
- 7.04%,000
E 8,230,802
1,237 394,739
(30,383) {3,255,953)
(552,950) (1,642,475)
(242.967) (474,710}
- (144,698}
. 2.317,750
- {2.317,750)
{845,063} 8,156,699
16,515 111,643
{485,387 11,742,338
485,387 7.664.340
£ - 5 19.406.678




ENTERPRISE FUNDS

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL
MNON-MAJOR ACTIVITIES-
ENTERPRISE TOTAL ENTERPRISE INTERMAL
RIVERCENTER CLEANWATER FUNDS FUNDS SERVICE FUNDS
1,076,499 § 1758010 b3 8,302 877 5 26,113,346 ¥ 16,222,659
2,043,629) (539,195) (7.140,002) (16.451.649) (16,515411)
(46,185) (860,655} 6,542,196} (13,548,274) (1,750,789)
146,887 - 108,714 362,652 1,142,776
(866,428} 358160 {5.270.607) {3,523,925) _{D00,765)
- (56,983) (1,430,416) (3.864.331)
166,998 2,001 1,658,775 6,343,009
- - 1654119 1,654,119 -
- 3.376,227 3,376,227
630,965 - . 630,965 -
- (603.114) (5708100 (1,750,410) {680,000
797,963 (658,096} 4,687,895 6,380,669 (630,000}
" 692,000 512,000 8,253,000 -
- - - 8,230,802
19,684 15,582 431,242
- 2.203 8,203
(413.427) (107,980} (6,427,743)
(47,0000 (151,000) (2,393.425)
- (27.682) {745,365} -
- - - {144,608)
2,317,750 -
(2.317.750)
251,257 {350,877 7.212.016
- 11,142 521,521 661,121 19,516
(68,465} (37,537) (412,068) 10,738,881 (1,561.249)
68,465 955,102 836,310 10,009,604 4.818.280
£ - b 917.565 b 424,242 3 20,748,485 b 3,257,031
——————e— _——me————— =T - s T
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CITY OF DAVENPORT

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED}
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO

NET CASH PROVIDED BY {USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments 1o Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease {increase) in accounts receivable
Decrease in due from other governments
Decrease (increase) in inventory end prepaids
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase in ather accrued liabilities
Increase in other deferred revenue
Total Adjustments

MET CASH PROVIDED BY ( USED FOR) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of capiral assets

Contribution of capital assets by municipality

Contribution of capital assets by subdividers

Contribution of capital assers by state and federal governments
Contribution by other

36

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -
PARKING SEWER
SYSTEM OPERATIONS
S (432.435) $ _ (B20,966)

716,422 3,253,355

29,109 (629,942)

7,183 (38,150)

6,255 173,119

758,969 7,758,382
$ 326,534 $ 1928416
$ 1031470 $ 5,066,407
(1,031,470) .

. (364,288)
: (4.317,287)
; (384,832)



ENTERPRISE FUNDS
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TOTAL GOVER AL
NON-MAJOR ACTIVITIES-
ENTERPRISE TOTAL ENTERPRISE INTERNAL
RIVERCENTER CLEANWATER FUNDS FUNDS SERVICE FUNDS
§  {1,138,494) $ (413,064) $  (7.688.403) $ (10,502,362 s 189.472
507,529 759,424 1,746,388 6,983,118 404,755
{260,799) (30,312) (46,428) (938,372) (1,054,796)
- - 526,399 526,399 ;
(24,075) = . (24,075) 11,711
38,978 13,488 24,001 45,500 (436,832)
449 28,624 167,436 375,883 34,925
9,984 ] : 9.984 )
272.066 T1L.224 2.417,796 6078437 (1,090,237
§  (866.428) $ 358,160 $ _ (5.270.607) $ (3,523,925) s (900.765)
$ 273314 $ 1,724,268 $ 2,559,645 $ 10,655,104 $ 1,122,716
(273,314) (538,385) (3,800) (1,846,969 (1.122,716)
. (351,672) (2,510,273) (3.226,233) ;
i (43,247) (45,572) (4,406,106)
(790,964} - (1,175.796)



CITY OF DAVENPORT

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
June 30, 2011
AGENCY
FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 351,807
Total assets $ 351,807
—_——
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3 4,868
Due to other governments 346,939
Total lizbilities $ 351,807
_—————

The notes 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

38




CITY OF DAVENFORT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2011

L
A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity

The City of Davenport, lowa, was incorporated in 1836 and is one of the few remaining special charter cities in
lowa. The General Assembly of Iowa in 1851 adopted a special charter of the City and with subsequent
amendments adopted by the General Assembly in 1853, 1855 and 1857, the charter has remained unchanged to
this date. Subsequent changes to the laws of the Siate of lowa affecting cities under special charter have been
made from time to time and are now codified in Chapter 420, Code of lowa. The form of City government is
Mayor-Council, utilizing a professional City Administrator. The City of Davenport provides a wide variety of
public services through eleven professionally staffed depariments and the office of the City Administrator,
including public safety (police and fire}, sireets, sewers and bridges, garbage and refuse collection, sewage
treatment, culture-recreation, mass transportation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general
administrative services.

These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP) that apply to governmental units, All funds created under the authority of
the State Code of Iowa, the operations of which are under the conirol of the City’s governing body required by
financial reporting standards for governmental units, are included herewith.

The City of Davenport has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable,
and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the City are such that
exclusion would cause the City's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability. These
criteria include appointing a voting majority of an organizalion's governing body, and (1) the ability of the City to
impose its will on that organization or (2} the potential for the organization to provide specific benefits to, or
impose specific financial burdens on, the City.

The City of Davenport does not have any ¢component units required to be reported within the City’s reporting
entity.

Joint Venture — the City is a participant in a joint venture agreement (Quad-City Garage Policy Group) with
Metrolink for the operation of a garage and maintenance facility used by the transit programs of each entity. The
City maintains a |12% interest in the venture with Metrolink maintaining the remaining 88%. Funding of the
maintenance operation is achieved through allocation of expenditures between the City and Metrolink based upon

usage.

Operations are reimbursed on a break-even basis, the City providing approximately 25% and Metrolink providing
75% for the year. The City paid $1,415,995 in mainienance fees during the year. The City’s interest in the joint
venture is accounted for under the equity method in the Transit enterprise fund (Note 8). Financial statlements of
the Quad-City Garage Policy Group may be obiained from the entity’s administrative office at 2929 5" Avenue,
Rock Island, IL 61201,

v t-wide an inancial

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report
information on all of the non-fduciary activities of the City. For the most part, the effect of inter-fund activity
has been removed from these statements, other than interfund services provided and used. Any direct expenses
have not been eliminated and interfund services provided and used are shown as program revenue (for example,
charges for services in the sewer fund by all other funds), Governmental activities, which normally are supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-lype activities, which rely 1o a
significant extent on fees and charges for services.

The statement of net assets presents the City's non-fiduciary assets and liabilities, with the difference reported as
net assels.
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CITY AV

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 (CONTINUED)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree 1o which the direct expenses of a given function are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program
revenues include (1) charges 1o customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods,
services, of privileges provided by a given function and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted o meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular function, Taxes and other items not properly included
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues,

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, propriety funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial siatements.

C. Fund in

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds each of which is considered to be a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing
accounts which comprise its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund balances/net assets, revenues and expenditures or
expenses, as appropriate. Major individual governmental and proprietary funds are reported as separate columns
in the fund financial statements. All remaining governmental and proprietary funds are aggregated and reported
as non-major governmental and proprietary funds, The City has the following funds:

(1) Governmental Fund Types

Governmental fund types are those funds through which most governmental functions of the city are
financed. The acquisition, vse and balances of the City's expendable financial resources and the related
liabilities (except those accounted for in Proprietary Funds) are accounted for through Governmental funds,
The measurement focus is upon determination of changes in financial position, rather than upon net income
determination. The following comprise the City’s major governmental funds:

{a) General Fund

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. [t is used to account for all financial
resources except those required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in
another fund.

(b) Local Option Sales Tax Fund

The Local Option Sales Tax Fund is a special revenue fund, which accounts for revenue received
from a 1% sales tax, o be used for property tax relief and public improvements.

{c) General Debt Service Fund

The General Debt Service Fund is a debt service fund which accounts for the accumulation of
resources for and the payment of principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt from
governmental resources and principal and inlerest on special assessment debt with governmental
commitment from special assessment levies. The City levies an annual property tax, which is
unlimited by law, to finance the debt service requirements not abated by special assessments.

(d) Capital Projects Fund

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the resources used for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities, except those financed by Proprietary Funds.



CITY OF DAVENPORT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 34, 2011 (CONTINUED}

(2) Proprietary Fund Types

Proprietary fund types are used to account for the City's ongoing organizations and activities, which are
similar 1o those ofien found in the private sector. The measurement focus is upon determination of net
income. The City applies only the applicable Financial Accounting Board guidance issued prior to November
30, 1989, which do not conflict with Governmental Accounting Standards Board statements, in accounting
and reporting its enterprise operations.

Enterprise funds are used to finance and account for the acquisition, operation, and maintenance of the City's
facilities and services, which are supported primarily by user charges. The following comprise the City's major
enterprise funds:

{a)

Parking System Fund - Accounts for revenue and expenses associated with the City’s parking system,
which provides both on-street and off-street parking.

(b) Sewer Operatiens Fund — Accounts for revenue and expenses of the system responsible for collecting and

(e}

(d)

treating the wastewater of the Cities of Davenport, Bettendorf, Riverdale, and Panorama Park. Davenport
accurmnulates the costs of operations, construction, and equipment replacement, and bills the other cities
monthly for their portion of such costs based on an actual usage percentage calculated annually.

RiverCenter Fund — Accounts for rental income and expenses associated with the operation of a 57,000
square foot conference, convention and trade show facility, This fund is a nonmajor fund but the City has
elected to report it as a major fund for public interest purposes.

Clean Water Fund - Accounts for revenue and expenses related 1o the operation and maintenance of the
storm water collection system including inspections, mapping, drainage maintenance, sireel sweeping and
other activities related to clean water activities. This fund is a nonmajor fund bt the City has elected w
report it as a major fund for public interest purposes.

Internal service funds are uvsed to finance and account for, employee insurance, risk management, and
information management services provided to other departments or agencies of the City, or 1o other governments,
on a cost reimbursement basis.

(3) Fiduciary Fund Types

Fiduciary fund types are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity under a formal trust
agreement or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds.
The following is the City's fiduciary fund type:

{a) Agency Funds

Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities), and do not involve the measurement of
resulis of operations. The agency funds function primarily as a clearing mechanism for cash resources,
which are collecied, held as such for brief period, and then disbursed to authorized recipients.

The City has 3 agency funds: Riverfront Task Force that accounts for donations toward the formulation
of a plan for riverfront development; Library Gifi that accounts for donations to the Davenport Public
Library and disbursements as authorized by the Library Board of Trustees and M.D. Petersen Memorial
that accounts for annual contributions from the Petersen estate and disbursements designated by the
Davenport Levee Improvement Commission,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2011 (CONTINUED)
. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reporied using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. The agency funds do not have a
measurement focus, as they record only assets and liabilities. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmenial fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered 1o be available when they are collectible within the curremt period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences, other post employment benefits and claims and judgments, are
recorded only when payment is due.

Property tax, local option sales tax, intergovernmental revenues and interest are considered to be susceptible to
accrual. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
City.

Licenses and permits, fines and forfeits, charges for services, and miscellancous revenues are generally recorded
as revenue when received in cash, because they are generally not measurable until actually received. In the
category of use of monies and property, property rentals are recorded as revenue when received in cash, but
investment earnings are recorded as earned, since they are measurable and available,

Amounis reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and {3) capital grants and contributions, including
special assessments, Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods in connection
with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues are charges for services.
The principal operaling expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operaling revenues
and expenses and include interest earnings and interest payments

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for uvse, it is the government's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unresiricted resources as they are needed.

Cash and Pooled Cash Investments

Except where otherwise required, the City maintains all deposits in a bank account in the name of the City. Cash
resources have been pooled in order to maximize investment opportunities. Income from invesiments purchased
with pooled cash is allocated to individual funds based on the fund's average cash balance and legal requirements.
Fund cash deficits, which represent current loans between funds, have been reported as interfund loans
receivable/payable,
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CITY OF DAVENPORT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2011 (CONTINUED)
E. Investments

G.

Investments in government agency securities are stated at fair value. Investments in the lowa Public Agency
Investment Trust are stated at amortized cost.

Statement of Cash Flows

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all liquid investments (including restricted
assets) with original maturities of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalenis.

Eroperty Tax Receivable

Property taxes, including tax increment financing, in governmental funds are accounted for using the modified
accrual basis of accounting.

Property tax receivable is recognized in these funds on the levy or lien date, which is the date the tax asking is
certified by the City to the County Board of Supervisors. Current year properly tax receivable represent laxes
collected by the County but not remitted to the City at June 30, 2011 and unpaid taxes. The succeeding year
property tax receivable represent taxes certified by the City to be collected in the next fiscal year for the purposes
set out in the budget for the next fiscal year. By statute, the City is required 1o certify 1ts budget to the County
Auditor by March 15 of each year for the subsequent fiscal year, However, by statute, the lax asking and budget
certification for the following fiscal year becomes effective on the first day of that year. Although the succeeding
year property tax receivable have been recorded, the related revenue is deferred in both the government-wide and
fund financial statements and will not be recognized as revenue until the year for which it is levied.

Property tax revenues recognized in these funds become due and collectible in September and March of the
current fiscal year with a 1%% per month penalty for delinquent payments; is based on January 1, 2009 assessed
property valuations; is for the tax accrual period July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2011 and reflects tax asking
contained in the budget certified to the County Board of Supervisors in March 2010,

The City is permitted by the Code of lowa ta levy taxes up to $8.10 per 1,000 of assessed valuation for General
Fund purposes, $.27 per $1,000 of assessed valuation for an Emergency Fund 1o assist in the funding of General
Fund activities, $.95 per 1,000 of assessed valuation for a mass transportation program and unlimited amounts
for the payment of principal and interest on general obligation bonds, judgments awarded against the City, trust
and agency accounts for pension and relaied employee benefits funds, and 1o pay the premium costs on tort
liability insurance. The combined tax rate for the collection year ended June 30, 2011 was $15.53 per $1,000 of
assessed valuation,

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable consist of 511,113,413 of short-term financing provided to companies that are beginning
operations. The remaining $11,509,397 of loans receivable are low- and no-interest loans. The City receives
federal funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development as part of the Community
Development Block Grant, which allows the City 1o provide loans at below-market-raies 1o eligible corporations
and individuals to finance urban and community development. Loans are carried at the amount of unpaid
principal. Management records allowances for estimated uncollectible amounts based on historic information and
review of outstanding amounts.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 (CONTINUED)

J icted Assels

If the use of monies received is Timited by City ordinance andfor contract provisions, they are reported as
restricted assets. Also, liabilities which are payable from restricted assets are reported as such. The following
assets are reported as restricted at June 30, 2011: unexpended general obligation bond proceeds and other funds
restricted to capital outlay of $14,892,311, deposits and equipment replacements of $4,514,367 in the Sewer
Enterprise Fund, $638,528 of unexpended bond proceeds in the Clean Water Enterprise Fund; security deposits of
$32,421 in the Public Housing Fund, and loan escrow payments of $45,011 in the Community Development Act
Special Revenue Fund. In governmental activities, there is also 315,870,851 of unexpended general obligation
proceeds restricted to capital outlay.

K. Capital Assets

Capital assets, including land, buildings, improvements, infrastruciure, and equipment, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statement and
proprietary fund financial statements, In the governmental funds capital assets (capital outlay) is reported as
expenditures and no depreciation is recognized. Generally, capital assets purchased in excess of 35,000 are
capitalized if they have an expected vseful life of one year or greater. Assets are recorded at historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value on the date donated.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Capital assets are depreciated vsing the straight-line method of depreciation over the following estimated useful

lives:

Buildings 40-50 years
Improvements 10-20 years
Equipment and vehicles 3-15 years
Sanitary sewers 40 years
Streets and roads 10-30 years
Storm sewers 30 years
Traffic signals 20-40 years

The City's collection of warks of art, library books and other similar assets are not capitalized. These collections
are unencumbered, held for public exhibition and education, protected, cared for and preserved and subject o a
City policy that requires proceeds from sale of these items to be used to acquire other collection items.

L. Deferred and Unearned Revenues

In the governmental funds, unearned revenues represent amounts due, which are measurable, but not available, or
grants and similar items received, but for which the City has not met all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider. Unearned revenue consists of delinquent property tax receivable and other receivables not collected
within sixty days after year end. In the statement of nel assets, government funds financial statements and
proprietary funds financial statements, unearned revenues and deferred revenues, respectively, represent the
deferral of property tax receivables which are levied for a future period and unearned grants.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2011 (CONTINUED)
M. nterfun

Interfund transactions that would be ireated as revenue and expenditures or expenses if they involved
organizations external to the City are similarly treated when involving other funds of the City. Major iransactions
that fall into this category include payments to the Sewer Fund for fees and payments to the Internal Service
Funds for costs of the City's insurance programs and data processing system.

Transfers from funds receiving revenue to funds through which the resources are to be expended and operating
loss subsidies are classified as transfers. Major wransactions that fall into this category include transfers from the
Local Option Sales Tax Fund to the General Debt Service Fund and the Capital Projects Fund and a transfer from
the General Fund to subsidize the operating loss of the RiverCenter Enterprise Fund.

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements at the end of the fiscal year are
referred to as “interfund payablesfreceivables.” Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental
activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal
balances.”

Compensated Absences

City employees earn vacation and sick leave based upon union contracts or City policy on an annual basis and are
credited with vacation and sick leave hours each payroll period. Vacation leave is fully vested when earned. In
general, except for Police and Fire personnel, 75% of accumulated sick leave in excess of 720 hours earned prior
to July 1, 1987 is vested vsing the employees’ hourly rate at July 1, 1987. For Police and Fire personnel hired
before July [, 1988, 75% of accumulated sick leave earned in excess of 720 hours is vested using the employees'
hourly rate at the time of termination. Employees are offered the option of accumulating overtime hours to be
taken as compensatory time off rather than being paid for them on a current basis; any amounts unused at time of
termination are also paid.

For government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types, these accumulations are recorded as
expenses and liabilities in the fiscal year earned. For governmental fund types, a liability for these amounts is
reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and
retirements.

Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assels invested in capital assets, net of
related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of
any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets, Met assets invested in
capital assets, net of related debt excludes unspent debt proceeds, Net assets are reported as restricted when there
are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments, Net assets are reported as
unrestricted when they do not meet the definition of the two preceding categories. Deficits will require fulure
funding. Unrestricted nel assets often have constraints on resources imposed by managemem which can be
removed or modified.
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Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial siatements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reporied as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well

as issuance cosis, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuwance costs are reported as
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund Lypes recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources, Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received and principal payments are reported as debt service expenditures.

Prepaids

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements,

Estimates

The preparation of financial stalements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses and other changes in net assets during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

CONTINGENCIES
Litigation

The City records liabilities resulting from claims and legal actions only when they become probable and
estimatable. There are several lawsuits pending against the City for various reasons. Liabilily insurance covers
many of the lawsuits for personal injury, property damage and civil rights violations presently pending against the
City. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, it is the opinion of management and
counsel that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the
City’s financial position,

Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject 10 audit and adjustment by grantor agencies,
principally the federal government.

Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constilute a liability of the applicable funds.

The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time
although City management and counsel expect such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
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3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
A, Deposits

Chapter 12C of the Code of Jowa requires that all City funds be deposited into an approved depository and either
insured or collateralized. At year-end, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was $34,225,028 and the bank
balances were $36,101,867. As of June 30, 2011, the City's deposits with financial institutions were entirely
covered by federal depository insurance or insured by the state through pooled collateral, state sinking funds and
by the state’s ability to assess for lost funds.

Investments

The City is authorized by statute to invest public funds in obligations of the United States government, its
agencies and instrumentalities, certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit at federally insured Towa
institutions approved by the City Council; prime eligible bankers accepiances, certain high rated commercial
paper; perfected repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end management invesiment companies; and state
and local securities,

Interest rate risk — the City’s investment policy limits the investment of operating funds in instruments that mature
within 397 days. Funds not identified as operating funds may be invested in investments with maturities longer
than 397 days but the maturities shall be consistent with the needs and use of the City.

Credit risk -~ Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. The City’s investment in the JTowa Public Agency Investment Trust is unrated.

Concentration of credit risk — The City's investment policy is to diversify its investment portfolio to eliminate the
risk of loss resulting from over concentration of assets in a specific malurity, a specific issuer or a specific class of
securities.  However, the City’s policy limits them from investing in prime bankers' acceptances, commercial
paper, other short-term corporate debt, open-end management investment company or Iowa Public Agency
Investment Trust of more than 10 percent of the investment portfolio or perfected repurchase agreements of more
than 25 percent of the investment portfolio and more than 5 percent of the invesiment portfolio with a single
issuer. In addition. no more than 5 percent of all amounts invested in commercial paper and other short-term
corporate debi shall be invested in paper and debt rated in the second highest classification. More than 5 percent
of the City's investments are in FHLB, FHLMC, FNMA and TPAIT. These securities represent 25 percent, 51
percent, |7 percent and 7 percent of the City's total investments, respectively.

Custodial credit risk ~ for an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
government will not be able to recover the value of its investments of collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The City’s investments were not insured but were held by a custodian in the name
of the City and not exposed (o custodial credit risk.

At June 30, 2011, the interest rate risk and credit risk of the City's investments are as follows:

Type Fair Value Maturities Credit Ratings
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) $1,500,000 July 8, 2011 AAA
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) 1,499,955 August 16, 2011 AAA
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) 1,499,820 Oetober 17, 2011 AAA
Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) 009,940 September 6, 2011 AAA

The City had investments in the Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust {IPATT} with maturity of | day, which are
valued at an amortized cost of $414,153 pursuant to Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act of 1940,
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4. FUND TRANSFER RECONCILIATION
The following is a schedule of wansfers in and out as included in the financial statements of the City.
Transfer in:
General Debt Capital MNon-major
General Service Projects governmental RiverCenter Total
Fund Fund Fund funds Fund transfer

Transfer out:
General Fund 3 - 3 - § 275,947 b3 - £ 630,965 3 906,912
Local Option

Sales Tax

Fund 500,000 8.960 462 4,030,211 75,000 - 13,565,673
Other non-major
governmental funds 34,631 - 396,206 - - 430,837
Capital Projects Fund 320,908 - - . 320,908
Sewer Fund 576,486 - - - - 576,486
Internal Service

Employee Health

Fund 680,000 - - - - 630,000
Clean Water

Fund 528,114 - - 75,000 - 603,114
Other non-major

enterprise funds = A L 570,810 . 570,810
Total transfer $2,319,23) $ 9281370 § 4,702.364 $ 720810 $ 630,965 317,654,740

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires collecting them to the fund
that statute or budget requires 1o expend them or (2) use unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to
finance various programs sccounted for in other governmental and proprietary funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations, The governmental activities contributed capital to the Parking System Fund, Sewer
Operations Fund, RiverCenter Fund, Clean Water Fund, Public Housing Fund, Golf Courses Fund, Airport Fund,
Public Transit Fund, Solid Waste Fund and River's Edge Fund.

B, INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
At June 30, 2011, interfund receivables and payables are summarized as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Local Option Sales Tax Fund 3 392,847
General Debt Service Fund 2,614,669
Non-major Governmental Funds 1,444 620
Sewer Fund 4,462,021
RiverCenter Fund 166,998
Parking System Fund 16,327
Mon-major Proprietary Funds 1,658,775
General Debt Service Local Option Sales Tax Fund 1,426,468
General 8,245,000
Capital Projects Sewer Fund 36,977
Clean Water Fund 2,001
MNon-major Governmental Funds 14,820
Local Option Sales Tax Fund 448,209
General Debt Service Fund 4,144,735
B 25074467

Interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that interfund goods and services are provided or
reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and payments between funds
are made. 48
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6. Changes in Capital Assels

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30,201 1:

49

BEGINNING ENDING
BALANCE BALANCE
B6/30/10 ADDITIONS TRANSFERS DELETIONS TR
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Capital assets, not being depreciated;
Land 5 16347835 0§ 217547 3 - 8 (41,0000 5 18724432
Construction In progress 9.970.356 15,204,648 - (10.921.855) 14,253,149
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 26,521,241 17.422,195 (10.962.855) 32.977.581
Capital nssets being depreciated
Buildings 100250272 932,221 - {1,582,352) 99,609,142
Improvements otker than buildings 23,102,147 1,585,822 10,265 (3.872) 26,680,362
Equipment and vehicles 36655911 3,845,057 (100,261) (3,635,327) 36,765 380
Bridges 4,474,397 - 501,593 - 4,975,590
Traffic Signals 7,403,608 147,414 223,237 - 7.774,250
Streets and roads 170,265,202 9,385,786 (735.095) (6,237) 178,909,656
Seawalls 622467 . - - 622467
Tunnels 54,326 - - - 34326
Toral capital assets being depreciated 342,837,331 17, 596.300 {100,261} {5.232.788) 155,400,582
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buoildings 26,569,717 2,429,658 - (1,380 885) 27,609,490
Improvements other than butldings 6374619 1,268,043 114 (4,631) 7,638,345
Equipment and vehicles 23,481 966 2,671,182 (120,006 {3,490,882) 22,542,170
Bridges 2,081,817 113,403 21,945 - 2.217.164
Traffic signals 4,997,337 237,452 (635.602) - 5219.186
Streets and roads 51,880,924 6,064,928 54,361 (5200 58,008,693
Seawulls 30,576 15,562 - - 66,138
Tunnels 10,185 2716 - - 12,901
Total accumalated depreciation 115.456,141 12,852,945 (1090800 (4,385,918) 123,314,087
Total cepital assets being depreciated, net 227,381,190 5,043,355 1D (345 8T 232,086,495
Governmental activities capital assets, net £ 253002431 5 22485550 § 8819 = 11 I.Sﬂ‘ﬂ,?ﬁ! 5 265064076
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Capitai assets, not being depreciaied:
Land 5 11190268 3 - % - % - 11,190,268
Construction in progress 10,503,032 13,073,514 - {5,172.964) 18.403,582
Total capital assets not being depreciated 21,693,300 13073514 (5.172,964) 20,503,850
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 01,579,665 4,553,508 (268,106) 95,865,067
Improvements other than buildings 10,444,370 270,508 268,106 - 11,583,074
Equipment and vehicies 30465341 1,180,005 100,261 {703,068) 31,042 540
Sanitary sewer 64,556,816 2,093,100 - - 66,649.916
Storm Sewer 18,983,507 485,087 - - 19,468,504
Streets and roads 223,172 - - - ¥22,172
Total capital assets being depreciated 216251871 9,182.298 100,261 (703.068) 224,831,363
Less accumulnted depreciation for:
Buildings 40,769,552 2447978 {447} - 43217083
Improvements other than buildings 6207321 439,622 447 - 6,737,390
Equipment and vehicles 20,318,516 1,804 325 109,080 (614,574) 21,707,348
Sanitary sewer 31,202,953 1,569,253 - - 32,772.206
Storm sewer 7014540 623,583 - - 8,538,123
Streets and roads 27.432 £,357 - - 35,789
Total sccumulated depreciation 106,530,314 6,083,118 108,080 (614,574} | 13,007,939
Tuotal capital assets being depreciated, net 109,721,557 2,199,180 (38197 (B8.494) 111,823,424
Business-lype activities capital assets, net $ 131414857 S 153726% % {3819 S i.’llﬁl.«iﬁﬁl 5 141417274
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Depreciation expense was charged to the functions of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $582,253
Community & economic development 23,537
Public works 7,667,170
Public safety 1,659,853
Culture & recreation 2,515,376
Internal service assets are charged o the various functions based on
their usage of the assets 404,756
Total depreciation expense-governmental activities 512,852,945
Business-lype activities:
Parking systems 5716422
Sewer operations 3,253,355
RiverCenter 507,529
Public transit 372,600
Public housing 263,026
Golf courses 221,225
Adrport 335,085
Solid Waste 453,203
Clean Water 759,424
River's Edge 101,159
Total depreciation expense-business-type activities 56,983,118

The government has active construction projects as of June 30, 2011, The projects include sireel construction and
improvements, sanitary sewer and water pollution control plant improvements, parks, city wide beautification, and
public buildings. At the year end the government's commitments with contractors are as follows:

Remaining
ojects Spent-to-Date Commitment
Streets/Improvements $ 6,344,511 5 2,138,000
Sanitary Sewer/WPCP 5,259,153 4,585,649
Parks 3,149,833 839,155
Public Safety 1,052,942 281,958
Public Buildings 1,694,334 268,658
Tomal $ 17,500,773 £ 8113429

The streets and improvements are being financed with state and federal grants along with general obligation
bonds, local option sales tax, and road use tax. The sanitary sewers and water pollution control plant
improvements are being funded by general obligation bonds being serviced by the Sewer Operations Fund.

The government has significant encumbrances as of June 30, 2011. The encumbrances are in various funds,
mostly for vehicles, At year end the government’s significant encumbrances are as follows:

Fund Amount
Local Option Sales Tax — restricted 5 399617
Capital Projects — resiricted 2.156.700

$2,556,317
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7. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

The City participales in two statewide retirement plans. The lowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS)
covers all employees {excluding firefighters and sworn police officers) earning in excess of $300 per quarter. The
Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa covers firefighters and sworn police officers.

The City also makes contributions to specific employee groups’ Section 457 deferred compensation plans as
described in Section C following.

A. Tow i loyees R m

The City of Davenport contributes to 1PERS which is a cost-sharing muhiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan administered by the State of lowa. IPERS provides retirement and death benefits, which are established by
State statute to plan members and beneficiaries. IPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary imformation. The report may be obtained by writing 1o TPERS,
P.0O. Box 2117, Des Moines, Iowa 50306-9117.

Plan members are required to contribute 4.50% of their annual covered salary and the City is required to
contribute 6.95% of annual covered payroll. Contribution requirements are established by State statute, The
City's contributions to IPERS for the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were $2,113,864, $1,954 483,
and $1,788,596 respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

B. Munici ire and Pol irement System of Iow

The City of Davenport contributes to MFPRSI which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan administered by a Board of Trustees. The plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits, which are
established by State statute to plan members and beneficiaries. MFPRSI issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information, The report may be obtained by
writing to MFPRSI, 2836 104" Street, Urbandale, lowa 50322.

MFPRSI Plan members are required to contribute 9.40% of earnable compensation and the City's contribution
rates for the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were 19.90%, 17.00%, and 18.75%. Contribution
requirements are established by State statute. The City's contributions Lo the plan for the years ended June 30,
2011, 2010 and 2009 were $5923.940, $3,816,047, and 53,543,297, respectively, which met the required
contributions for each year,

C. Deferred ion Contribu
The City of Davenport contributes 1% to 8% maiches to Police and Fire, Teamsters, Non-bargaining Management

and department director's 457 deferred compensation plans. The City's contributions for the years ended June 30,
2011, 2010 and 2009 were $1,758,704, $1,653,299, and $1,557,385 respectively.
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8. JOINT VENTURE

The City of Davenport, lowa and the Board of Trustees of the Rock Island County Metropolitan Mass Transit
District {(MetroLink), linois entered into an agreement in July 1979, which was amended in June 1982, which
designates the Quad-City Garage Policy Group (QCGPG) to oversee and operate a joint maintenance and storage
facility for transit vehicles and related equipment owned and/or operated by the two parties. Davenport’s
authority to enter into this agreement arises from powers granted by Chapier 2BE of the Code of lowa.

The City of Davenport and MetroLink have jointly constructed a maintenance facility. The City contributed
$542,196 and the MewoLink contributed $362,523. The remainder of the funding was provided by grants from
the Federal Transit Administration and the State of Illinois in the amount of $5,495,205. The maintenance facility

is recorded as an asset of MetroLink, and not by the QCGPG. The City's share of the facility is $275,503 as of
June 30, 2011,

The QCGPG consists of six (6) members, three (3} each representing the City of Davenport and MetroLink., Two
members and an alternate are appointed by the Mayor of DavenporL. subject to the approval of the Davenport City
Council. Two members and alternate are appointed by the Chairman of the MetroLink Board of Trustees, subject
to the approval of the Board of Trustees of the MetroLink. Officers are chosen from the above six (6) members,
and there are Iwo voling members each representing the City of Davenport and MetroLink. The facility
supervisor, appointed by the parties, prepares an annual budget, which is presented to the parties, or to the
QCGPG for their approval, Expenses incurred by the QCGPG are allocated either (a) on the basis of ownership
of the facility, or (b) on the basis of the number of buses that the respective parties have in service, The City's
investment as of June 30, 200 1 was 5198,407.

A summary of the latest available financial information for the QCGPG as of June 30, 2011, and for the year then
ended is as follows:

Total assets $341,680
Total liabilities $370,477
Total equity $471.203
Total revenue £5,171,589
Total expenses £5,189,678
Met change in fund equity £(18,089)

The City uses the equity method of accounting for these investments. At June 30, 2011, this amounted to
$473,910 which includes the City’s share of both the maintenance facility and the fund equity of the QCGPG.

Additional information concerning the QCGPG is available in its separately issved annual report, which may be
obtained from the entity's administrative office 2929 5" Avenue, Rock Island, IL 61201.
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9. LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt, net of the deferred portion of issuance costs, for the
year ended June 30, 201 | (numbers shown in thousands):

Balance Balance Due Within
Governmenial Activities: June 30,2000 Additions Retirements June 30,2011 One Year
Bonds Payable:
General Obligation Bonds £ 143,332 % 29,179 § (20,831) % 151,620 § 16,184
Special Assessment Debt 1,156 - (G1) 1,095 -
Less deferred costs:
Driscounts (195) 36 (252) 41D -
refunding issuance (70) 16 (50) (104) “
refunding gain/loss (222) 193 57 28 &
premium on issuance = 1.377 (116) 1,261 -
Total Bonds Payable 144,001 30,801 {21,313) 153,489 16,184
Other post employment
benefits 481 1,019 - 1,500 -
Compensated Absences 4,998 4,939 {4,924) 5,013 4,321
b 149480 % 36,759 § (26,237) % 1@@2 b 20,505
= —_
Business-type Activities:
Bonds Payable:
General Obligation Bonds b1 18,647 % 10,570 8 (4,833) % 24384 % 2,296
Less deferred costs:
Discounts {6) {90) 18 (78) -
refunding issuance (52) g (an (75) g
refunding gain/loss 67 122 1o 199
premium on issuance - 524 (24) 500 -
Total Bonds Payable 18,656 11,134 {4,860) 24,930 2,296
Compensated Absences 611 1,095 (1,030} 676 582
Other post employment
benefits 105 229 - 334 -
MNote Payable 1,669 8,331 - 10,000 202
3 21,041 % 20,789 % {5,800) § 35940 % 3,080

The City is obligated for the Special Assessment Debt with governmental commitment debi service payments.

Internal service funds predominantly serve governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for these funds
are included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. At year end $126,768 of internal service funds
compensated absences and $40,781 of other post employment benefits are included in the above amounts. Also,
for the governmental activities, compensated absences and other post employment benefits are generally
liquidated by the fund incurring the expense.
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General obligation bonds payable (balance outstanding in thousands of dollars) at June 30, 2011, is comprised of
the following individual issues:

A. Matured bonds not presented for payment. $20

B. $2,755,000 2001 Refunding of 19948 Economic Development serial bonds due in 465
annual installments of $10,000 o $365,000 through June 1, 2014; interest at 4.0 to
6.0 percent ($2,179,940 and $170,018 in principal and interest thereon are being
serviced by the Tax Increment Financing District Debt Service Fund and the Levee
Improvement Commission Special Revenue Fund, respectively),

C. £12,160,000 2003 Siadium scrial bonds due in annual installments of $3920,000 v 4,410
$1,140,000 through June 1, 2018; interest at 2.0 to 5.2 percent.

D. $9,390,000 2003 Streets, Sewers, Golf, and Eguipment serial bonds due in annual 6,580
installments of $235,000 to $1,315,000 through June 1, 2018; interest at 2.5 1o 4.1
percent ($735,000 and $330,000 in principal and interest thereon are being serviced
by the Sewer Enterprise Fund and the Golf Courses Enterprise Fund, respectively).

E. $0,685,000 2003 advance refunding of 1996 Building, Streets, Sewers and 3,790
Equipment serial bonds due in annual installments of $40,000 w $1.015.000
through June 1, 2016; interest at 2.0 to 4.0 percent ($130,000 and $138,250 in
principal and interest thereon are being serviced by the Tax Increment Financing
District Debt Service Fund and the Sewer Enterprise Fund, respectively).

F. £3,150,000 2004 Economic Development serial bonds due in annual installmenmis of 2,450
$130,000 w $265,000 through Jume 1, 2023; interest at 4.5 to 5.1 percent
($3,150,000 in principal and interest thereon are being serviced by the Tax
Increment Financing District Debt Service Fund),

G. $4,535,000 2004 Streets, Sewers and River Renaissance serial bonds due in annual 2,200
installments of $193,000 o $400,000 through June 1, 2019; interest at 2.0 to 4.0
percent ($695,000 in principal and interest thereon are being serviced by the Sewer
Enterprise Fund).

H. $11,690,000 2004 Streets, Buildings, Sewers, Airport and Equipment serial bonds 6,390
due in annual instaliments of $680,000 to $900,000 through June 1, 2019; interest at
3.2 10 4.25 percent (31,130,000, $255,000 and $205,000 in principal and interest
thereon are being serviced by the Sewer Enterprise Fund, Tax Increment Financing
District Debt Service Fund and the Airport Enterprise Fund, respectively.)

L $36,115.000 2005 Buildings, Streets, Sewers and Equipment serial bonds due in 24,210
annual installments of 31,160,000 tw 32,490,000 through June 1, 2025; interest at
4,0 10 4.5 percent ($455,000 in principal and interest thereon are being serviced by
the Sewer Enterprise Fund.)

J. $3,615,000 2006A Refunding of 1997A Streets, Sewers, Building and Parks serial 1,165
bonds due in annual installments of $115,000 1o $530,000 through June 1, 2017,
interest at 3.6 to 3.7 percent ($119,800 in principal and interest thereon are being
serviced by the Sewer Enterprise Fund.)
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K.

P.

$1,330,000 2006B Refunding of 1997 Economic Development serial bonds due in
anpual installments of $95.000 w0 $150,000 through June 1, 2017; interest at 5.0
percent ($60,000 in principal and interest thereon are being serviced by the Tax
Increment Financing Districts Debt Service Fund.)

$14,400,000 2007A Streets, Equipment and Parks serial bonds due in annual
installments of $810,000 1o $1,280,000 through June 1, 2021; interest at 4.0 to
4.125 percent ($460,000 in principal and interest thereon are being serviced by the
Sewer Enterprise Fund.)

$6,400,000 20078 Refunding of 1998A Sireets, Sewers, Buildings and Equipment
serial bonds and refunding of 1998 Streets, Sewers, Buildings, Parks and
Equipment serial bonds due in annual installments of $495,000 w0 $1,285,000
through June 1, 2013; interest at 4.0 to 4.25 percent (5669300 and $265,575 in
principal and interest thereon are being serviced by the Tax Incrememt Districts
Debt Service Fund and Sewer Enterprise Fund, respectively.)

$2,915,000 2008A Refunding of 1999 Sireets, Sewers, Buildings, Housing and
Equipment serial bonds due in annual installments of $460,000 w $520,000
through June 1, 2014; interest at 2.25 to 3.0 percent ($795,000, $540.000 and
$55.000 in principal and interest thereon are being serviced by the Sewer
Enterprise Fund, Public Housing Enterprise Fund and Tax Increment Financing
Districts Debt Service Fund, respectively).

$3,690,000 2008B Refunding of 2001 Taxable Economic Development, Sewers,
Buildings, Equipment and Public Improvements serial bonds due in annual
installments of $570,000 to $660,000 through June 1, 2015; interest at 3.0 10 3.5
percent ($890,000 and $60,000 in principal and interest thereon are being serviced
by the Sewer Enterprise Fund and Tax Increment Financing Districts Debt Service
Fund, respectively.)

$11,230,000 2008C Streers, Sewer, Buildings, Equipment and Park serial bonds
due in annual installments of $395,000 o $910,000 through June 1, 2023; interest
at 4.0 to 4.5 percent 51,320,000 in principal and interest thereon i being serviced
by the Sewer Enterprise Fund.

$3,530,000 2008 General Obligation Economic Development serial bonds due in
annual installments of $205,000 o $400,000 through June 1, 2021; interest at 3.5
to 6.2 percent ($3,530,000 principal and interest thereon is being serviced by the
TIF increment Financing District Debt Service Fund.)

$16.530,000 2009 General Obligation Sweets, Buildings, Sewer and Equipment
serial bonds due in annual instaliments of $695,000 tw £1,190,000 through June |,
2024; interest at 3.0 to 4.0 percemt ($275,000 principal and interest thereon is being
serviced by the Sewer Enterprise Fund.)
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S.

$7,0535,000 2009 General Obligation Economic Development Serial bonds
due in annual installments of $865,000 to $1,350,000 through June 1, 2028;
interest at 4.0 to 6.0 percent (37,035,000 principal and interest thereon is
being serviced by the TIF Increment Financing District Debt Service Fund.)

$10,125,000 2009C General Obligation Communication Building serial
bonds, (Build America Bonds) due in annual installments of $350,000 to
$795,000 through June 1, 2029; interest at 2.0 to 5.8 percent.

$20,650,000 2010A General Obligation Streets, Sewer, Equipment and
Economic Development serial bonds (Build American Bonds) due in annual
installments of $1,110,000 to $1,865,000 through June 1, 2024; interest at
50 to 5.0 percent ($2,099,000 and $1,012,000 principal and interest thereon
is being serviced by the Sewer Enterprise Fund and Tax Increment Financing
District Debt Service Fund, respectively.)

$10,845,000 20108 Refunding of 2001 Streets, Signals, Parks, Equipment,
Golf and Parking serial bonds due in annual installments of $645,000 to
$1,155,000 through June 1, 2021; interest at 2.0 to 3.37 percent ($1,762,650,
$4,298,600 and $666,600 principal and interest thereon is being serviced by
the Tax Increment Financing District Debt Service Fund, Parking Enterprise
Fund and Municipal Districts Special Revenue Fund, respectively.)

$3,870,000 2010C Refunding of 200| Taxable Parking serial bonds due in
annual installments of $275,000 to $435,000 through June 1, 2021; interest at
2.0 to 4.3 percent ($3,870,000 principal and interest thereon is being serviced
by the Parking Enterprise Fund.)

£33,745,000 2010D General Obligation Streets, Sewer, Cleanwater, Airport,
Equipment and Economic Development serial bonds due in annual
installments of $1,815.000 to $3,350,000 through June 1, 2025; interest at
2.0 to 4.0 percent ($7,049,000, $692,000, $512,000 and 51,010,000 principal
and interest thereon is being serviced by the Sewer Enterprise Fund,
Cleanwater Enterprise Fund, Airport Enterprise Fund and Tax Increment
Financing District Debt Service Fund, respectively.}

$6,005,000 201 LA Refunding of 2002 Streets, Buildings, Parks, Equipment
and Sewer serial bonds due in annual installments of $875,000 to $1,100,000
through June 1, 2017; interest at 2.0 to 4.0 percent ($2,317,750 principal and
interest thereon is being serviced by the Sewer Enterprise Fund.)

Total general obligation bonds
General obligation bonds serviced by Enterprise Funds
Matured bonds
General obligation bonds reported in Governmental Activities
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0,775

17,360

9,650

3,595

30,354

6,003

177,099
(24,3B4)
(20)
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The City of Davenport’s Capital Improvement Program has been funded in part from general obligation bonds
which are intended 1o be abated by user fees, special assessment collections, municipal improvement district
taxes, and levee rents. The debt to be abated by user fees is accounted for in the Enterprise Funds in the amount
of $24,384,300. Debt abated by special assessment collections is accounted for in the governmental activities as
Special Assessment Debt with Governmental Commitment in the amount of $1,095,233. The debt to be abated by
municipal improvement district taxes is accounted for in the governmental activities in the amount of $616,650.
These abated bonds, including interest thereon, are included in the above schedule and represent a contingent
liability against the City's full faith and credit. The general credit of the City is obligated only to the extent that
user fees, special assessment collections or liens foreclosed against properties involved in the special assessment
projects, municipal improvement district taxes, and levee rents are insufficient to retire outstanding bonds.

In order to limit the liability of taxpayers, the State Constitution of lowa imposes a limit on the amount of debt
local governments may incur, Davenport’s debt limitation is five (3) percent of its gross assessed valuation. This
limitation applies to general obligation indebledness and Tax Increment Financing agreements entered in to rebale
taxes paid over time. At June 30, 2011, the statutory limit for the City was $297,663,843 providing a debt margin
of $107,716,318.

The City has entered into an agreement with the lowa Finance Authority to borrow ten million dollars in the form
of the proceeds of the lowa Finance Authority Taxable Sewer Revenue Build America Bonds Series 2010. The
City draws funds from the lowa Finance Authority as needed for construction of the Wesiside Diversion Sewer
Tunnel project. The note bears interest at 3% with interest payments payable semi annually commencing
December |, 2010, Principal repayment is annually each June | commencing June [, 2002, As of 6/30/11, the
City had drawn $10,000,000 and deposited the proceeds into an escrow account. The escrow account is structured
to have varying maturities to match the city's requirements of the project. The note is payable solely from the net
revenues of the sewer utility. Annual principal and interest payments on the note is expected to require less than
20% of net revenue of the Sewer Utility Fund, The note requires several covenants including maintaining net
revenues of the sewer operating of at least 110% of the amount of principal and interest due in revenue bonds in
the same year and the completion and issuance of the City’s annual audit within 180 days of year end.

The note is expected to be paid as follows:

Year ended June 30 Principal Interest

2012 $ 202,000 § 300,000
2013 208,000 203,940
2014 215,000 287,700
2015 222,000 281,250
2016 229,000 274,590
2007 - 2021 1,263,000 1,265,250
2022 - 2026 1,483,000 1,063,020
2027 - 2031 1,741,000 825,600
2032 - 2036 2,042,000 546,930
2037 - 2041 2,395,000 220,140

$ 10,000,000 $ 5358420

On December 8, 2010 the City issued $6,005,000 of its General Corporate Purpose Refunding Bonds with an
average coupon rate of 3.15% to refund 36,320,000 of its General Obligation Bonds dated November 6, 2002 with
an average coupon rate of 4.25%. The City refunded these bonds to reduce its total debt service payments over
the next 6 years by $447,460 and obtain a net economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt
service pavments on the old and new debt) of $418.832.
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12.

Changes in reported liabilities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010 and 2011 are summarized as follows:

Employee Risk
Insurance Management
Fund Fund Total
Liabilities at June 30, 2009 § 1,286,759 § 3,584,963 5 4871722
Claims and changes in estimates during
fiscal year 2010 10,809,596 3,223,433 14,033,029
Claim payments (10,324,017 (2,171,273) (12,495 290)
Liabilities al June 30, 2010 $1,772,338 $4,637,123 $6,409,461
Claims and changes in estimates during
fiscal year 2011 9,769,169 3,021,711 12,790,880
Claim payments (10,841,439) (2,337,620) (13,179,059)
Liabilities at June 30, 2011 $ 700068 § 3321214 6,021,282

INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES

The Risk Management internal service fund has a deficit unrestricted net asset balance of $2,358,550 as of June
30, 2011. The non major proprietary golf course fund, public transit fund, and river's edge fund have deficit
unrestricted net asset balances of $508,381, $842,150 and $318,402, respectively as of June 30, 201 1. The Parking
and Sewer proprietary funds have deficit unrestricted net asset balances of $69,382 and $2,371,186 respectively.
The Road Use Tax, American Recovery and Reinvesiment grant and Miscellaneous grant non-major
governmental funds have deficit balances of $189,364, $63,133 and $782,995 as of June 30, 2011, respectively,
due to deferred revenue.

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan description: The City sponsors a single-employer health care plan that provides a continuation option o
retirees to purchase health benefits under the City's group health plan. The plan does not issue a stand alone
financial report. Employees who have atiained age 55 and have fifteen or more years of service with the City, or
qualify for normal retirement as defined by IPERS, or qualify for normal retirement as defined by MFPRSI or are
granted retiree stalus pursuant to a separation agreement with the City are eligible for retiree benefits. Eligible
retirees and their dependents may purchase medical, prescription drug and dental insurance through the City's
self-insured plan.

Retirees pay 100% of the group rate calculated on the expecied costs based on the entire group of actives,
COBRA participants, and retirees.

Funding Policy: The current funding policy of the City is to pay health claims as they occur. This arrangement
does not qualify as other post employment benefits (OPEB) plan assets under Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45 for current GASB reporting. The City establishes and amends
contributions requirements annually.

The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing. The source of payment is the fund that
pays the benefits for the current employees; either the General Fund or a proprietary fund. For fiscal year 2011,
the City contributed $590,251. Retirees receiving benefils contributed $430,255 through their required
contribution of $577.30 per month for single health coverage and $1,292.07 per month for family health coverage.
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10.

Since 1976, the City has authorized the issuance of $269,190,000 of industrial development revenue bonds under
the provision of Chapter 419 of the Code of lowa. There have not been any industrial development revenue bonds
since 1993, The bonds and related interest are the sole responsibility of the issuers, and the bond principal and
interest do not constitute liabilities of the City.

The annual requirements including interest (in thousands of dollars), to service long-term debt are as follows:

Year Governmental Activities Business-type Activilies
Ending General Obligation Bonds _General Obligation Bonds
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2012 516,164 $6,110 $2,296 F489
2013 15,496 5,543 2,314 B4
2014 15,194 5,009 2,356 736
2015 14,000 4487 2,155 665
2016 13,015 3.969 2,060 591
2017-2021 50,222 12,746 9,868 1,802
2022-2026 25,439 3.774 3,335 330
2027-2029 3,165 346 - -
Totals 152,695 41,984 24 384 5.817
Matured 20 2 -

152,715 $41,986 $24,384 35,817

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is self-insured for the following types of risk exposures:

Health Benefits — The City has established an Employee Insurance Fund for insurance benefits provided to City
employees and covered dependents, which is included in the Internal Service Fund type. Health benefits were
self-insured up Lo a specific annual stop loss amount of $150,000 per member, and an aggregate annual stop loss
amount of approximately $11,178,000 for 2011. Coverage from a privale insurance company is maintained for
losses in excess of the aggregate stop loss amount.  All claims handling procedures are performed by an
independent claims administrator. Incurred but not reported claims have been accrued as a liability based upon
the claims lag report provided by the third party administrator. Mo setllements exceeded insurance coverage for
the past three fiscal years. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage during the past year,

uto Liabili nd Workers' ation — The City has established a Risk Management
Fund for self-insurance relaled to general and automobile liability, property, and workers' compensation claims
which is included in the Internal Service Fund type. Self-insurance was in effect up to individual stop loss
amounts per occurrence of $500,000 for general and auto liability, $100,000 for property and $2,000,000 for
workers' compensation for 2011, Coverage from private insurers is maintained for losses in excess of the
individual stop loss amounts. All claims handling procedures are performed by the risk management division of
the finance depariment. Additionally, workers’ compensation claims are sent to a Third Party Administrator
(TPA) for review as part of the initial set up of the claim. A private attorney specializing in workers’
compensation law is retained to defend workers’ compensation claims filed with the state Workers” Compensation
Commissioner by claimants. Incurred but not reported claims have been accrued as a liability based upon an
independent actuarial study. No settlements exceeded insurance coverage for the past three fiscal years. There
were no significant reductions in insurance coverage during the past year.

58



AVEN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011 (CONTINUED}

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB obligation: The City’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the
annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of the GASB Statement Mo. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing
basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period
not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the
year, the amount actvarially contributed to the plan, and changes in the City's annual OPEB obligation.

Annual required contribution 5 1843438
Interest on net OPEB obligation 26,380
Adjustment to annual required contribution (31,600)
Annual OPEB cost {(expense) 1,838,218
Contributions made (590,251)
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB

obligation 1,247,968
Met OPEB obligation - July 1, 2010 586,221
Net OPEB obligation - June 30, 201 | $ 1,834,188

Fiscal year 2009 was the initial year that GASB Statement No. 45 was adopted by the City. The City’s annual
OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for fiscal
years 2009 thru 201 | are presented in the following table:

Annual Percentage of
Fiscal year OFEB Annual OPEB Net OPEB
Ended Cost Cost Contributed  Obligation
6/30/2009 $ 580,962 162.57 % $ (363,520)
&/30/2010 § 1,846,562 4857 % § 386,221
6/30/72011  § 1,838,218 3218 % 51,834,188

Funding status and funding progress: The funded status of the plan as of July 1, 2009, ithe most recent actuarial
valuation date is as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 16,953,953
Actuarial value of plan assets -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 16,953,953
Covered payroll (active employees) 45,639,232
UAAL as a percentage of

covered payrol] A5 %

Actuarial valuations reflect a long-term perspective that involves estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions
about the future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded
status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject 1o continual revision as actual
results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of
funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial sialements,
presents multiyear information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over
time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits,
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Actuarial methods and assumptions: Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and included the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer
and plan members o that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include technigues that are designed
to reduce the effecis of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets,
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. The projection of benefits for financial reporting
purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations.

The actuarial calculations were performed in accordance with the entry age normal cost method as of the July 1,
2009 valuation date. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.5 percent discount rate, an annual health care cost
trend rate of 10 percent reduced by decrements of .50 percent annually o an ultimate rate of 4.5 percent. The
UAAL is amortized over the maximum acceplable period of 30 years as a level percentage of projected payroll on
an open basis.

FUND BALANCE

Fund balances, presented in the governmental fund financial statements, represent the difference between assets
and liabilities reported in a governmental fund. GASB Statememt No. 54, Fund BalanceReporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, establishes criteria for classifying fund balances into specifically defined
classifications and clarifies definitions for governmental funds. This new standard has not affected the total
amount of reported fund balances but has substantially changed the categories and terminology used to describe
their components. In fiscal year 2010, the City of Davenport categorized fund balances in the Balance Sheet-
Governmental Funds as reserved and unreserved. GASB Statement No. 54 requires that the fund balances be
classified into categories based upon the type of constraints imposed on the use of funds. The City of Davenport
evaluated each of its funds at June 30, 2011 and classified fund balances inlo the following five calegories:

Monspendable - items that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, such as prepaid items.

Restricted - items that are restricted by external parties such as creditors or imposed by grants, laws or enabling
legislation. The city has legal restrictions on amounts collected by property tax levies, on forfeiture/seizure
collections and on unspent bond proceeds. The City has restrictions by grantors for the balance of program
income.

Committed — items that have been committed by formal action by the entity’s “highest level of decision-making
authority”, which are City Council resolutions. The commitment of fund balances took place on May 18, 2011,

Assigned — items the Chief Financial Officer assigns as specific projects or purposes have been identified. This
power was granted by the City Council on May (8, 2011,

Unassigned — any balances that have no restrictions on them, The General Fund is the only fund that would report
a positive amount in unassigned fund balance,

The City of Davenport spends restricted fund balance first, followed by committed, assigned and unassigned fund
balance.

The City's policy on fund balance of the general fund, excluding the other specific-use funds, is that the
unassigned fund balance will be maintained at 10 to 15 percent of the operating requirements. The current fund
balance is within policy guidelines.

Special Revenue Funds:

The City of Davenport has one major special revenue fund. The Local Option Sales Tax Fund accounts for the
proceeds of a one-cent local option sales tax. In addition to the local option sales tax collections, a minimal
amount of charges for services, use of monies and property, and miscellaneous revenue are reported. Loan
repayments are reporied in this fund as a result of an economic development loan made in early 2011.
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Major
Special
Revenue Non
Local Major Non Major Major
Option Major Debt  Capital Special Debt
General Sales Service Projects Revenue Service
Fund Balances: Fund Tax Fund  Fund Fund Funds Fund Total
Nonspendable:
Prepaids 517,069 - - - 17,069
Restricied For:
Tort 1,649,892 - - - - 1,649,892
Debt Service - $ 3,139,566 - - $719,249  3B5BEI5
Capital Projects - - - % 6,469,735 - - 6469735
Police
Forfeits/Seizure 351,122 - 351,122
Library 676,788 - - - 676,788
Employee
Benefits 1,206,132 - - - 1,206,132
Community
Development
Block Grant
Projects - - - & T215 77.215
HUD Section 8
Rents - - - 334,933 334,933
Municipal
Improvement
Projects - - - 752,125 752,125
Home
Invesiment
Partnership
Projects - - - - 4,322 4322
Local Option
Sales Tax - $2,769,353 - - - 2,769,353
Committed for:
Levee
Improvement
Commission
Projects - . - - 404 028 494928
Revolving Loans - . . - 563,827 563,827
Assigned for:
Library projects 161,861 - - - 161,861
Police projects 23,273 - - - 23,273
Parks projects 32,493 - - - 32,493
Reforestation 08,842 - - 98,842
RiverCenter
projects 201,506 - 201,506
Parks Special
MNeeds Program 33,861 - - 33,861
Unassigned: 5,392,141 - (1.035,514) 4,356,627
Total Fund
Balances: $ 9844 080 $2,769353 § 3139566 F 6469735 3 L191,836 $719249 § 24,134,719
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RECENTLY ISSUED PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) has issued six statements not yet implemented by the
City of Davenport. The statements, which might impact the City of Davenport, are as follows:

GASE Siatement No. 57, OPEE Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, issued
January 2010, will be effective for the City beginning with its year ending June 30, 2012. This Statement
addresses issues related to measurement of OPEB obligations by certain employers participating in agent
multiple-employer OPEB plans. GASB 57 amends GASB Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, and GASB Siatement Mo. 45, Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefirs Other Than Pensions,

GASE Statement Mo. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements, issued
November 2010, will be effective for the City beginning with its year ending June 30, 2013. This Statement is
intended to improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to service concession ammangements (SCAs),
which are a type of public-private or public-public partnership. Specifically, this Statement improves financial
reparting by establishing recognition, measurement, and disclosure requirements SCAs for both transferors and
governmental operators, requiring governments to account for and report SCAs in the same manner, which
improves the comparability of financial statements. This Statement also improves the decision usefulness of
financial reporting by requiring that specific relevant disclosures be made by transferors and governmental
operators about SCAs,

GASB Statement Mo. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus an amendment of GASE Statements No. 14
and No. 34, issued November 2010, will be effective for the City beginning with its year ending June 30, 2013,
This Statement is intended to improve financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity by
improving guidance for including, presenting, and disclosing information about component units and equity
interest transactions of a financial reporting entity. The amendments to the criteria for including component units
allow users of financial statements to better assess the accountability of elected officials by ensuring that the
financial reporting entity includes only organizations for which the elected officials are financially accountable or
that are determined by the government 1o be misleading to exclude. The amendments to the criteria for blending
also improve the focus of a financial reporting entity on the primary government by ensuring that the primary
government includes only those component units that are so intertwined with the primary governmeni that they
are essentially the same as the primary government, and by clarifying which component units have that
characteristic.

GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, issued January 2011, will be effective for the City
beginning with its year ending June 30, 2013. This Statement is intended 1o enhance the usefulness of the
Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards by incorporating guidance that
previously could only be found in certain FASB and AICPA pronouncements. This Stalement incorporates into
the GASB's authoritative literature the applicable guidance previously presented in the following pronouncements
issued before November 30, 1989: FASB Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions,
and Accounting Research Bulletins of the AICPA's Committee on Accounting Procedure. By incorporating and
maintaining this guidance in a single source, the GASB believes that GASB 62 reduces the complexity of locating
and using authoritative literalure needed to prepare state and local government financial reports.
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GASB Statement No, 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Ouiflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Net Position, issued July 2011, will be effective for the City beginning with its year ending June 30, 2013,
This Statement is intended to improve financial reporting by providing citizens and other users of state and local
government financial reports with information abow how past transactions will continue to impact a government's
financial statements in the future. This Statement provides a new stalement of net position format to report all
assets, deferred outflows of resources, [iabilities deferred inflows of resources, and net position (which is the net
residual amount of the other elements). The Statement requires that deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources be reported separately from assets and liabilities. This Statement also amends certain
provisions of Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements—and Management's Discussion and Analysis—for
State and Local Governments, and related pronouncements to reflect the residual measure in the statement of
financial position as net position, rather than net assets.

GASB Statement No. 64, Derivative Insrruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions (an
amendment of GASE Statement No. 53), issued July 2011, will be effective for the City beginning with its year
ending June 30, 2012. This Statement clarifies that when certain conditions are mel, the use of hedge accounting
should not be terminated. Those conditions are: (a) the collectability of swap payments is considered to be
prabable, (b) the replacement of the counterparty or credit support provider meets the criteria of an assignment or
in-substance assignment as described in the Statement, and (c) the counterparty or counterparty credit support
provider (and not the government) has commined the act of default or termination event. When all of these
conditions exist, the GASB believes that the hedging relationship continues and hedge accounting should continue
to be applied.

The City’s management has not yet determined the effect these statements will have on the City's financial
statements.

RESTATEMENT OF BEGINNING FUND BALANCE AND NET ASSETS

The City restated the following fund balance/net assets balances previously reported:

General Debt Governmental
Service Fund Activities
Fund balance/net assets, June 30, 2010
as previously reported $ 2,965,394 $ 129,854,258
Plus expenditures that should not
have been recorded 2,720,850 2,720,850
Fund balance/nel assets, July 1, 2010,
As restared % 5.686,244 § 132,575,108

The restatement of the governmental activities net assets and General Debt Service Fund balance was to correct
the recarding of a loan expenditure for financing and the related deferred revenue in the amount of $2,720,850.
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GOVERNMENTAL AND PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALAMCES-

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

Required Supplementary Information

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

REVENUES:

Taxes

Special assessments
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of monies and property
Fines and forfeits
Loan repayments
Onher

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public safety
Public works
Culwre and recreation
Community and economic development
Cieneral government
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest
Bond ssuance costs
Business type activities
Total Exponditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES), NET

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXFENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES

BALANCES BEGINNING OF YEAR,
AS RESTATED
BALANCES END OF YEAR

PROPRIETARY
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TOTAL
FUNDS ACTUAL _ ACTUAL ACTUAL

$ 8,730,720 $ 3376227 82,106,947
157,683 < 157,683

238,659 . 1,238,659
31,332,008 1,654,119 32,986,127
4,146,542 43,638,621 47,805,163

114,156 677,139 1,691,295

1,967,004 134,169 2,101,173

839,699 . 839,699

4519410 1,505.428 6.024,838
123,945,881 51,005,703 174,951,584
39,137,701 : 39,137,701
17,073,051 . 17,073,051
11,485,665 4 11,485,665
13,823,997 . 13,823,907
8,178,030 . 8,178,030

35,710,271 5 15,710,271
17,071,575 . 17,071,575
6,233,849 6,233,849

150,055 : 150,055

. 49.007,435 49,007,435

148,864,104 49,047,435 197.871.629
(24.918,313) 1,098,268 (22.920.045)
29,011,633 (1.799.445) 27,212,188
4,093,320 198,823 4,292,143
20,041,399 9,466,338 29.507,731

3 24.134.719 $ 9,665,161 33,799.880

See note to Required Supplementary Information



BUDGETED AMOUNTS

FIMAL 1L

ACTUAL

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL OVER(UNDER
$ 81,126,083 5 81,369,774 s 7373
25,000 25,000 132,683
1,216,555 1,256,555 (17,396}
56,618,949 108,965,958 (75.979,831)
57,280,561 49,441,397 (1.636,234)
915,530 3,149,802 (1,458,507

LI7T2 887 1,172 887 028,236
791,500 9,036,500 (8,196,801)
74,721,458 124,026,390 (118.001,552)
273.868,52 378,444,263 (203,492,679)
37,629,413 39,642,574 504,873
13,252,570 17,643,946 570,805
1,557,183 258944 1,103,776
13,167,959 24,779,132 10,955,135
§,993,181 9,400,307 1,222,277
79,286,200 153,320,079 117,609,808
14,922,672 20,951,575 3,880,000
5,737,264 6,233,849 :
- - (150,055)
66,389,717 58,203,645 9,196,210
352,336,159 342.764,548 144,592,010
21,532,364 35.679.715 (58.599,760)
(33421,772) (58.830,107) §6.042,205
{11,359.408) (23,150,392 27,442,535
29,507,737 29,507,737

£ 17.618.329 5 6357345 § 27447535




CITY OF DAV ORT

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION-BUDGETARY REPORTING
JUNE 30, 2011

In accordance with the Code of lowa, the City Council annually adopts a budget following required public
notice and hearing for all funds. The City's governmental fund types are budgeted on a modified scerual basis
of accounting in conformance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP). Proprietary fund types are budgeted on fuil accrual basis, except bond proceeds, which are budgeted
on a modified accrual basis, and depreciation, incurred but not reported insurance claims, loss on disposal, joint
venture adjustment and capital contributions which are not budgeted. The annual budget may be amended
during the year utilizing similar statutorily prescribed procedures. Budget amendments are reflected in the final
budgeted amounts.

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon 8 major classes of expenditures known as functions, not by
fund or fund type. These 8 functions are: public safety, public works, culture and recreation, community and
economic development, general povernment, debt service, capital projects, and business type activities.
Function expenditures required to be budgeted include expenditures for General Fund, Special Revenue Funds,
Debt Service Fund, Capital Projects Fund, Internal Service and Enterprise Funds. Although the budget
document presents function expenditures by fund, the legal level of control is at the ageregated function level,
not by fund. Expenditures for the bond issuance costs in the debt service function exceeded budget by
$150,055, due to the budgeting of the expenditure in the general governmental function. During the year a
budget amendment increased budgeted expenditures by $90,428,389, The budget amendment is reflected in the
final budgeted amounts,

Budgetary Adjusted
Basis Adjustments Basis
Revenues § 174,951,584 - § 174,951,584
Expenses 197 871,629 7,387,873 205,259,502
Net (22,920,045) {(7,387.873) (30,307,918)
Other financing sources, net 27,212,188 11,674,128 38,886,316
Beginning net assets, as restated 29,507,737 114,965,824 144,473,561
Ending net assets § 33799880 § 119,252,079 § 153,051,959
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Required Supplementary Information

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

UAAL as a
Fiscal Actuarial  Actuarial Unfunded  Funded Percentage of
Year Valuation  Value of Actuarial Accrued  UAAL Ratioc  Covered Payroll Covered Payroil
Ended Date Assets (n)  Liability (b} (h-a} (a/b) {c) ((B-a)c)
2009 72007 3 - 5 6,918,112 56,918,112 5 43,083,844 16.06%
2010 TI2006 - 16,953,953 16,953,953 42,686,340 39.71%
2011 T200% - 16,953,953 16,953,953 45,639,232 315%

Mote: Fiscal Year 2009 is the transition year for GASB Statement Mo, 45,

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial

valuation as of July 1, 2009. Additional information follows:

a. The cost method used to determine the ARC is the entry age normal cost method.

b. There are no plan assets.

c. Economic assumptions are as follows: health care cost trend rates of4.5-9.0 percent, discount rate 4.5 percent.
d, The amortization method is open basis as a level percentage of projected payroll,
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COMBINING STATEMENTS, AND SCHEDULES




Non-Major Gove 1 Funds

Road Use Tax Fund — Accounts for the revenue received from the State of lowa Road Use Tax Fund, which is
collected from motor vehicle registration, fuel tax and use tax, and related expenditures, which must relate to the
construction, maintenance and supervision of public streets.

Community Development Act Fund - Accounts for expenditures relating to neighborhood improvements benefiting
low and moderate income persons and economic development activities, which are reimbursed by the Federal
Government under the Community Development Block Grant Program,

HUD Section 8 Pund — Accounts for expenditures to landlords under a federally funded rent subsidy program.

Levee Improvement Commission Fund — Accounts for the expenditure of rents received for the use of the
Mississippi Riverfront property.
Municipal Improvement Districts Fund - Accounts for revenue generated by Self-supported Municipal

Improvement Districts.
Revolvine Loans Fund — Accounts for various Community and Economic Development revolving loans.

Home Investment Partnership Fund - Accounts for expenditures related to the rehabilitation or new construction of
rental units, and the rehabilitation of first time homebuyer owner/occupied residential units.

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act Fund — Accounts for expenditures related to the American Recovery and

Reinvestment Act.

Miscellaneous Grants — Accounts for the expenditures of U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
cooperative agreement awarded for the purpose of educating and promoting fair housing practices, lead based paint
removal and education , and expenditures of Economic Development Initiatives-Special Projects Grant. Also
accounts for the expenditures of a Department of Justice Weed and Seed Grant.

Environmentsl Protection Agency — Accounts for the expenditures of an Environmental Protection Agency grant for
Brownfields.
Tax 1 inancing {TIF) Distric ice Fund — Accounts for the accumulation of resources for and

the payment of principal and interest on general obligation debt representing the financing source for the City's
various tax increment financing districts, Property tax revenue generated on increased assessed valuation within the
TIF Districts are the resources accounted for in this fund.
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CITY OF DAVENPORT

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2011
COMMLUNITY LEVEE MUMICIPAL
ROAL USE DEVELOPMENT HULD IMPROVEMENT IMPROVEMENT
ASSETS TAX ACT SECTION & COBMISSION METRICTS
Cash and invesimenis 5 5 - %8 M52 s 521,852 5 743,583
Receivables:
Property lazes:
Delinguent - 27.480
Succeeding vear - - . 83374
Accounts 6.240 - §.345 2316 -
Loans - 232371 . -
e from other governments T4, 645 301725 - 1350 -
Restricted asselx-cash and investiments - 45011 - . ”
TOTAL ASSETS §  TE0.804 5 TRMLOOT 5 351 % 51508 3 1.605.137
—_—
LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES (DEFICITS}
LIARILITIES:
Wages payable § 255098 5 25150 & 16,767 % 058§ :
Accounis poyoble 208999 93,791 2027 a1 2,688
Payable froan restricied assets - 43001 - . .
Interfund loans payable 416,161 105,174 - 14,820 -
Dise 10 other governmcnts - 305 - . -
Deferredfuncamed revenise:
Succeeding year propeny lax . - . £33.774
Olher 2.523.271 - 4,503 16.550
Total Liabities 970,258 2,792,703 16,794 30,330 33,012
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Restricted fund balance - Tr115 334,833 - 752,125
Committed fisd balance - . - 494,028 .
Lhtassigned furd balance {189,3464) - . =
Total Fund Balances {Deficits) (1B9,364) 77215 334,013 494,508 752,125
TOTAL LIABILITIES ARD
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 5 TE0.E04 3 2RT0.007 5 353727 % 525,318 :3 1,603,137
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Tax

AMERICAN INCREMENT TOTAL
HOME RECOVERY aND ENVIROMMENTAL FIMAMCING RON-MAJOR
REVOLVING IMVESTMENT REINVESTMENT MISCELLANECUS PROTECTION DISTRICTS CGOVERNMENT AL
LOANS PaRTMERSHIF ACT GRANTS AGENCY GRANT DERT 5ERVICE FUNDS

] 563,827 5 4,208 3 & 5 - 3 . 3 686,245 5 1B65, 195
a a = - - 37,564 BS044

- E - - - 3611520 A,445,300

- - 3 T - . 16,910

1.257.053 7,709,003 . - - B 11,509,397

. G118 214,370 T, 198 . . 2,003,504

- - - = - - 45011

5 LBXNEE0 5 77319394 8 24870 & T, 798 5 - % 4355310 % 20,570,364
3 - & 1669 % 30,108 5 11,685 5 - & = % 3aon
- 3.330 25,242 63,8352 . - 558,941

- - - B - - 45011

. - 109,523 §i3.762 - - 1,459,440

- - - = - - 345

. . . - - 3511528 4,445,300

1,357,053 7.73.073 63,155 500,004 - 24,564 12,217,263
1257053 7.715.072 178,025 1.457,793 - 3,635,000 19,050,299

= 4332 = . - 710,240 1587844

503827 . - - - - 1,058,755
- - (63.155) (782,905} . - (1035514}

563,827 4322 {63.155) (T82.905) = T19.249 1,911,085

3 1BX0E80 % 7930304 5 214,870 % 704,798 5 « o § 4355339 5 20970, 364
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CITY OF DAVENPORT
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

Far the Fiscal Year Ended June 3, 2011

REVENUES: "
Tanes

Licenses and permiis
Inergovemmental

Use of monies and propery
Loan repayments

Chher

Total Reverses

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public safety
Public works
Cuilture ond recreation
Community and economic
development
Gizneral government
Drebd service:
Principad retirement
Inseresi
Total Expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER{UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USESE

Premium on deb |ssaed

Sabe of copital assets

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total Qibher Financing
Sowrces (Uszes)

MNET CHAMGE [N FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES(DERCITS) - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) - ENDING

COMMUNITY LEVEE MUNICIPAL
DEVELOPMENT IMPROVEMENT IMPROVEMENT

ROAD USE TAX ACT HUD SECTION 3 COMMISSION DISTRICTS
3 S | - & - % - 8 1,205,325
48,330 - - - .
9.216,687 1,733,442 3071002 3.600 -
- 65,848 - 93,496 2,626
. 382,105 - - -
1.072.6H) 572 17,105 9.559 -
10,337,687 2,201,967 3.088,107 106,657 1,207,951
9,947,843 - . -
- 21376 #
- 2,196,574 3.261.250 240,497 151,833
5,000 - . 3
- - - 49,95
- = 3 % 13.51%
9.947 843 3.201.574 3.261.259 330873 1,145,302
380,844 393 (173,158 {224.216) 62.649
13,800 - -
75,000 507,982 T5,000 -
{147,302} - (138,824 -
(58,502} 507,952 {63.524) -
331,342 393 334830 (288,0400 62,649
(320,706} T6.BTY 103 782508 589,470
5 (189.364) 8 T1iH5 5 334033 % 404,928 & 752125

g
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TAX

INCREMENT
AMERICAN FINANCING TOTAL
HOME RECOVERY AND ENVIRONMEMNTAL DISTRICTS MON-MANIR
REVOLVING IMVESTMENT REINVESTMENT MISCELLANEQLUS PROTECTION DEET GOVERMMEMTAL
LOANS PARTHERSHIP ACT GRANTS AGENCY GRANT SERVICE FUNDS

i A - 8 5 - % $ 3T % 451903
- . = . . 48,330

214,423 654,024 2,207,345 2,258,237 3 19,378,760
44,431 106,776 = - % 4,783 37962
138,715 112,639 . 733,459

- - - - - G494 1. G 400

517,569 E73.439 2. 207345 1,358,237 3.737.983 26.536.942
385,555 23072 08,627

6HLTIS ¥ ol - 10,638,558

" - 21,376

340,307 1,000,337 409,974 1273353 1,944 Ta5.075 11,579,653

- - 134,866 - - 129,366

- - - - 1,768,650 1.5 18,600

- - - - - 887,251 900,770

349,407 1,000,337 1488344 421,79 1,044 3410978 25.857.450
168.262 {12650} 721,101 {163.554) {1.5940) 337,007 919492

M - 62441 62441

- - - 13,800

. - ‘ 62,528 - THEID
. {B5,580) 127.679) = {31450 {430,837}

% (85580 15,149 - 30990 366,214

168,262 (126,898} 635521 {128.405) {1,548 157,996 1,345,706
35,565 131,220 (698,676 (654,590 1944 351.253 565,379

5 56381 % 4312 (63.155) § (T82.905) - 8 719,249  § 1,911,085

— i
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Non-Major ise Funds

Public Housing Fund ~ Accounts for revenue and expenses associated with the Heritage High-Rise housing facility
for the elderly, handicapped and disabled and for the Public Housing units for the low-income families. A Federal
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) subsidy provides suppaort for the Heritage High-Rise.

Golf Course Fund ~ Accounts for revenue and expenses associated with operation of the City's four golf courses,
Duck Creek, Emeis, Credit Island and Red Hawk.

Airport Fund — Accounts for revenue and expenses associated with operation of the Davenport Airport, a reliever
airport for the Quad City Airport. Rental income is obtained from the leasing of surrounding farmland, as well as
hangar spaces at the airport,

Public Transit Fund — Accounts for revenue and expenses associated with the City's fixed route transit system,
demand response transit and the ground transportation terminal, known as the TransitCenter. Revenue is generated
mainly from a transit property tax, federal and state operating and capital grants, user fees, and miscellaneous rentals
at the TransitCenter.

Solid Waste Fund — Accounts for revenue and expenses associated with the City’s collection of solid waste, bulky
waste, yard waste and curbside recycling programs,

River's Edge Fund — Accounts for revenue and expenses associated with operating an indoor sports facility that
offers both an indoor ice rink and soccer field.



F DAV RT

NON-MAJOR ENTERFRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2011
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -
PUBLIC GOLE
ASSETS HOUSING COURSES AIRPORT
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 240l 3 - 3 92,987
Receivables:
Property taxes:
Delinquent - - -
Succeeding year - - -
Accounts 8,769 11,824 4,622
Due from other governmenis 48,552 - -
Total current assets 303,932 11,824 97,609
Moncurrent assets:
Dielerred charges 2,030 - 4,334
Investment in joini veniure - - .
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 32,421 - -
Capital assets:
Land 526,071 1,272,122 740,350
Buildings 7,733,629 417,800 2,533,904
Improvements other than buildings - 2,840,900 7.275,241
Egquipment and vehicles 175,639 1,435,851 187,248
Sireets and roads 131,163 - -
Storm sewers - -
Less accumulated depreciation {5.289.944) (32218300 (5,216,824}
Construction in progress 371,733 - 1,597,341
Total noncurrent asscts 3,782,742 2,744,843 6,430,660
Total assets 4.086.674 1,756,667 6,528,269
LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Wages payable 5823 62,416 4,545
Accounts payable 23,584 43,002 1,053
Accrued interest payable 685 . 2.463
Compensated absences 3,505 44,330 2,635
Interfund loans payable - 338,765 -
Deferrediuneamed revenue:
Succceding year property tax - - -
Other 2,385 - :
General obligation bonds - current 90,500 - 53.000
Total current liabilities 128,482 488,514 63,690
Current liabilities payable from resiricted assets:
Deposits payable 32,421 - 4
Moncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 821 7.097 422
Other postemployment benelits 2,897 24,594 1,379
General obligation bonds - long term 192,500 - 550,410
Total noncurrent liabilities 196,278 31,691 352,211
Total liabilities 357,181 520,205 &17,907
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 3,465,291 2,744,843 5820916
Unrestricted 264,202 {508.381) 89,446
Total net assets 5 3,729,493 S 2,236,462 5 5910362
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

“TOTAL
NON-MAJOR
FUBLIC SOLID RIVER'S ENTERPRISE
TRANSIT WASTE EDGE FUNDS
s - b 52,223 5 - % 391,821
45,028 - . 45,028
3,482,643 - = 3,482,643
7,588 1879217 - 1,912,320
138,161 - - 186,713
3.673.720 1,931,440 - 6,018,525
3 - - 6,304
473,910 - - 473910
- - - 3z421
1,599,288 - = 4,146,837
3529427 24 888 1,214,291 15,853,599
179,929 848,853 I1,144923
4,695,480 4,000,174 342,205 10,936,597
6,858 - - 138,051
(6.044,773) (1.822,248) (116,888) (22,412,507
33,430 - - 2,022,504
4,893,579 2202814 2288461 22,343,099
8,567,299 4,134,254 2288461 28,361,624
125,072 105,824 22270 325950
178,977 79,272 34915 360,803
- - - 3,143
54910 90,930 6,837 205,147
1,076,205 E 243,714 1,658,775
3,482,643 - - 3482643
- - - 2,385
- - - 145,500
4.917.897 276,026 307,736 6,184,351
- - - 32.421
8,791 14,557 1,095 32,843
63,092 57956 9,571 159,489
- - - 742,810
71.883 72,513 10,666 935,242
4.989,780 348,539 318402 7,152,014
4,419,669 2,202,814 22884061 20,941,994
(842, 150% 1,582.901 (318,402) 267,615
$3.577.519 $  3,785.715 5 1.970.059 £ 21209610
T——sme—— EEE—e—————— —_————— o ———— — 4
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CITY OF D

NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

OFERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services

Other

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Employee expenses
Supplies and services

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses
QPERATING (LOSS)

NOMN-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Taxes

Operating grants

Use of monies and property

Interest expense

Gain (loss) on disposition of capital assets
Joint venture adjustment
Total Non-operating Revenues

LOSS BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND

TRANSFERS

Capital contributions

Transfers out

Change in net assets
Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

S _3meass

3§ 2236462

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -
PUBLIC GOLF
HOUSING COURSES AIRPORT
3 415,874 $  LB75,245 $ 179,002
48,546 26,250 25,456
464,420 1,901,495 204,458
116,586 982,654 59,314
655,326 871,240 165,043
263,026 221,225 335,085
1,034,938 2,075,119 559,442
(570,518) (173,624) (354,984)
630.567 - 5,556
2,879 14,454 53,816
(11,625) - (17.858)
- 330 -
621,82) 14,784 43,514
51,303 (158,840) (311.470)
61,936 5,161 1,491,564
{.5?‘}13@ - i
(457.571) (153,679} 1,180,094
4,187,064 2,390,141 4,730,268

3591036,
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

TOTAL
NON-MAJOR
PUBLIC S0LID ENTERPRISE
TRANSIT WASTE RIVER'S EDGE FUNDS

b} 506,706 § 4,591,018 5 253,061 § 7.822,906
1,946 282 6,234 108,714
508,652 4,591,300 261,295 7,931,620
2,610,721 2,420,074 320,283 6,709,632
2,884,783 2,199,779 387,832 7,164,003
372,600 453,293 101,159 1,746,388
5,868,104 3,073,146 1,009,274 15,620,023

(3,359.452) (481,846) (747,979 (7,688,403)
3,376,227 + 3 3,376,227
1,017,996 - z 1,654,119
12,360 44,347 391,594 521,450

. " - (29,483)

(14.582) - - (14,582)
4,392,001 46,123 311,132 5429375

(967.431) (435,723) (436,847) (2,259,028)
3,800 682,139 315,045 2,559,643

= = = (570,810}

(963,651) 246,416 {121,802) (270,193)
4,541,170 3,539,299 2,091,861 21,479,803

§ 3577519

$ 3785715

¥ 1.570.059

5 21,209,610
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TY OF DAVENPORT

NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from users
Cash paid 10 suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid to employees for services
Other operating revenue
Met Cash Provided by {(Used for) Operating
Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayments 1o other funds
Advances from other funds
Operating grants
Property tax
Transfers out

MNet Cash Provided by Mon-Capital
Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from general obligation bonds
REefunding discountfissue costs
Proceeds from the sale of capital asses
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term deln
Met Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital and
Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest and other invesiment income
Met decrease in Cash and Cash
Equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-BEGINMNING

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-ENDING

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -
PUBLIC GOLF
HOUSING COURSES AIRPORT
s 30T 5 1,883,297 $ 181,282
(641,124) (904,541) (170,316
(113.278) (965,037) (59,483)
48,546 26,250 25456
(334,839) 39,969 (23.061)
- (225.320) .
3 338,766 %
630,567 : 5,556
(570.810)
59,757 113,446 5,356
. : 512,000
1,290 . 14,292
- 330 =
g (168.204) (504,999)
(89,000) . {62,000)
{11,818 (15,864)
(99,528) (167,874) (56,571)
2.936 14,459 55,825
(371.674) - (18,251}
650,706 111,238
$ 279032 $ . 5 92,987
= e ——
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

TOTAL
MOMN-MATOR
PUBLIC SOLID RIVER'S ENTERPRISE
TRANSIT WASTE EDGE FLINDS
$  L079.084 5 4533136 3 255,061 ¥ 3302877
(2,826,335) (2,218,070} (379,607) (7.140,0023
{2,547.279) (2,351,128) (305,953) (6,542, 196)
1946 282 6,234 108,714
{,292,584) (35.787) {624,305) {5, 270,607)
(1,190,294) . {14,802) {1,430,416)
1,076,295 - 243,714 1.658,775
1,317,996 - - {654,119
3,376,227 - 3,376,227
- {5708 10}
4. 280,224 - 228,912 4,687,895
" : = 512,000
" : 2 15,582
- 4,074 3,799 8,203
- (34,777} - {707,980)
= - (151,000)
- - {271,682}
{30,703) 3,799 (350.877)
12,360 44,347 391,594 321,521
(22,145 (412,068)
- 74,366 - 836,310
5 - 5 52,223 b3 - 5 424242
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CITY OF DAVENPORT

NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -
PUBLIC GOLF
__ HOUSING COURSES AIRPORT
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOS55) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR] OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss 5 (570,518) 5  (173.624) 5 (354,984
Adjusiments to Reconcile Operating loss 1o Net Cash
Provided by {Used for) Operating Activities:
Depreciation 263,026 221,225 335,085
Change in asscts and liabilivies;
Diecrease {increase) in accounts receivable (5.719) 8,052 2,280
Decrease (mcrease) in due from other governments (39, 144) . -
Increass (decrease) in accounts payable 14,202 {33.301) {5,273)
Increase (decrease} in other accrued liabilithes 3.308 17,617 {169}
Tatal Adjustmenis 235.679 213,593 331,923
NET CASH PROVIDED BY {USED FOR) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 5 5334«839} 5 39,969 5 (23.061)
SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets 5 61,936 b3 5,161 5 1,491,564
Contribution of capital assets by subdividers {61,936) (5,161) (1.445,992)
Contribution of capital assets by municipality - 4 %
Contribution of capital assets by state and federal governments - - {4557




ENTERPRISE FUNDS

TOTAL
NOMN-MAJOR
PUBLIC SOLID RIVER'S ENTERFRISE
TRANSIT WASTE EDGE FUNDS
3 (5.359452) 3 (481,846} 5 (747979 5 (7.688,403)
372,600 453,293 104,159 1,746,388
6,835 (57,882) (46,428)
565,543 B . 526,399
58,448 {18,300) 8,225 24,001
63,442 68,948 14,290 167436
1,066,208 446,059 123,674 2.417.796
§ (4,292, 584) b 35,7 b (624,305) 5 (5270607
b 3,800 z 682,139 5 315,045 5 25509645
- {682,139) (315,045) {2.510,273)
{3,800} - - {3,8000
= 5 = (45.572)
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Internal Service Funds

Employee Insurance Fund - Accounts for the revenue received from employee and employer contributions and
expenses for msurance premiums, administrative fees, and health claims related to the City's protected employee
benefit program. Transfers from other City funds, determined on an actuarial basis, are accounted for as revenue in
this fund.

Risk Management Fund — Accounts for liability, property and worker's compensation insurance premiums, claims
and administrative fees of the City's protected self-insurance program. Transfers from other City funds, determined
on an actuarial basis, are accounted for as revenue in this fund.

Information Management Services Fupd — Accounts for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated with
information technology.

87



CITY OF DAVENPORT

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2011
TOTAL
INFORMATION INTERMAL
EMPLOYEE RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICE
ASSETS INSURANCE MANAGEMENT SERVICES FUNDS
Current assels:
Cash and cash equivalanis i 745,362 7 2,481,194 1 30,475 £ 325703
Accounts receivable 561,689 614,295 - 1,175,984
Prepaids - 34,533 181,134 215,667
Total current assets LA07.051 3.430,022 211,609 4,648,682
Noncufrent asseds:
Capilal assets:
Improvements ather than buildings = - 2,429 564 2,429,564
Equipment and vehicles . - 3,769,586 3,769,586
Lass aceumuiated depreciation - (2,166,955) {2, 166,953)
Total poncurrent assets - - 4,032,195 4,032,195
Total assets 1.307.051 3,130,022 4,243 B4 B680,877
LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Wages payable 1,821 34,428 38,342 74,591
Accounts payable 2,572 50, TRG 12,113 74471
Compensated absences 528 47,876 H0LETD 109,274
Claims and judgments T00,068 5321214 - 6,021,282
Total current liabilities T4 989 5,463,304 111,325 6.279.618
Moncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 24 7.665 9,745 17,494
COiher postemployment benefits 951 17.603 22227 40,781
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,035 25,268 31,972 58,275
Total liabilities T, 024 5,488,572 143,207 6,337,893
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt - - 4,032,195 4,032,195
Unresiricted 601,027 (2,358,550 68.312 {1,689.211)
Total net assets [ 601,027 5 {‘2.353.:150! 5 4,100,507 $ 2342084
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CITY OF DAVENPORT
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 34, 2011

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services

Other

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Employee expenses
Supplies and services
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NOM-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Usze of moaies and property

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
Capital contributions

Transfers out

Change in net assels

Total net assets (deficit) - beginning

Total net assets {deficit) - ending

TOTAL
INFORMATION INTERMAL
EMPLOYEE RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICE
INSURANCE =~ MAMNAGEMENT SERVICES FUNDS
£ 11,550,246 5 ifosom % 1,809,136  $17.277.455
530,291 612,185 300 1,142,776
12,080,537 4,530,258 1,309,436 18,420,231
38,672 889,715 857,327 1,785,714
10,940,362 3,982,832 1,117,096 16,040,250
- - 404,755 404,755
10.979.034 4,872,547 2.379,178 18,230,759
1,101,503 (342,289 {369,742} 189472
3634 15,348 - 18,982
1,105,137 (326,941} {569.742) 208,454
- - 1,122,716 1,122,716
(680,000} " 2 {680.000)
425,137 {326,041) 352974 631,170
173,890 (2,03 1.609) 3,547,533 1,601,814
b 601,027 §  (2358550) % 4,100,507 § 2,342,984
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CITY OF DAVENPORT

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMEBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from users
Cash paid 1o suppliers for goods and

SeTVices

Cash paid 1o employees for services
Other operating revenus

Met Cash used for

Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Transfers out

Met Cash used for Non-Capiral
Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES:

Interest and investment income

Mt decrease in Cash and
Cash Eguivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-

BEGINNING

TASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-

EMDING

TOTAL
INFORMATION INTERNAL
EMPLOYEE RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICE
INSURANCE MANAGEMENT SERVICES FUNDS
5 11,107,667 § 3304546 % 1810446 5 [6222659
(12,002,298} {3.268,227) {1.154.890) {16,515411)
(37.866) (851,675) (861.248) {1,750.789)
530,291 612,185 300 1,142.776
(492,206) (203,167) (205.392) {900,765)
(680,000 i i (680.000)
{680.000) (680,000)
3,789 15,727 19516
(1,168,417 (187.440) {205,392) (1,561,249
1,913,779 2,668 634 235,867 4818280
$ 745362 § 2481194 § 475§ 3,257,031




CITY OF DAVENPORT

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments o Reconcile Operating
Income {Loss) 10 Met Cash Used for Dperating Activities:
Depreciation
Change in aszets and labilitics:

Decrease {increase) in accounts
receivible

Dwcrease in prepaids

Increase (decrease) in accoumis
pavable

Increase (decrease) in other accrued
liabilities

Total Adjustments

MET CASH USED FOR
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of capital assets
Contribution of capital assets by municipality

TOTAL

INFORMATION INTERMNAL

EMFLOYEE RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICE
INSURANCE MANAGEMENT SERVICES FUNDS
$ 1101503 3 (342,289} 5 (569.742) 189,472
- 404,755 404,755
(442,579 (613,527 1,310 {1,054,796)

. 2,609 9,102 1,711
(1,150,936) TI2.000 {45,896) {486,832)
806 38,040 (3,921 34,925
1,593,709) 139.122 364,350 (1,090,237}
5 (492 206) 5 (203,167) 5 {205,392) (900,765}
5 - 3 4 ] 1,122,716 1122716
. - {1,122,716) {1,122.716)
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Fiduciary Fund Types
Riverfront Task Force Fund - Accounts for receipts of donations to be used toward the formation of a plan for
riverfront development.

Library Gift Fund - Accounts for donations to the Davenport Library and disbursements, which include the purchase
of books, periodicals and equipment as authorized by the Library Board of Directors.

M.D. Petersen Memorial Fund - Accounts for an annual contribution from the Petersen estate and the disbursement
for improvements designated by the Davenport Levee Improvement Commission.
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CITY OF DAV T

ALL AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

BALANCE BALANCE
RIVERFRONT TASK FORCE JUNE 30,2010 ADDITIONS DELETIONS JUNE 30,201 1
ASSETS:
Cash and investments 5 3614 § 14 5 3 3,628
Interest receivable - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS b 3.614 5 14 % - b 3,628
= i —
LIABILITIES:
Due to other govemments b 3614 b 14 $ - b 3,628
pr————— —————
LIBRARY GIFT
ASSETS:
Cash and investments § 206,823 $ 2553953 £ 115897 ¥ 346,879
Interest receivable 21 - 21 -
TOTAL ASSETS § 206.844 $ 255,953 5 115918 5 346,879
el 1 _— fe e ——— ——
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payahle 5 5,352 § 74272 74762 5 4,868
Due to other governments 201.492 181,675 41,156 342,011
TOTAL LIABILITIES $  206.344 ¥ 255953 $ 115918 $ 346,879
_——m——— = T
M.D. PETERSEN MEMORIAL
ASSETS:
Cash and investments ¥ 213 ¥ 1,087 b - ¥ 1.300
Interest receivable - - - .
TOTAL ASSETS b 213 $ 1,087 5 - 5 1,300
e ———— e — —mre=saan
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable b - 5 . b} § -
Due to other governments 213 1,087 1,300
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5 213 $ 1,087 3 - 5 1,300
s — srie—
TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
ASSETS:
Cash and investments 5 210,650 5 257054 5 115,897 3 351,807
Interest receivable 21 - 21 -
TOTAL ASSETS £ 210671 i 15?,(}541= $ 1 15,9@_ 351807
LIABILITIES: —
Accounts payable 3 5,352 $§ 74278 74762 b 4,868
Due to other govemments 205,319 182,776 41,156 346,939
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 210,671 £ 257054 $ 115918 3 351,807
e e—— == Tz === e

93



CITY OF DAVENPORT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

CFDA GRANT PROGRAM
GRANTOR/PROGRAM NUMBER NUMBER EXPENDITURES
Direct:
artment of Housing an lo nt (HUD
N/C S/R Section 8 Programs 14.182 KCT76237 5 374,569
Communily Develepment Block Grants/Emitlement Granis 14218 B 10MC 190002 2,201,574
HERA - Neighborhood Stabilization Program 14.228 555,264
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 w10 MC 190200 1,000,337
ARRA CDBG-R 14.253 BO9 MY 190002 315,565
Jump Start HUD Program 14.256 247,953
ARRA Homeless Prevention and Rapid Rehousing 14,257 509 MY 190003 387,499
Fair Housing Assistance Program 14.401 FF 207 KO 77015 49,688
Public and Indian Housing 14,850 KC9l48 60,216
Section 8 Housing Cheice Vouchers 14871 KT 902 7V 3,071,002
Public Housing - Capital Fond Program 14.872 KC 9148 195,781
ARRA Capital Funds [4.885 1A 0550 4550 100 75,889
Lead Based Paint Gramt 14,900 1A LHBE 0349 07 949,193
9,484,530
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 30.001 EE CCHN 1001 14 55,000
Department of Transportation
Taxiway Reconstruction/Hanger 20.205 3190024 15 820,530
Davenport Municipal Afrpon 20,205 390024 14 45,572
Fier and Bank Stabilization 20,208 STPU 1827 (655) B8R 82 276,004
Fairmont Bridge Replacement 20,205 BEM [827(640) 8N 82 198,017
67th Street Paving Project 20,205 STPU 1827(663) 70 82 179,775
651h and Brady Signal 20,205 C5 TSF 1827 (639) 85 832 530,000
2nd and Warren Signal 20.205 CS TSF 1827 (652) 85 82 84,822
Kimberly and Marguette 20,205 STPU 1827(637y 70 82 7.683
49th Street Paving 20.205 STPU 1827(632) 70 83 12,614
Eail for Eastern lowa 20,205 FEDG (01) 49 82 576,483
Federal Transi - Formula Grants 20.507 1A 90 X 362 00 290,323
Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 1A 90 X 35000 325,685
3,356,508
Env ection
Surveys, Swdies, Investigations and Special
Purpose Grants 66,606 XP 9% 7584 01 1,202,960
Department of Energy
ARRA Energy and Efficiency Block Grant g1.128 SC 000 3271 375,150
ARRA Energy and Renewable Enerzy 81122 OEO000416 13,204
384,354
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CITY OF DAVENPORT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

CFDA GRANT PROGRAM
GRANTOR/FPROGRAM NUMBER NUMBER EXPENDITURES
Department of Homeland Security
Assistance to Firefighters 97.044 EMW 2009 FO 02503 47,179
Assistance lo Firefighters 97.044 EMW-2010-FO-04002 127,600
Port Security Rescue Boat 97.056  2010-PU-TO-0059 178,899
Hazmat Training 87.067 43,319
396,997
rtment of Homeland rit
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 97.039 DR-1763 0028 01 218,797
Department of Justice
Weed and Seed 16595 2000 WS QX 0109 175,668
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 UG 06 2XG 3,512
Dffice of Community Oriented Policing Services 16710 2005 1M WX 0025 2617
16,710 2007 CK WX 0031 451,031
ARRA Cops Hiring 16710 2009 RK WX 0305 385,555
Orgenized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Force MNIA 8,788
1,262,171
tion and Park Association
Parks Take Me Fishing 15.653 FIZSE20 5,000
Department of Interior National Park Service
CPED MAPS 15.406 9,360
Total Direct 16,379,677
Indirect:
f Justice
Alcobol, Tobacco and Firearms Training Assisiance 16.012 1597
Enforcing Underage Drinking Laws (EUDL) 16.727 JUV 07 JDOT FOg 17,032
ARRA Governor's Office of Drug Control Policy: 16,803 09 JAG ARRA 263 79,959
AREA Byroe JAG Law Enforcement 16,804 2009 5B B9 (549 3,000
Drug Enforcement NiA 2.144
HIDTA Pai A, 09 GO9 MW 000D 94 3,137
406,309
Department of Transportation
Iowa Depariment of Transportation
ARRA Full Depth Patching 20.205 ESL 1827 (660) 75 82 238,516
ARRA Front Porch Parkway 20.205 ESL 1827 (662) 75 82 192,327
430,843
awa De ment of Matrural
ARRA Reduce lowa Dieseal Exhaust (RIDE [} 66.039 ESD 7270 CLAIMS 100144 98,036
ARRA Reduce lowa Diescal Exhaust (RIDE 11} 66,039 ESD 7270 CLAIMS 110148 125,000
223,036
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration
Governor's Traffic Safety Bureau:
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 PAP 11-04 Task 10 13,648
Total Indirect 1,073,836
Total 17,453,513
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STATISTICAL SECTION




Statistical Section

This part of the City of Davenport’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about Davenport’s overall financial health.

Financial Trends — These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how Davenport's
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity — These schedules contain information to help the reader assess Davenport’s most significant
local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity — These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of Davenport’s
current levels of outstanding debt and our ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information — These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which Davenport’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information — These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how
the information in Davenport's financial report relates 1o the services we provide and the activities we perform.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual financial reports
for the relevant year,



CITY RT

NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT,
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS
Iag'wl EI; nngnunting!

P
L

Governmental activilies
Invested in capital asseis, net of related debi
Restricied
Unrestrictied

Towal governmental activities net assets

Business-1ype activities
Invested in capital asscts, net of related debt
Restricied
Unrestricted

Todal business-type activities net asscls

Primary government
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government nei assets

Fiscal Year

i 2010 2009 2008
[26.69] 668 125,751,423 105380683 § 107377588
12739452 26,268,506 37,923,794 34,634,008
(3.483.506) {22,165,731) 2,604,253 3,975,550
135,947,614 129 854,258 145,998,730 & 145,987,146
123,757,219 113,558,845 106,460,687 § 109,164,803
3,849,157 4,414,849 - -
{1, 280,067} 4,336,900 13,226,200 12,464,481
i 26,326,309 122,310,594 119,686,887 §  121.629,284
250,448 887 239310,268 211341370 & 216,542.39]
16,588,609 30,683,415 37.923,794 34,634,008
(4.763.573) (17,828,831} 15920453 16,440,031
262,273,923 252,164,852 265,685,617 § 267516430
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Frscal Year

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
1

5 89441418 5  GEEZI06S § 58,164,547 §  TI0TVEES 5 T2011 446
43,140,165 52,997,137 35,494,223 40,472,202 41,416,734
5,039,462 6,977,388 5,903,723 5,574,170 4,568,399
$ 137621045 5 128797590 5 1290562493 5 123,123957 5 11B.096,579
5 109968802 S5 114960736 5 100497072 § 91650821 § 93,049,920
12,747,591 14,110,629 13,644,118 21,741.675 18,449,446
5 12276393 5 1X071,365 53 HIAI4L190 5 11339249 F 110499369
5 199410220 5 183783800 5 188661619 S5 16872B406 5 165160366
43,140,165 52,997,137 35,494,223 40,472,202 41,416,734
17,787.053 21088017 19,547,841 27,315,845 23,017,848
§ 2060337438 0§ 257868055 0% 0 243703683 5 236516453 5 229,505048
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CHANGES IN NET ASSETS,
LAST NIKE FISCAL YEARS

5
Lrccrund besis pl nccenting) —
Fiscal Year
2001 T 2006 2008 200 e 2008 200 203
Gravermme:nial sctivitica:
Ciandral govermment 3 GO4I F 938507 5 IIGS2G 3 RAIS 4 RYLDOEE 5 A4l 5 I0A45510 3 HAA04E4 5 GA3SATO
Pubdic safety A2 0ah 042 4615260 37 6,02 ITIIVS 7, i 34K 35330, 19K Jed Ty TDOTLON TN MG AT
Publac woeks 4130113 i1 11,727,383 251 3Y [EAIER 1) 19,152,941 VEIER, 161 15,268,995 17512530
Culvan and eeroation (KX ERE 2 19,395,592 13,924,554 11,663,190 10BN 2007 15,08, 106 [Lierk Bp)) 14,720,304 2793268
Commanity and eooncmic deve hipses 14 EBDEIS 24.5925.403 17 8 i IW,&N’A LLIEHRNE 1A% 550 V54036 Bl L6 R0 pLULEL R
Inigrest cn fong-1em dein h. 252,507 5.15% 3477360 4971495 ST 4 (s 60 4, W17 300
Toasd p | netivities [E i 159730508 (RN wh 2\'.'5.5“ SLE44 D53 4335619 533130140 95,545,710 DERSD. 543
Blaslress-1ype sapvitics
St operatinns 15.506.121 14,614,261 13560251 12593301 13275844 1245950 12.234,174 1,612,949 P DX T EY
Parking system 200257 3,H05.M0 1130540 3304,256 LT 580 223088 | SET3Ls IOR9ETY 1AL A3
Riverccaia 16162067 110 5 2273408 02 2 ukd R L1880 1856510 Lite.nd 1IHN654
Pl irans 5 B SED RELLE f.243412 5008767 300408 4781 R13 44064738 4,343,437 4 488 60T
Public huusasg 1kE3 S (R TR 144,289 1,045,723 1036, 560 DB4,THY 6,557 Q0413 wall ey
Caall cinarse Iovanm 1305 035 2215.13% Lac 014 1385, THS T30 4 1514 AT 1105937
Ampon STR.TES 35530 336250 56,130 EAERL ] =02 14f AMETTT 412,150 ELEN v
Solel wase 309222 43352306 4451 4,426, 1) 4434023 4,148 804 4255 A4 025,104 1194802
Cleg wimer (1) PR LNEY 1331578 1 B0 26 1T AR 1684045 160k 151 - -
Rivemcdge AR 04 L. 1658
Toaal bushvess. ype sliviines e Ik 40 L ERITTE ﬁ.li@ 125 [H6Hd FABETIH 0L IGH He055. 350 T 9T 057 264127 504

“Tudal primary povermment Tpedses.

Program revemses
Gowemens atal aoyfvitles:

5 IGHAETES 5

105 44U.50 8

1401081 1 7

$ 1XTIAIIR S 1250] 1INy 5 134T

1iill St

SITZ ARG & JIHA81

3

Charges for sarvices:
Gezeral governmen! 30 O3400TRY 5 MEDEG § 0 JSOAS1] 5 49046 5 LaBSA30 B 1 HOTIMZ % LATTISY O§F O LS474S 5 LATRNYa
Pralsl: xadeny 4275343 1ATI M 1.9%1 G2 1. 780,379 LI 612 L1755 L5TY 554 1 Af 540 LIT5217
Pubdic werks T3S0 500 A% 1212046 § ARGAYE NI 1753460 20582 205000
Culure and merollos 10N 1 ABLS6 1255530 1.1 55T 1774460 JA20, ok 459 572 friE wd] LR N
Community and éxusnmic development ALY TE3 Ty Ta2 diha R4l 72,30 RANE ] (e & [EirLE ] 051,78y

Operzling prants and coceshilsigs V5 54 o 17583, 3540 14561005 b4 A5 15244322 18, hiad A0 LE,263. 763 IT R 20

Cagmal grant amd conteibstions 0,053,047 TSR 5315374 430 B4 A AIFIAHID TR AIREIAT | R 13963333

Toaal g pal esfwiles prgrsn revonues___ STH43. 524 113,353 #ir) T RA0ARL KR

Dz - Lype sciivites

Chiarges for servaoes
Sevwer uperations 14TEAT 11693354 11,7605 Vi REI N & 005032 1,325 D8l 030702 104535963 INLEAT 507
Parking syslem | 399,623 1,454 569 1673,H25 | AT 1. P63 0HS 1 /57 506 165 LTI 1261027
Rivescentes 1,327,314 i, o [MEIF 5] QKR 2146 SR LI53a77 269,530 1 464,777 Bl d 1
Pl grsaesit 306, 7% AMRIR0 AT9 0506 251050 A55.216 233,792 507,908 411,353 356,238
Puisli housing disEM METLL IR M2 THHE. Gl 34 The N 2L 330,357 I3 064
Falf courses 1475575 L2550 LIIT pad 1736253 Lil0TEL 1358400 T a0 051 286411 1ITININ
Atpei 175 002 TRE 24 1ED, 106 HEA R 175,622 173604 154,581 14T |47 965
Solid waxie (1) A 592 T9H 4404 BT EXLTE i) 4577640 4,45] 885 3377700 37Ham 1610426 1. 233,03
Cless waer (1) 1,784,222 LTHLERS 1. TOABS LTGS2 1718423 s . f f
Riwers Bdpe 13) 254061 EE 0N

Operatiay grans and i LAS4 110 LIILI 24 | 357504 1792100 (R ERE ] 1669204 1163560 1,655,812 1,442 e

Caparsd gprant and cuieibsines 1 L] FaT? | AlELIS 216D HED 4,092,000 T Ai 14 4340012 EARER 2] e ]

Tutsl Busingus-13po activities prograny sevesust X RI54%3 34.I69;J.‘_9§ 27.265.71% P NTENT 27947797 LT ITAaufG  35260.133 _IH.RSAE94

Tuskd pattenany o pE

5 GETHNY 5 GASELTUT 5§ S57A7 4%l %

100

JUAT AT & RAESUIIE 5 G2 9T

5 IR ARR

RTINS § 67050493



Fiscall Yem

pN] Hin i W LI A0 105 i 2] 23
el | ExponselfRevenme - ——
Crvemmeansl sctivitics BOTRSALENN 3 W ITI0M 5 (TeRAIITI B O (GBIE50E3) 3 (6593301210 § (GDTGAIHI) § es0ATARIED $iS553R.73Z) § (54649345
Tanirgu-iype activilics Tah043 11 347 615} {604 (i) 351 64K {51 iRl 139,32 3510654 1 330008} 13130

Tonal prisuary govermisal nel cipehae 3 _ATTEIS 947 5 (0% ERd R4} 3 a0 5 m.?ﬂi.?.‘lt ] ﬁl.:El.l-l!] 5 (OR35S 5621 5 E.ﬂ_ﬂ&nl FLATOTS 60T § (51 E]‘_'L.Dd\]t

Genernl Revenues and Oibier Changes in Nel Adieis
Gavemmental activitios:

Taxes
Prapeny ey 50350397 % NS24401 5 S660C34T 5 SLTIADAY 5 MIONQTEE § 40TI4TIR F STOS00IE 5 40,784,134 % 40,750,239
Lu<al aptian sales tax 14.044,100 140061 50 14,268 554 14,525,248 1408214 (Rl 12,556,556 12 492602 [FXLAE L)
Hotelimotel 12 1434327 [Pl 1143325 VAT A5 1, 5R8.2610 LALETTT 1,305,028 1,453,264 LAYS 59
Franchise 1as LHTAITY L3 213 330500 EN 1 3121 1105130 2082 228 k0,52
Invesimon) eamngs [FUENE]] 1035244 1,390,993 2853086 JEIRTET EX UL rs] 1,943,906 1542007 1546216
Dadn an sale of caplial asseid TINS5 A5.547 40 31385 .1 T8 367 5446 = - .
Miuz [Eameous Al 53761 W 0dT 62452 41118 362904 195,533 200 640 133,04
Teesfom LATR.26 [Sd8. il (34 10} {300 3151 [TRE. 484} £ 0 Jath by LN L] (IR 1611 ,958)
Total govemmental acilvitics E1935 306 A0 T ThUTA85 TRTITELR T4KET T 00| 30 &3 364,050 1 A63 550 S0E%s (HA
Basinces-type aciviliex
Prapeny weies (public rssin) 1IT62T J3ENAm 3140350 T 575 1007 508 2.905 495 LI60K03 1428006 21352047
Irvesiment dantings 635137 Tipasr A0 305 A0 513 T2 &OH, 124 A6 EH) Jaamnd 43 436
L=z an dumation of copein| weseds - . g {5504 K26) - . - .
Misceflanzoaus 62 652 FELIEEES TEL3 5 564 &5,151 &5 586 5408 T4 3887
Tramler 11382640 A8 iy I8N oA Thd 400 11,349 H4% G0 1TH FHILID &11.558
Talal husimess-type aciviies 3268971 4.171,322 4104 567 ERTEEED] {1236, 5511 15,009 494 A, 359 14K 1450481 3,604,178
Total primary goversimnei RS 3k 168 5 E.Eaﬁﬂ 3 I'II.I:I‘.I"FM_E 5 ELMTATE 3 ?i a'l.'.l.vlﬂ.! 5 '-'5.1'!’.-‘_’“&31 ] ﬁ&g:?ﬂ 5 GEMEANTE E G.M
Chamge in Met Assots
Cueerasmental actinilicn 5 AN 3 (160144470 5 1584 5 EMGISIF 5 HRMIFY § e 5 S0 3 IS 8 5184740
Duriners-iypo activithes 445,715 123,100 1,942 397) 41LORT 1 (6354972 14,030,175 T e | 003,127 44 | A4S0
Tokal prismary poverrmes| 5 TMEA "iil 5 (13520708 § t1.‘.l‘30.l_l3b £ TIRAMD OE RSGLE] % I-IJHEET‘Z 5 S&W 3 Bﬂlﬂaﬂ ; [TW %]
{1} In liscal year 2005, the city poawed the solid wasn diviion i governmestal sctivities, puble works 1o gols the exisiting rocycling division ond sade o

sl wisle bissiness-13pe activity.
{2} I fincol year HKWG, the caty spdis the chean waler divison [rom poversmental acivities, peblic warks i a Bniecs-ype activity,

{31 Mawrky aerpsired Facility in fiscal pear 210
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CITY OF I PORT

FUND B EFICITS L FLiN
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Imodiﬁgg accrual basis of am:oun!iﬁt
Fiscal Year
2011 2000 2009 2008 2007
General Fund
MNonspendable s 17.069 % - 5 - % - 5 -
Restricied 3,883.934 - - -
Commitled - - - B -
Assigned 351,836 & - = -
Unassignid 5.302,141 - - - .
Reserved - 4,781,365 5.837.263 5,468,328 5,897 658
Unreserved - 5640833 4,961,376 5,057,016 6,658,196
Total Geperal Fund 0, 84,080 FO422, 200 10.798,630 10525344 12.555,854
— e —— = =
All Other Governmental funds
Monspendable - - - -
Resiricied 14,266,498 - - -
Comimitied 1,058,735 - .
Assigned . - .
Linassigned {1,035.514) - . = =
Reserved - 8558420 32,666,636 27,099,618 32,790,103
Unieserved, reported in special
revenue funds - (1,956,132} 980,072 3,754,094 6,527 897
Capital project funds - (503.039) . - -
Total All Other Governmental funds 5 14,289.730 § 6098349 8 33.646708 5 30953712 5§ 39315000
e e e =

o T

The City implemented GASB Stztement No. 54, (Fund Balance Reporiing and Governmental Fand Type Definitions), in fiscal year 201 1.
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Fiscal Year

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
5 g P - - 5 S 3
6,466,266 5932616 5,050,104 5,060,818 6,283,879
7,561,089 7173302 7.520.660 6,607,063 6,473,500
14,028,255 13,106,008 12,570,764 11,667,881 12,757,478
41,987,383 33,277,257 33,305,150 35,191,771 36,656,434
6,116,563 5,554,019 6,186,458 5,269,271 5,283,533
(710,670) (7.430,722) (3,067,709 (3.267.011) (4,575.568)
$ 47393776 5 31400554 5 36423899 F 37194031 §5 37364300

= ——————— ce RIS
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CITY OF DAVENPORT.

CHANGES IN
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

{meodified peeryal basis of accounting)

GOVER

Revenues

Tanes

Spocial assessments
Licenses and permiis
Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Lise of monies and property
Femes and Forfeis

Loan repayments

Ouber

Total revenues

Expenditures (1)

General govertiment
Public safery
Public works
Coluere and recreation
Community and economic development
Polley and admmistration
Community protection
Human development
Home and communily environment
Capital outlay
[Dhetd service
Prisscipal
Interes
Bond keasance expense

Total expenditures

Excess of revenees over (under)
expenditures

Crther Financing Sources {Uses)

Bond ismance

Driscount on deb ssued

Premium on debt issued

Refunding bonds issued

Payment 1o refunded bond escrow agent
Sale of caplal assers

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total ather financing sourees (uses)
Met change in fund balances

Diehi sorvice as a percentage of
noncapital expenditures

Fiscal Year
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
7RI 5 T7.168.031 75500579 F 71900380 §  71.440,755
157,683 37717 6,806 139,517 50,982
1,238,659 1,275,935 1154 269 I 406,632 1,395,934
31,332,008 20024273 12,579,186 17,417,503 17,053,854
4,146,542 3,926,869 4,081,012 1,616,358 2,798,325
1,014,156 1,035,244 1,390,993 2,953,986 1.830,767
1,967,004 1,314,564 DIE. 544 554,937 73092
F30.600 648,806 611,113 584,230 663,341
4519410 4,362,830 1,257,734 2106748 2,105,786
123,945 881 1 18,794,365 107.573.436 102,770,321 100,221,836
B.178,030 §.370,902 7.54%,694 T.908.979 7215702
39,137,701 38,211,590 37719742 37,817,252 36,215,539
17,073,081 17.169,622 15,838,441 15,316,163 IL312816
11,485,665 12,738,612 11,113,692 10,182 468 G.406,214
13,823,997 20,305,456 17,030,952 $.930,172 8,960,230
35710271 56,227,626 25,930,860 24,965,390 30,935 403
17.071,575 14,912,235 12,125,079 12,466,632 13,256,573
6,233,849 6,078,034 5,030,293 5151715 5,235,443
150,055 153,704 285,250 B4 386 68,326
[4B. 864, 1 0d 174,167 771 132,952,963 123,827,107 123,109 586
(24918313 {55.373,406) {15.429.527) 121056, 786) {22.887.750)
25,709,250 28.676,000 26,820,000 0.0010,000 13,940,000
- {66,902) 56,945 155.433 (51,222)
1,377,130 30,608
3,687,250 6,546,400 4,380,000 10859625
3,880,000 6,355,300} - (4,354.806) {10008 00K
728,558 i, 608 4,805 51,385 78176
17.023.775 16,951,068 17,244 760 14,574,161 14,210,513
(15.224.3500 {17.300.734) {15.730.793) (1405277 (14721 821}
29,001,633 28,248,608 28,395,818 10.663.4 16 13.410.271
4093300 % 5211243m 2066201 8 (103933700 S (9.477.479)
1 7.28% 12.92% 15.26% 17.72% 19.48%

{19 In fiscal year 2003 the siate changed the expenditure reponing calegories.
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Fiscal ear

2006 2005 004 2003 2002
5 67238905 5 63519997 5 60657581 5 SR5EQ7I3 % 56120537
40,515 35,964 18.098 45,485 109,613
1,623,543 1.600,302 1,556,959 1,474,719 1,330,200
19,720,182 21,801,090 28,447,769 27,433,000 22,009,253
3,400,189 3,334 847 3.304,151 3,462,165 2931111
3000775 1,943, %66 1,542,997 1,546,216 3,185,533
Q97,004 a4, 751 533,863 481,059 565,819
594,820 978,166 76217 007,832 981,357
4308377 3.052 499 2430598 1.805.786 1,439,359
101.033.23% 96,501,582 | (K0, 148,233 05787385 7,691,782
7.242.260 6878912 6,661,912 6,032,938
33,930,920 31,530,164 M566.T713 19,230,179
11,789,864 11,829,081 19,305,594 33,558,630
8,432,061 T.878,176 15,210,977 12,048, 168
10,0 6,504 10,937 442 13,964,776 12,530,841 -
6,885,044
18,037,272
B052 451
19,252 381
31,196,883 26,981 978 26,820,496 802,681 16,867,400
13,049,158 10,809,309 11,095,493 9,971,020 9.237.935
4,816,787 4,540,030 4. 144,917 4,267,904 4,244 564
105,731 350 330021 47,563 -
| 20 TEDS5E 111 438 8583 | 2760001 106.536.016 93,527,047
(19.747.215) {14.547.301) (270126681 (107486310 (5.835,265)
35,660,000 1355000 27,475,000 10,140,000 13,967,750
{148.544) (18.161) {154,068) {51468} -
= 11,337,000 5,885,000
. - (11,199,276} (5.816.541)
1643, 684 95,946 69,753 12002 17,762
14,507,366 11,876,152 12,028,025 12,158,543 12,882,356
{14.999 815) {12.249,737) (12410.044) (12770500 {13.323.818)
366626088 10059, 200 270145419 0,488,665 13.612.209
5 16905469 5 (4ABRIDIY S |3£§| 5 (1.299965) S5 7.776.944
19.94% 18, 18% 15,19% 14.72% 17.65%
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CITY OF DAVE

ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

IN THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS

ACTUAL VALUE

Levy Fiscal
Year Year Residential Commercial  Industrial  Agricolural  Utilities Other
2000 2002 2,332,603 997,859 183,034 17.461 197,345 32,952
2001 2003 2,583,593 1,144,674 173,102 17,933 202,306 12,730
2002 2004 2,631,773 I, 166,494 171,056 18,107 209,260 979
2003 2005 2,912,339 1,296,665 167,366 14,088 221476 602
2004 2006 3,126,797 1,317,790 165,524 14,030 230,234 919
2005 2007 3,361,503 1,437,813 162,735 14,715 233,767 1.123
2006 2008 3,531,282 1,451,082 158,288 14,580 247,982 1418
2007 2009 3,747,601 1,562,748 171,687 14,782 239,523 2,317
2008 2010 3,784,782 1,579,002 163,691 14,589 262,718 3,078
2009 2011 3,838410 1,569,003 154,658 20,246 272,575 3,088
Levy Fiscal TAXABLE VALUE
Year Year  Residential Commercial [ndustrial  Apricultural  Utilities Other
2000 2002 1,311,263 004,505 178,42] 17,274 197,344 32,952
2001 2003 1,334,571 1,118,462 173,102 17.933 202,135 12,720
2002 2004 1,351,999 1,166,494 171,056 18,107 208,836 979
2003 2005 1.410,066 1,286,675 167,366 14,088 225,060 598
2004 2006 1498414 1,317,790 165,524 14,030 215,864 919
2005 2007 1,545,096 1,425,136 162,735 14,715 206,783 1113
2006 2008 1,607,643 1,451,082 158,288 14,580 203,541 1.418
2007 2009 1,650,821 1,558,379 171,687 13,319 208,017 2311
2008 2010 1,721,872 1,579,002 163,691 13,693 209,530 3.077
2009 2011 1,797,306 1,569,003 154,658 13,417 205,383 3.088

Motes: By state law all property subject to taxation is valued every 2 years subject o an
equalization action of the State Department of Revenue. The Assessor establishes actual
valuation (100%) as of January | in a calendar year for taxes payable in the succeeding

fiscal year. The actual value of property is provided by the assessor to the County Auditor
who then determines the taxable value. The taxable value is computed by adjusting the actual
value of various classes of property by percentages (roll back rates) determined by the State
Department of Revenue. The roll back rates are applied to classes of property on a state-wide
basis so that the increase in actual valuations of property in the State will not exceed 4%
annually, For property values as of January 1, 2005, the roll back rare was 45.996% for
residential property and .85% for commercial and other. For the remaining classes of property,
the taxable value was equal to 100% of actual value,

Source:  Levy rate sheet and valuation from Scott County.
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Ciross valuation

3,761,254
4,134,338
4,197,669
4,612,536
4,855,294
5.211,656
5,404,632
5,738,658
5,807,858
5.857,980

Gross valuation

2,731,849
2,858,923
2917471
3,103,853
3.212,541
3,355,578
3,436,552
3,604,534
3,690,865
3,742 855

Less Military
exemption

(11,716)
(11,692)
(11,356)
{11.066)
(10,756}
(10,733)
(10,496)
(10,515)
(10,350}
(10,216)

Less Military
exemption

(11,716}
(11,692)
(11.356)
(11,066)
(10,756)
(10,735)
(10,496)
(10,513)
(10,350)
{10,216)

t valuagion

3,749,538
4,122,646
4,186,313
4,601,470
4,844,538
5,200,923
5,394,136
5,728,143
5,797,508
5,847,764

Met valuation

2,720,133
2,847,231
2,906,115
3,092,787
3,201,785
3,344,843
3.426,056
3,594,019
3,680,515
3,732,639

Total direct
tax rate

14.63%%
14.63%
14.96%
15.24%
15.24%
15.58%
15.58%
15.58%
15.58%
15.53%
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CITY OF DAVENPORT

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

i;ate per §l*ﬂﬂﬂ of W ﬂlﬂﬁl

Fiscal

Year

2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
200
2011

General

8.10
8.10
.10
8.0
8.10
8.10
B.10
B.10
5.10
810

Ton

Lighility Agency Libeary (1)

0.36
0.00
0.34
0.34
0.30
.30
0.30
0.30
.30
0.25

City Direct Rates

Trust &

400
4.36
4.36
436
440
3.97
397
3.97
3.97
397

0.27
0.27
0.27
0.27
0.27
0.27
027

Debt

Transit Emergency  Service Total

0.51
0.9]
0.91
0.91
0.91
0.91
0.91
0.91
0.1
0.9

(1} First year for voter approved Library Levy was fiscal year 2003,

Source: City of Davenport Finance Department

0.27
0.27
027
0.27
0.27
0.27
0.27
0.27
0.27
0.27

.99
0.99
0.99
0.99
0.93
L.76
1.76
1.76
i.76
1.76

1463
14.63
1497
1524
15.24
15.58
15.58
15.5%
15.58
15.53
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Scott
County

417
4.48
4.81
4.76
3.57
3.51
5.54
5.34
547
6.38

Overlapping Rates

Davenport  Area IX
Schools  Collepe  Other

1547
16.96
17.08
1710
17.10
17.11
17.11
17.08
17.09
17.11

0.60
0.62
0.62
0.59
0.59
.61
.61
0.61
0.88
0.92

0.38
0.44
0.38
034
0.33
0.36
0.37
0.35
0.33
0.31

Toal

35.25
37.13
37.86
38.03
38.83
3017
3921
38.96
39.35
40.25
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CITY OF DAVENPORT

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN AL YEARS

Fiscal Taxes Current Percentage
Year Levied Collections of Levy
2002 43,159,271 42,499 603 O0B.47%
2003 44,910,592 44,143,261 98.29%
2004 46,532,163 45,815,344 98 46%
2005 50,180,308 49,586,833 08.82%
2006 53,083,691 52,441,378 08,79%
2007 55,616,871 55,351,006 99.52%
2008 57327443 57,218,872 99.81%
2009 60,026,971 59,657,908 99.39%
2010 61,880,687 61,684,773 99.68%
2011 62,430,924 62,382,970 00.52%

Source: Levy rate sheel from Scott County, current
collections per monthly tax allocation reports.
Information not available on delinquent collections
by levy vear.
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F DAVENFORT

PRINCIF, X PAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
2011 2002
% of % of
i Taxable taxahle Taxable taxable
MName of Properly Properiy type Valuation  Rank value Valuation  Rank  wvalue
Mid American Energy Utility 142,084,580 | 382% § 145492880 1 5.35%
SDG Macerich Properties Shopping Center 63,972,785 2 L.72% 65,105,400 2.39%
lowa-American Water Co, Uility 46,024,803 3 1.24% 43 899,662 1.61%
Gulf Investments LLC Uiliny 24,522,800 4 0.66% - .
Deere & Company Manufacluring 22.330,004 5 0.60% 26,262,293 097%
Davenport-Dublter Family Trusi Commercial 20,554,200 6 0.55% - -
EPT Ninteen Inc. Theatre Complexcs 17,363,359 7 0.47% -
QWEST Urility 17,105,700 ] 046% - -
Oscar Mayer & Co. Meat Packing 15,370,986 9 0.41% 19,808,907 T 0.73%
Quanex Manufaciuring 14,990,863 10 0.40% 21,461,244 5 0.79%
Peterson Propenties LC Industrial Center - - 20,772,321 [ 0.76%
Matignal Amusement Inc. Theatre Complexes - - 18,322,700 8 0.67%
Bradley Operation Shopping Center - - 15,587,000 9 0.57%
Ralston Purina Co. Grain Milling - - 15,089,944 10 0.55%
Toal § 384,320,080 10.33% § 391,802,351 |4, 40%:
———————— e e —— - — e ==y

Source: Scott County Auditor's Office,
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CITY OF DAVENPORT

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Adollars in thousands, exceptpercapita)
GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES
General Other General Other
Fiscal Obligation Obligation  Long-term
Year Bonds Debt
2002 77013 B0 716
2003 77,287 715 703
2004 94,701 620 407
2005 94,549 517 206
2006 117,445 404 33
200 118,219 281 20
2008 115,865 147 T
2009 130,713 - 5
2010 144,488
2011 152,715

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES
General Total
Obligation Primary
Bonds Government

22,547 101,082
25,648 104,353
25,109 120,837
24,186 119,458
22 280 140,162
20,606 139,126
19,810 135,829
18,392 149,105
18,647 163,135
24,384

Percentage
of Personal
Income (1)

3.82%
3182%
4.36%
4.25%
4.16%
3.93%
3.66%
3.88%
4.04%

177,099 unavailable

Note: Details regarding the city’s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements,

(1) See Demographic and economic statistics schedule for personal income and population data,

The personal income and population data is not yet available,

Per
Capita (1)

1,031
1,066
1,237
1,226
1,439
1424
1.372
1,479
1610
1,777

Source: City of Davenpornt Finance Department and U5, Department of Commerce "Survey of Current Business: for
Davenport, Rock [sland, Moline SMSA.
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CITY OF DAVENPORT

R GENERAL T OUTSTANDIN
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
dollars in thousa t per capita
General Percentage of

Fiscal Obligation Taxable Value Per
Year Debt of Property (1) Capita
2002 100,366 3.69% 1,024
2003 103,650 3.64% 1,059
2004 120,430 4.14% 1,233
2005 119,252 3.86% 1,224
2006 140,129 4.38% 1,439
2007 139,106 4.16% 1,424
2008 135,822 3.96% 1,372
2009 149,105 4.15% 1.479
2010 163,135 4.43% 1.610
2011 177,099 4.765% 1,777

Note: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can
be found in the notes to the financial statements.

(1} See Assessed and Taxable Value table for property value data,

Source: City of Davenport Finance Department and
Scott County Auditor’s Office.
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Y OF DAVENPORT

DIRE OVERLAPPIN AL ACTIVITI EBT
UNE 30, 2011
{dollars in thousands)
Percentage Share of
Governmental Unit Debt applicable Overlapping
Outstanding to City Debt

Scott County 15,660,000 53.59%% 8,392,194
Eastern lows Community College 69,525,000 31.63% 21,990,758

Subtotal, overlapping debt 30,382,952

City direct debt 177,099,000

Total direct and overlapping debt

207,481,952

Sources: Debt outstanding data provided by each governmental unit. Percent applicable

to city provided by Scott County.
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Y OF DAVENP

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
LAST TENFISCAL YEARS

Fiscal year 2002 2003 2004 2005

Debyt limit b 190,875,662 § 208925388 § 211,734,034 £ 232991693
Total net debt applicable to limit 100,366,235 103,649 548 129,560,074 128,381,797
Legal debt margin § 90,509,427 § 105275840 § 8173960 % 104.609,896

Total net debt applicable to the
limit as a percentage of debt limit 52.58% 49.61% 6i.19% 55.010%

Note: Iowa State law limits local governments debt to 3% of its gross assessed valuation.

Source: City of Davenport Finance Department.
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Legal debt margin calculation for Fiscal Year 2010

Assessed valuation 3 5,953,276,85]
Debt limit (5% of assessed value) § 297,663,843
Debt applicable 1o limit:
General Obligation Bonds 177,099,000
Tax Increment Financing Rebate Agreements 12,867,525
Total G.0O. Indebtedness 189,966,525
Legal debt margin $ 107,697,318
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

$ 246426202 § 263,977,950 § 274332381 § 290,703,247 $  295219,101 297,663,843

148,020,153 148,364,852 148,501,164 159,957,382 176,092,605 § 189,966,525

3 97497049 § 115613098 % 125831217 § 130745865 $ 119,126 496 § 107,697,318

60.44% 56.20% 54.13% 55.02% 59.65% 63.82%

117



CITY OF DAV RT

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN YEARS
Per Capita
Personal Personal School Unemployment

Year Population (1) Income Income {2) Enrollment {3) Rate (4)
2001 98,900 2,589,795,400 26,186 16,831 2.9%
2002 08,000 2,646,490,000 27,005 17,210 37%
2003 97,900 2,729,354,100 27,879 16,544 4. 7%
2004 97,700 2,773,116,800 28,384 16,077 4.5%
2005 97,400 2,811,840,600 28,869 15,543 4.8%
2006 97.400 3,366,046,600 34,559 15.674 4.3%
2007 97,682 3,536,869,856 36,208 15,365 4.3%
2008 98,975 3.715.026,625 37,535 15,967 4.2%
2009 101,335 3,837,979,755 38,065 15,405 6.9%
2010 99,685 4.041,341,135 39,851 15,407 7.0%

Sources:

(1) Sales and Marketing Management, Survey of Buying Power, September issues.

{2) BEA website-AMSAO4-Advance Metropolitan Statistical Area Income Summary

for Davenport, Rock Tsland, Moline SMSA as of calendar year end.

(3) Davenport Community School District based on census at start of school year.

(4} Towa Workforce Development, for Davenport as of calendar year end
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_CITY OF DAVENPORT

FRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO (1)
12/31/2001 1243172010
Employer Percentage of Percentage of
Total City Total City
Emplovees  Rank Employment Employees  Rank Employment

Grenesis Medical Centers 3,200 ! 6.17% 4,900 I 9.85%
MNorthpark Mall 3,000 2 5.78% -
Davenport Community Schools 2,323 3 4.48% 2,096 2 421%
ALCOA - 2,030 3 4.08%
Kraft Foods/Oscar Mayer 1,700 4 3.28% 1.650 4 3.32%
Eastern lowa Community College 1,045 5 201% 1005 7 2.00%
City of Davenport 932 6 | .80% 1,059 5 2.13%
MidAmerican Energy Company - 1,025 6 2.06%
John Deere Davenport Works 892 7 1.72% -
PresidentRhythm City Casino 124 g 1. 39% 0 11 121%
APAC Teleservices 600 g L.16% S00 8 1.81%
United Parcel Service 584 4] |.13% 590 13 1.19%
St Ambrose University 550 11 1.06% 636 9 1.28%
Sears Manufaciuring 484 iz 0.93% 600 I 1.21%
Von Maur 449 i3 0.87% 560 14 1.13%
Scott County 425 14 0.82% 455 15 0.91%
Quad City Times 340 5 0.66% -
ATET - 5110 10 1.23%

17,248 33.23% 18,716 37.62%

Source: Quad City Development Group, Direct staff contact with Company
(13 Information not available as of 6/3041 1, therefore information is presented as of calendar year,
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CITY OF DAVENPORT

FULL-TIME & PART-TIME EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS
June 3, 2011
i) 2000 2008 2007 2006
FULL PART FULL PART FULL. PART FULL PART FULL  PART
FUNCTIONPROGRAM TIME  TIME TIME _TIME TIME__TIME TIME TIME TIME _ TIME
PUBLIC SAFETY
Police 194 35 217 9 0a 27 212 1 2% 24
Fire 149 . 153 2 155 - 153 I 149 2
PUBLIC WORKS 281 3l 284 34 178 k1) 278 st 280 26
CULTURE & RECREATION
Leisure Facilities and Services I 131 k) 129 32 76 a5 3 3 3z
Library 43 44 41 37 39 35 8 34 43 32
Misseum of An . . - - - - . . - -
COMMURNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 32 12 39 13 37 12 7 11 33 1
CGENERAL GOVERNMENT
Mayor 2 - 2 - 2 . p . 2 -
Council 1 10 0 11 ! I 1 i I 1
Finance 2 2 2 5 2 2 23 - n 2
Informaion Technology ] 2 10 - HJ - I 9 I
Administrathon & - 7 - 7 - 7 7 -
Legal 4 : 4 = # . 4 . 5 .
Human Resources 5 2 5 2 5 3 & 4 & a
Civil Rights 4 [ 4 2 4 1 4 s 4 3
Tozal 789 210 g22 264 B0G 197 Bl 137 308 149
_ T e i

{13 In 2004 e Museum of Art became a siand alone entity whetcas bn prior years the cployees were Cily employees.

{21 In 2005 Information Technology became a stand alone depanment. 1t had previously been reponed with Finance,

Source: Ciay of Davengon Depanment of Human Resources.




2003 004 2003 2002 2001
FULL PART FULL PART FULL. PART FULL PART FULL PART
TIME  TIME TIME  TIME TIME  TIME TIME  TIME TIME  TIME
203 24 198 4 03 24 03 5 202 8
|43 . 140 - L4 - 146 I48 -
295 13 293 15 3o 21 3 2 03 2
33 A5 35 a5 43 4 44 33 46 3z
42 p.ad 35 2 36 24 34 ril 1) 25
. - - . 9 4 1 3 16 ]
44 [ 46 & 43 . 40 I k5 .
z . 1 - 2 - z . 2 .
1 io 1 ] I i 1 D 1 1]
23 - 8 - I - 31 - i3 -
) 7 I

5 . 5 5 - b 4

5 . 5 - [ - 7 [
[ I 7 1 3 . [ 7 -
4 4 4 4 4 1 3 - 4 !
$15 131 #00 130 230 24 345 12t 247 i35

[
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CITY OF DAVENPORT

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
June 3, 2011
FISCAL YEAR

FUMCTIONFROGRAM 2011 10 29 2008 2007
FUBLIC SAFETY
Fire calls answered 14,965 14399 13,342 13,188 13,257
Police-arrests 1) 7,151 7.529 8.526 B 960 D813
Construection penmils issusd 2510 2426 2,1% 2133 2.051
PUBLIC WORKS
Refuse collected (cu yds per year) 25.604 25,737 wons 26,789 nons 71,000 74,185
Gallons of wastewaler processed (in millionsy (1) 10.ETY L1607 10,038 10,731 7,884
Yard waste composted {ou yds) 103,379 102176 109 800 08,030 107,361
Cititus ridership 1,202,929 1,180,383 1,125,000 1088, 00 I045,550
Utility service customers 40,000 40000 40,000 40,000 0,000
CULTURE & RECREATION
Rounds of golf played T1.243 20,113 101,813 136,386 113,128
Swimming pools sltendance AT 30830 27,708 TR000 31,000
Recreation programs avaitable 910 540 636 1061 554
Recreation program enrollment 37600 42,500 38.844 3039 48,301
Libsary - walk-in patrons served 578957 511,258 449,218 395,498 390,302
COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Plannifig & zoning-final development review 5 2 5 3 15

TR 750 TG 01 680

Housenolds assisied whth nental assistance

(1} Amounts for FY 08 and prior have been changed
Lo fiscal year amounts from calendar year amounis

Source: Varbous Ciy of Davenpon depaniments.

122



FISCAL YEAR

2006 2005 2004 2003 20002 2001

12,294 1,729 10420 1,177 11.248 10,926
B899 7,740 Ta08 7472 TAT8 1223
2,328 LG50 1.690 2918 3352 4020
TEHA27 71,324 70,878 T1.481 73,206 74224
6,424 6972 8,821 7.406 8318 9,846
68,739 00226 92,042 100 %04 05,850 98,834
982,663 940,046 881,947 B66.001 unavatlable imavailzhle
40,000 38340 38,000 38,000 38,000 38,000
111,329 109,499 nnz 110,158 £0,592 0,830
31373 33,064 27063 33,729 61,790 42,893
A0 305 208 unavaitable ustavailable unavailable
513517 37097 4433 unavailable unavailable unavailable
307 330 219,751 205063 311733 300,603 3100531
15 3 10 3 0 )

&7 71 725 147 617 616
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CITY OF DAVENPORT

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
June 30, 2011

FISCAL YEAR
FUNCTION/PROGRAM i 2010 2000 2008 2007
PUBLIC SAFETY
Polico cars 83 T4 64 67 9
Fire stalions 7 7 7 7 7
Fare irucks 1] 1 16 16 14
PUBLIC WORKS
Sireets (miles) 693 695 695 692 692
Traffic signals 156 153 153 152 151
Stroet lights 9,691 9680 9,632 9,558 9,456
Refuse collection rucks 31 31 3 30 36
Buses 21 21 21 20 20
CULTURE & RECREATION
Golf courses 3 3 3 4 F
Acres of parks 1,700 1,700 1,700 1700 170G
Swimming pools 3 3 3 “ 4
Libraries 3 3 2 2 2

Mote: Mo capital asset indicators are available for General Government and Community & Economic

Development functions,

Source: City of Davenport Summary of Fized Assets Report.
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FISCAL YEAR

T 205 2004 H¥3 2002 M
7 68 62 72 &l 63
T 7 ;) 7 7 T
13 13 13 4 i4 14
90 G684 84 581 S8l SH1
150 146 144 138 134 125
9,237 9,263 9174 8,947 B.E15 8,766
48 40 42 37 36 i5
20 20 25 k11 19 19
4 4 4 3 X 3
1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700
4 4 4 4 4 3
: I I I I |
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McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

Certified Public Accountants

= McGladrey

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With

Government Auditing Standards

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Davenport, lowa
Davenport, lowa

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Davenport, lowa as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City of Davenport, lowa’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 12, 2011. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the City of Davenport is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of
Davenport, lowa's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Davenport, lowa's internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Davenport, lowa's
internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal controls exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in the internal control over financial
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above.

1

McGladrey is the brand under which RSM McGladrey, Inc. and McGladrey & Pullen, LLP serve clients’ business needs. Member of RSM International network, a network of
The two firms operate as separate legal entities in an alternative practice structure. independent accounting, tax and consulting firms.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Davenport, lowa's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted an immaterial
instance of noncompliance that is described in Part IV of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the City’s operations for the year ended
June 30, 2011 are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our audit
of the basic financial statements of the City. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not all
transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments
involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those
statutes.

The City of Davenport, lowa’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City’s response and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City of Davenport, lowa in a separate
letter dated December 12, 2011.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor and Members of the City Council,
management, others within the City, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties.

%ﬁ%//m/ L,

Davenport, lowa
December 12, 2011



McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

Certified Public Accountants

= McGladrey

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance With Requirements
That Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on
Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance in Accordance With OMB Circular A-133

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Davenport, lowa
Davenport, lowa

Compliance

We have audited the City of Davenport, lowa’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-133, Compliance Supplement, that could have a direct and material
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. The City of Davenport,
lowa's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of
the City of Davenport, lowa's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of
Davenport, lowa's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments and Nonprofit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
City of Davenport, lowa's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City of Davenport, lowa's compliance
with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Davenport, lowa complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed an
instance of noncompliance with those requirements, which is required to be reported in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs as item 11-llI-A.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Davenport, lowa is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Davenport, lowa's
internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Davenport, lowa's internal control over compliance.
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Davenport, lowa as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated December 12, 2011. Our audit was
performed for the purpose of forming our opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Government and Nonprofit Organizations, and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The City of Davenport, lowa’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit the City’s response and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor and Members of the City Council,
management, others within the City, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties.

%ﬁ%//m/ L,

Davenport, lowa
December 12, 2011



City of Davenport, lowa

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Continued)

Federal Grantor's
Federal Grantor/ CFDA Identifying Federal
Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
Direct:
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
N/C S/R Section 8 Programs 14.182 KC76237 $ 374,569
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 B 10 MC 19 0002 2,201,574
HERA - Neighborhood Stabilization Program 14.228 N/A 555,264
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M 10 MC 190200 1,000,337
ARRA CDBG-R 14.253 B09 MY 190002 315,565
Jump Start HUD Program 14.256 N/A 247,953
ARRA Homeless Prevention & Rapid Rehousing 14.257 S09 MY 190003 387,499
Fair Housing Assistance Program 14.401 FF 207 KO 77015 49,688
Public and Indian Housing 14.850 KC 9148 60,216
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 KC 902 7V 3,071,002
Public Housing - Capital Fund Program 14.872 KC 914 8 195,781
ARRA - Capital Funds 14.885 1A 0550 4550 109 75,889
Lead Based Paint Grant 14.900 IA LHB 0349 07 949,193
9,484,530
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission
Employment Discrimination Title VII of the City Rights Act of 1964 30.001 EE CCN 1001 14 55,000
U.S. Department of Transportation
Taxiway Reconstruction/Hanger 20.205 319 0024 15 820,530
Davenport Municipal Airport 20.205 319 0024 14 45,572
Pier & Bank Stabilization 20.208 STPU 1827 (655) 8R 82 276,004
Fairmont Bridge Replacement 20.205 BRM 1827(640) 8N 82 198,017
67th Street Paving Project 20.205 STP U 1827(663)70 82 179,775
65th and Brady Signal 20.205 N/A 530,000
2nd and Warren Signal 20.205 N/A 84,822
Kimberly and Marquette 20.205 STP U 1827(637) 70 82 7,683
49th Street Paving 20.205 STP U 1827(632) 70 83 12,614
Rail for Eastern lowa 20.205 FEO06 (01) 49 82 576,483
Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 1A 90 X 362 00 299,323
Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 1A 90 X 350 00 325,685
3,356,508
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Surveys, Studies, Investigations and Special Purpose Grants 66.606 XP 98 7584 01 1,202,960
U.S. Department of Energy
ARRA - Energy & Efficiency Block Grant 81.128 SC 000 3271 375,150
ARRA Energy & Renewable Energy 81.122 OE0000416 13,204
388,354
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Assistance to Firefighters 97.044 EMWV 2009 FO 02503 47,179
Assistance to Firefighters 97.044 EMW 2010 FO 04002 127,600
Port Security Rescue Boat 97.056 2010 PU TO 0059 178,899
Hazmat Training 97.067 N/A 43,319
396,997



City of Davenport, lowa

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Federal Grantor's
Federal Grantor/ CFDA Identifying Federal
Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
lowa Department of Homeland Security
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 97.039 DR-1763 0028 01 218,797
U.S. Department of Justice
Weed & Seed 16.595 2009 WS QX0109 175,668
Bulletproof Vest Partnership 16.607 UG 06 2XG 3,512
Community Oriented Policing Services 16.710 2005 IN WX 0025 207,617
Community Oriented Policing Services 16.710 2007 CK WX 0031 481,031
ARRA - Cops Hiring 16.710 2009 RK WX 0305 385,555
Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Force N/A N/A 8,788
1,262,171
National Recreational and Park Association
Parks Take Me Fishing 15.653 N/A 5,000
Department of Interior National Park Service
CPED MAPS 15.406 N/A 9,360
Total Direct 16,379,677
Indirect:
U.S. Department of Justice
Passed through Governor's Office of Drug Control Policy:
Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms Training Assistance 16.012 N/A 1,997
Enforcing Underage Drinking Laws (EUDL) 16.727 JUV 07 JDO7 FO8 17,032
ARRA Governor's Office of Drug Control Policy 16.803 09 JAG ARRA 265 79,999
ARRA Byrne JAG Law Enforcement 16.804 2009 SB B9 05 49 300,000
Drug Enforcement N/A N/A 2,144
HIDTA N/A 09 G09 MW 000 9A 5,137
406,309
U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed through lowa Department of Transportation:
ARRA - Full Depth Patching 20.205 ESL 1827 (660) 7S 82 238,516
ARRA - Frong Portch Parkway 20.205 ESL 1827 (662) 7S 82 192,327
430,843
U.S. Department of Transportation
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration
Passed through Governor's Traffic Safety Bureau:
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 PAP 11-04 Task 10 13,648
U.S. Department of Natural Resources
Passed through lowa Department of Natural Resources:
ARRA Reduce lowa Dieseal Exhuast (RIDE I) 66.039 ESD 7270 CLAIMS 100144 98,036
ARRA Reduce lowa Dieseal Exhuast (RIDE II) 66.039 ESD 7270 CLAIMS 110148 125,000
223,036
Total Indirect 1,073,836
Total 17,453,513

See Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.



City of Davenport, lowa

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the
City of Davenport, lowa for the year ended June 30, 2011. All federal financial assistance received
directly from federal agencies as well as federal financial assistance passed through other government
agencies expended during the year is included in the schedule. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments and Nonprofit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue from federal awards is recognized when the City has done everything necessary to establish its
right to revenue under the modified accrual basis for governmental funds and accrual basis for proprietary
funds. Expenditures of federal awards are recognized in the accounting period when the liability is
incurred and approved for reimbursement.

Note 3. Subrecipients

Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, the City of Davenport, lowa provided federal
awards to subrecipients as follows:

Amount
Federal CFDA Provided to
Program Title Number Subrecipients
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 $ 775,731
Office of Community Oriented Policing Services 16.710 414,303



City of Davenport, lowa

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

Year Ended June 30, 2011
Comment Corrective Action or
Number Comment Status Other Explanation
Compliance Over Federal Awards:
10-11I-A The City did not verify that a vendor Corrected
of a procurement contract was
neither suspended nor debarred
from receiving federal funds by the
federal government.
Statutory Reporting:
10-IV-A The culture and recreation function Corrected
exceeded budgeted expenditures.
10-1IV-C The City did not have the mileage Corrected
rate approved by the City Council.
10-1V-1 The City did not file the "Unclaimed Uncorrected See current year finding and
Property" report until 18 days after corrective action plan at
the report became due. 11-1V-I.



City of Davenport, lowa

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2011

l. Summary of the Independent Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:
. Material weakness(es) identified? No
None Reported

No

Yes

. Significant deficiencies identified? Yes

0
[

. Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:

« Material weakness(es) identified?
. Significant deficiencies?

No
None Reported

Yes
Yes

0
(<[]

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified
. Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with

Section 510(a) of Circular A-133? Yes [ ] No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
16.710 ARRA - Cops Hiring

16.710 Community Oriented Policing Services
14.239 HOME Investment Partnerships Program
14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers
66.606 Surveys, Studies, Investigations, and Special Purpose Grants
66.039 ARRA - Reduce lowa Dieseal Exhaust (RIDE | & RIDE Il) Grants
81.128 ARRA Energy & Efficiency Block Grant
JAG Program Cluster
16.803 ARRA Governor's Office of Drug Control Policy
16.804 ARRA Byrne JAG Law Enforcement

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $523,605
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes [ ] No

(Continued)



City of Davenport, lowa

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2011

1. Findings Related to the Basic Financial Statements

A.

B.

Internal Control
None reported.
Compliance

None reported.

ll. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards

A.

Internal Control for Federal Awards

None reported

Compliance

114I-A

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Survey’s Studies, Investigations and Special Purpose Grants

(CFDA 66.606) (Direct)

Federal Award Year 2011

Finding: The City did not file the quarterly MBE/AWBE Utilization Under Federal Grants,
Cooperative Agreements and Interagency Agreements reports on a timely basis with the

EPA.

Criteria: The EPA required the quarterly MBEAVBE reports to be submitted within 30 days
of the end of the quarter.

Condition: The quarterly MBEAVBE reports were not filed on a timely basis with the EPA.

Questioned costs: None

Context: Four of the five reports tested for the Surveys, Studies, Investigations, and Special
Purpose Grants were not filed timely.

Effect: Noncompliance with federal grant compliance requirements.

Cause: The grant coordinator for the program did not submit the quarterly reports within the
required timeframe.

Recommendation: We recommend the City submit all required reports timely.

Response and corrective action plan: The Senior Accountant-Grants and Projects in
Finance will work with the grant coordinator of the program to meet the quarterly reporting
deadlines.

(Continued)
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City of Davenport, lowa

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Iv.

Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting
11-V-A

11-IV-B

11-Iv-C

11-Iv-D

Questionable expenditures: We noted no expenditures for parties, banquets or other
entertainment for employees that we believe may constitute an unlawful expenditure from public
funds as this is defined in the Attorney General’s opinion dated April 25, 1979.

Certified budget: Expenditures/expenses during the year ended June 30, 2011 did not exceed
amount budgeted prior to budget being amended or at year-end.

Travel expense: No expenditures of City money for travel expenses of spouses of City officials or
employees were noted.

Business transactions: Business transactions between the City and City officials or employees
are detailed as follows:

Name, Title and Business Connection Transaction Description Amount
Paul Hartman, Fire Employee, Self Employed
Photographer Services 800.00
Brian Klinkenberg, Fire Employee, Owner of
Computer Services for IT Services 7,225.00
Karl Leslein, Fire Employee, Independent
Contractor for Alex Air Apparatus Services 73,936.00
Ellen Kloppenborg, Library Employee, Father
Owns Kloppenborg Foundry & Fan Co Services 14,637.00
Daniel Sheridan, Parks Employee, Wife Owns
Jessican Sheridan Services 3,054.00
Richard Davison, Board, Owner of Lane &
Waterman Services 60,705.00
lan Frink, Park Board, Minority Owner of
Crawford Company. Services 47,988.00
John Gere, Planning & Zoning Committee, part
Owner of SGGM Architects Services 133,054.00
Willie Henderson, Affirmative Act, Son part
Owner of Little Construction Services 18,596.00
Richard Schaefer, Building Code Board,
Independent Contractor for Ruhl & Ruhl Commercial Services 2,889.00
Robert Shaw, Electric Code Board, Shareholder in
Shaw Electric Services 1,335.00
Judy Schawver, Civl Rights Committee, Owner of
Management Resource Group LTD Services 8,400.00

(Continued)
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City of Davenport, lowa

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2011

11-V-E

Bond coverage: Surety bond coverage of City officials and employees is in accordance with
statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should be reviewed annually to ensure the
coverage is adequate for current operations.

11-IV-F

Council minutes: No transactions were found that we believe should have been approved in the
Council minutes but were not.

11-V-G
Deposits and investments: No instances of noncompliance with the deposit and investment

provisions of Chapters 12B and 12C of the Code of lowa and the City’s investment policy were
noted.

11-IV-H

Revenue bonds: The City has established the sinking and reserve accounts required by the
revenue bonds.

11-1V-

Unclaimed property: lowa Code Chapter 556.11 requires that before November 1 after the end of
each fiscal year the City shall prepare and file with the State Treasurer of lowa an account of
monies that have become unclaimed during the preceding fiscal year. It was noted the filing of the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2010 “Unclaimed Property” Report was filed in December 2010.

Recommendation: We recommend timely filing of all reports to ensure compliance with state laws
and regulations.

Response and corrective action plan: The City will continue to strive to timely file all reports in
accordance with state laws and regulations.
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City of Davenport, lowa

Corrective Action Plan
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Comment
Number Comment

Corrective Action Plan

Contact Person

Anticipated
Date of
Completion

Compliance Over Federal Awards:

11-111-A The City did not submit quarterly
reports by the required deadline.

Statutory Reporting:

11-1V-1 The City did not file the "Unclaimed
Property" report before November 1
for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2010.

See corrective action plan
at 11-111-A.

See corrective action plan
at 11-IV-I.
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